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FREMLIN WALK 

Maidstone House 

Key Facts about Maidstone 

POPULATION OF MAIDSTONE 
BOROUGH 

2019 171,800 

2018 170,000 

COUNCIL GROSS REVENUE 

2019/20 £96.6 million 

2018/19 £97.2 million 

GROSS VALUE ADDED IN BOROUGH 
COUNCIL REVENUE GENERATED 
LOCALLY 

2018 £4.1 billion 2019/20 92.7% 

2017 £4.0 billion 2014/15 82.3% 

NUMBER OF ACTIVE BUSINESSES IN 
THE BOROUGH 

2018 7,990 

2017 7,935 

BUSINESS RATES GENERATED 

2019/20 £60.3 million 

2018/19 £59.9 million 

COUNCIL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) AGAINST BUDGET 

2019/20 -1.2% 

2018/19 +0.9% 

COUNCIL INVESTMENT IN LONG TERM 
ASSETS 

2019/20 £158.9 million 

2018/19 £121.4 million 

WEEKLY PAY FOR A FULL-TIME WORKER COUNCIL’S USABLE RESERVES 

2019 £579.20 2019/20 £17.2 million 
2018 £589.50 2018/19 £15.7 million 
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About Maidstone 

Staplehurst 

Marden 

Maidstone 

Headcorn 

Maidstone is the largest borough council district in Kent, with an estimated 171,800 residents in mid-2019. 
Around 70% live in Maidstone, which is the County Town of Kent.  In the surrounding rural area there are local 
service centres such as Staplehurst, Marden, Headcorn, Lenham and Harrietsham and many smaller villages. 

Maidstone has the largest economy of any Kent borough, generating an estimated £4 billion Gross Value 
Added per annum. The borough has around 8,000 businesses covering a diverse range of sectors including life 
sciences, healthcare, ICT, construction and civil engineering, professional and business services, agriculture and 
horticulture, and education. 

The M20 from London to the Kent coast runs through the borough, providing good transport links and the 
opportunity for further business growth. 

The town of Maidstone is surrounded by a rural area that stretches from the Kent Downs Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty in the North to the Weald in the South. The borough has a rich historical heritage, with 2,000 
listed buildings and 28 scheduled ancient monuments. The River Medway fows through the borough and the 
town centre and, together with its tributaries, is one of the borough’s prime assets. All these natural and physical 
advantages help the borough attract around four million visitors each year. 
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About the Council 
The Council is accountable to local residents through its 55 councillors, who are elected by thirds for terms of four 
years, such that elections are held in three years out of every four.   Borough elections were due to be held in May 
2020 but have been postponed for a year owing to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Conservative 24 

Liberal Democrat 20 

Labour 4 

Independent 4 

Independent Maidstone 2 

Vacancy 1 

The Council operates a Committee system, with decisions being made by four main Committees: Policy and 
Resources; Communities, Housing and Environment; Economic Regeneration and Leisure; and Strategic Planning 
and Infrastructure. The Council elects a Leader each year, who is also Chairman of the Policy and Resources 
Committee. The current Leader of the Council is Martin Cox (Liberal Democrat). 

The Council employed 540 people (503 full time equivalent) at 31 March 2020, based at the Council’s administrative 
ofces in Maidstone House, King Street, and at service locations including the Council’s depot at Bircholt Road, 
Parkwood. 

COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
The Council and the community it serves have been profoundly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. The Council 
has been at the forefront of the response to the pandemic, for example in supporting rough sleepers and the 
homeless, establishing a community hub to support vulnerable members of society, and distributing nearly £30 
million of grants to small businesses. 

The impact of the pandemic on the period covered by the Statement of Accounts was limited, with lockdown 
measures only taking efect on 24 March 2020, right at the end of the period.  However, there will be a very 
signifcant fnancial impact in the new fnancial year, both from additional costs incurred by the Council in 
responding to the pandemic, and from a reduction in income across almost all the Council’s revenue streams, 
including Council Tax, Business Rates, and fees and charges for the services that we provide. 

At the time of publishing the draft Statement of Accounts, the government had provided the Council with £1.7 
million of non-ringfenced grants to ofset additional costs and loss of income, but this is expected only partly to 
address the likely fnancial shortfall.  As set out in the Statement of Accounts, the Council holds £17 million of 
usable reserves, which provides the Council with a reasonable level of fnancial resilience.  However, drawing on 
these reserves would leave the Council with relatively greater exposure to the risk of further pandemic outbreaks 
and/or other unforeseen events.  Furthermore, the need to rebuild reserves would constrain the Council’s capacity 
for service delivery and to support community recovery. 

Maidstone’s Strategic Plan 
The Council adopted a Strategic Plan in December 2018, setting out its aspirations through to 2045. The vision set 
out in the Plan is for Maidstone to be a vibrant, prosperous, urban and rural community at the heart of Kent, where 
everyone can realise their potential. Within the overall Strategic Plan, we have defned four strategic priorities: 
embracing growth and enabling infrastructure; making Maidstone safe, clean and green; providing homes and 
supporting communities; and making the borough a thriving place.  Achievements in 2019/20 against these 
objectives and key performance indicators are set out in the following section. 

We are currently considering how the Strategic Plan may need to be refreshed in the light of the Covid-19 
pandemic. 
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A CLEAN

SAFE, CLEAN AND GREEN 

Key achievements 

EMBRACING GROWTH AND ENABLING INFRASTRUCTURE 

• Bus Station Improvements 
The council is leading a project to invest around £1m in improvement works to Maidstone Bus 
Station. The facility is situated underneath the Mall Shopping Centre in the town centre and has been 
earmarked for investment within the councils’ infrastructure delivery plan. This investment decision 
has been made because of the council’s desire to support and promote sustainable transport. The 
council is working in partnership with the owner of the facility, Capital & Regional, the main bus 
operator, Arriva, and Kent County Council, all of whom are contributing fnancially too. The design 
proposals are now at an advanced stage, and construction is envisaged to start during 2020. 

• Kent Medical Campus Enabling Infrastructure 
The council has facilitated a package of highways improvements adjacent to the Kent Medical 
Campus that are being accelerated by a successful bid to the National Infrastructure Productivity 
Fund, with Kent County Council. Monies secured exceeded £9m, to include a £0.5m loan from the 
council. This will fund improvements to two nearby roundabouts and provide dualling of the road 
between them. Works on site will commence in 2020. The Kent Medical Campus is one of the largest 
employment sites in Maidstone, hence our desire to bring about early enabling infrastructure to 
support the growth in jobs. 

• Junction Improvements 
The council has worked closely with Kent County Council to secure Local Growth Fund (LGF) monies 
to part fund a programme of junction improvements to mitigate housing development in the current 
local plan. Whilst programmes such as this are complex to deliver, public consultation by Kent 
County Council commenced in early 2020 for the detailed design proposals and works on site are 
expected to commence in the coming months. The allocation of LGF monies demonstrates support 
for the proposals from the Local Enterprise Partnership. 

HOMES AND COMMUNITIES 

• New housing developments 
Work is under way on two new housing developments in Maidstone town centre, at Union Street 
and Brunswick Street. When complete in late 2020, the developments will provide 94 new homes, 
comprising a mix of afordable housing, housing for market rent and housing for sale. 

• Temporary accommodation 
Despite an increase in the number of households approaching the Council as homeless, the housing 
service was able to continue the decrease in the number of families having to go into temporary 
accommodation. In addition, the Council’s strategy to acquire its own temporary accommodation 
stock led to fewer people being placed into nightly paid accommodation, thereby providing better 
quality accommodation for the client and reducing the cost to the Council. 

• Helping Rough Sleepers 
Like other towns, Maidstone has seen a signifcant increase in the rough sleeper population in recent 
years. The Council has expanded its outreach service, established a centre for emergency supported 
accommodation, and expanded hostel support. These interventions have had a major impact on the 
number of rough sleepers. 
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SAFE, CLEAN AND GREEN  

• A20 improvements 
A wide range of street scene and landscaping improvements have been carried out along the A20 
approach into Maidstone from Willington Street. These have included the planting of 20,000 bulbs, 
shaping of the wild areas, a new Welcome to Maidstone sign, deep cleaning, white-lining and painting 
of lamp columns.  In addition, a number of focal points have been introduced. Two large tree stumps 
have been transformed into beautiful sculptures to illustrate Go Green Go Wild and the Borough’s 
farming heritage.  A dinosaur sculpture and metal bicycle silhouettes are due to be added.   Feedback 
from residents and visitors has been extremely positive, with many appreciating the colour and 
vibrancy the work has created. 

• Go Green Go Wild 
The Go Green Go Wild initiative has continued to develop since its launch last year, with more 
community groups getting involved to promote and support biodiversity. We launched a 
community grant scheme which has led to a number of new local initiatives being started 
including tree planting. The project was also recognised by DEFRA this year for the pollinator 
project where a number of new wildfower meadows were created.  Further wildfower meadows 
have been sown this year with the support of local groups. The Go Green Go Wild website has also 
been set up to help inspire local residents to get involved and fnd out about local groups. 

• Mote Park dam works 
The Council has started works to the sluice gates, boat house, spillway, dam and area around 
Mote Park lake. The lake was formed in the 1830s when the River Len was dammed. As a result 
of a reservoir safety inspection, which the park is required to undertake every ten years, essential 
work is now required.  If the dam were to fail, the risk posed could see the water swell rapidly over 
40 acres of land, which would see Turkey Mill, Mote Park and surrounding areas under water. With 
estimated depths of 12 feet this would endanger lives and damage homes and businesses. The 
works will improve the capacity to control the transfer of fow across the dam and ensure that the 
dam does not fail during extreme food events. 

A THRIVING PLACE 

• Maidstone Innovation Centre 
AMaidstone Borough Council has awarded Rydon the contract for the construction of the £9.5m 
Innovation Centre, which is part funded by the European Regional Development Fund. Located on the 
Kent Medical Campus, part of the North Kent Enterprise Zone, the Innovation Centre will bring together 
businesses and organisations involved in fnding solutions to complex healthcare issues and scientifc 
research and development. The four storey, 37,000ft2 building – designed by Bond Bryan Architects 
– will provide high quality fexible ofce, hot desking and meeting space, conference facilities and 
business support for small and medium-sized enterprises working in the life science, healthcare and 
med-tech sectors. Work on site started in March 2020. 

• Maidstone East Station Improvement Project 
Planning permission for the refurbished and extended ticket ofce and new forecourt has been 
granted to Network Rail. The project is a partnership between Maidstone Borough Council, Kent 
County Council, Network Rail and Southeastern Railways. The former Victoria Pub has been 
demolished and ground works have commenced setting out the new forecourt which will include soft 
landscaping, wayfnding signage and a new public art installation inspired by  the Council’s coat of 
arms – an Iguanodon. In addition a further  £641,000 of Local Growth Fund  has been approved this 
year to  encourage walking and cycling and improved disabled access. 

• Lockmeadow 
Lockmeadow is a leisure centre with an Odeon multiplex cinema, 18-lane bowling alley, a trampoline 
park, restaurants and a two-level David Lloyd swimming pool and gym complex. The Council already 
owned the freehold of the site, and in November 2019 acquired the long leasehold interest (105 years 
unexpired) for £19 million. The acquisition is intended to support the objective of making Maidstone 
a thriving place, with the Council working as an active landlord to make improvements to the 
appearance of the building and facilities to help make it a key destination for residents and visitors. 
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Key Performance Indicators are set for each Council priority in consultation with the relevant Service Committee. 
Performance against targets is set out below. Please note that direction of travel indicates an improvement or 
decline in performance for KPIs with targets.  For Data Only PIs it indicates an increase or decrease in volume. 

PRIORITY:         . A Thriving Place 

Performance Indicator Service 
2019/20 
Out-turn 

2019/20 
Target 

Status 
Compared to 

2018/19 
Percentage of all available tickets sold at the Hazlitt Leisure & 

Tourism 66.27% 50% 

Number of visits per month to 
Visit-Maidstone.com 

Economic 
Development 334,556 367,535 

Footfall in the Town Centre Economic 
Development 10,994,050 11,836,415 

Number of students benefting from the museum’s 
educational service 

Economic 
Development 8,884 8,378 

Footfall at the museum and Visitor Information Centre Leisure & 
Tourism 98,314 65,000 

Number of attendees to informal events (at the 
museum) 

Leisure & 
Tourism 3,532 

Number of people attending paid for exhibitions Leisure & 
Tourism 972 

Contacts to the Visitor Information Centre Leisure & 
Tourism 3,059 3,315 

Number of users at the leisure centre Leisure & 
Tourism 758,290 805,257 

Percentage of vacant retail units in town centre Economic 
Development 

Data collection suspend-
ed owing to Covid-19 11% N/A N/A 

Business Rates income from the Town Centre Revenues & 
Benefts £21,720,949 

Total value of business ratable properties (New 
2019/20) 

Revenues & 
Benefts £147,123,115 N/A 

PRIORITY:        Clean, Safe and Green 

Performance Indicator Service Value Target Status 
Last 
Year 

Percentage of unauthorised encampments on 
Council owned land removed within 5 working days 

Environmental Crime 
Team 100% 90% 

Percentage of fy tips resulting in enforcement 
action 

Environmental Crime 
Team 87% 80% 

Percentage of fy-tips cleared or assessed within 2 
working days 

Environmental Crime 
Team 96.38% 94% 

Average weight of fy-tipped collected materials 
(kg) 

Environmental Crime 
Team 92.80kg 

Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and composting 

Waste & Recycling 49.12% 52% 

Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and composting Depot Services 98.18% 98% 

The percentage of land and highways with 
acceptable levels of detritus 

Depot Services 94.87% 95% 

Maintenance per hectare spent on Parks and Open 
Spaces 

Parks & Open Spaces £6,016 N/A 

Number of Green Flag parks Parks & Open Spaces 3 5 
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Section 106 spending (against estimate) Parks & Open Spaces £495,335 

Percentage of people using amenity green space 
at least once a week 

Parks & Open Spaces Due 2020 Resi-
dent Survey 

N/A

PRIORITY:          Homes & Communities 

Performance Indicator Service Value Target Status 
Last 
Year 

Satisfaction with the local area as a place to 
live (Resident Survey) 

Policy & Information 53.10%  N/A 
(2017/18) 

Percentage spend and allocation of Disabled 
Facilities Grant Budget (YTD) 

Housing & Health 130.40% 100% 

Number of households living in temporary 
accommodation last night of the month 

Housing & Health 94 

Number of households living in nightly paid 
temporary accommodation last night of the 
month 

Housing & Health 36 

Number of households housed through 
housing register 

Housing & Health 576 600 

Number of households prevented or relieved 
from becoming homeless 

Housing & Health 571 330 

Percentage of successful Relief Duty 
outcomes 

Housing & Health 56.64% 60% N/A 

Percentage of successful Prevention Duty 
outcomes (New 2019/20) 

Housing & Health 62.44% 60% N/A 

Number of completed housing assistances Housing & Health 471 
Number of houses of multiple occupation 
brought to compliance by private rented 
sector licensing 

Housing & Health 31 

PRIORITY:          Embracing Growth & Enabling Infrastructure 

Performance Indicator Service Value Target Status 
Last 
Year 

Percentage of priority 1 enforcement cases 
dealt with in time (New PI 2019/20) 

Development 
Management 

100% 100% N/A 

Percentage of priority 2 enforcement cases 
dealt with in time (New PI 2019/20) 

Development 
Management 

95.10% 90% N/A 

Total number of complaints received within 
period (New PI 2019/20) 

Development 
Management 

566  N/A 

Number of priority 1 enforcement cases 
dealt with in time 

Development 
Management 

15 N/A 

Number of priority 2 enforcement cases 
dealt with in time 

Development 
Management 

524 N/A 

Number of appeals in period Development 
Management 

93 

MBC success rate at planning appeals (rolling 
6 months) 

Development 
Management 

66.67% 75% 

Number of afordable homes delivered 
(gross) 

Economic 
Development 

325 180 

Percentage of new homes provided that are 
afordable 

Economic
 Development 

AWAITING DATA FOR THIS KPI 20% N/A N/A 

Net additional homes provided Development 
Management 

AWAITING DATA FOR THIS KPI 973 N/A N/A 

 Data only indicator - reported for information but no target set *Does not include data for February & March 
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Financial Performance 

Maidstone Council’s fnancial turnover, including Council Tax and Business Rates collected on behalf of other 
local authorities and government, amounted to £251 million in 2019/20 (£246 million in 2018/19). The table 
below shows the fows of income and expenditure. 

New 
Homes 
Bonus 

£3.9m 

Council Tax 
£18.2m 

This grant is used to 
fund investments in 
the Borough through 
the Council’s capital 
programme. This is 
refected in notes 11 

and 30. 

This category includes income 
transactions which the Council 

is required to make in order 
to comply with accounting 

standards, such as movements in 
investment property values. They 
are detailed within notes 9-11 to 
the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. 

This represents income generated 
by the Council through a range 
of activities, including property 

rentals, services shared with other 
local authorities, planning fees, 

parking charges and garden waste 
collection. These amounts are 

shown within the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

This represents funding 
awarded for a specifc purpose, 
such as the payment of Housing 
Beneft. This is refected in the 

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement under the 
Policy and Resources Committee 

and also within note 11. 

Business 
Rates 
£5.7m 

Revenue 
Support 

Grant 
NIL 

Council Tax 
£99.4m 

Business 
Rates 

£54.6m 

New 
Homes 
Bonus 

£3.9m 

Specifc 
Government 

Grants 

£41m 

Fees and 
Charges 

£25.7m 

Other 
Income 

£2.1m 

Council Tax 
£117.6m 

Business 
Rates 

£60.3m 

Revenue 
Support 

Grant 
NIL 

TOTAL RESOURCES 
£250.6m 

RETAINED BY MAIDSTONE 
£96.6m  

PAID TO OTHERS 
£154m 

Specifc 
Government 

Grants 

£41m  

Fees and 
Charges 

£25.7m 

Other 
Income 

£2.1m 

These sources of funding support the day-to-day 
running of the Council.  Details are set out in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
and note 11. 
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Income Non-ringfenced Government Grants 

Revenue Support Grant 

Grant from central government.  It depends on income 
The Council no longer receives Revenue Support 

Business Rates generated locally in Maidstone, comprising Council Tax, 
our share of Business Rates, and Fees and Charges for 

Council Tax Income 
the services that we provide. 

Other Income 

0 

£5m 

£10m 

£15m 

£20m 

£25m 

£30m 

£35m 

£40m 

£45m 

£50m 

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

These sources of income are shown in note 11 to the Statement of Accounts, Taxation & Non-Specifc Grant 
Income, and in the income totals for the relevant Committee in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
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Expenditure 
The Council spends money to meet its statutory obligations - delivering services like refuse collection, and 
making transfer payments such as housing beneft – and to meet our strategic priorities. 

Delivering expenditure in line with budget is an important performance indicator. This objective was achieved in 
2019/20. The outturn for the year was an overspend compared with the budget of £237,000 (1.2%). 

Actual .  

Budget 

Communities & Housing 

Environment & Public Realm 

Heritage, Culture & Leisure 

Planning Services 

Parking & Transportation 

Economic Development 

Property & Investment 

Corporate Services 

-4,000 -2,000 0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 12,000 

Income Expenditure 

The Council’s income and expenditure is shown in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 
in the Statement of Accounts. 
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Balance Sheet 
The Balance Sheet shows the value of the Council’s assets less its liabilities at the end of the year. The net 
assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. The Council’s net 
assets increased from £49.9 million to £61.8 million, mainly because of upward revaluations of the Council’s 
property assets. 

2018/19 2019/20 
£000 £000 

85,088 Property, Plant & Equipment 124,200 

10,393 Heritage Assets 10,393 

23,014 Investment Properties 23,270 

2,647 Other Long Term Assets 716 

32,935 Money owed to the Council 27,991 

-29,150 Money owed by the Council -47,714 

-74,983 Long Term Liabilities -77,098 

49,944 Net Assets 61,758 

15,659 Usable Reserves 17,193 

34,285 Unusable Reserves 44,565 

49,944 Total Reserves 61,758 

Property, Plant and Equipment are assets held by the Council to deliver services or for administrative 
purposes. The increase refects capital expenditure during the year. Further details of capital expenditure are 
shown overleaf. 

Money owed to the Council includes amounts receivable from debtors and cash balances, being cash in hand, 
bank deposits and investments that are readily convertible to cash. The Cash Flow Statement provides an 
analysis of the movement in cash during the course of the year. 
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Balance Sheet (continued) 
Money owed by the Council includes amounts payable to creditors, provisions for business rates appeals and 
grants received in advance. The Council currently has no long term borrowing. 

Usable reserves include money set aside for specifc purposes and sufcient contingency to cover unforeseen 
events. In particular, the Council has decided that the New Homes Bonus that it receives will be set aside for 
capital investment to improve and enhance the borough. £3.9 million of New Homes Bonus has been used in this 
way during the year (18/19 - £4.6 million). 

Unusable Reserves will only become available at some future date, for example if assets are sold. Unusable 
reserves rose, refecting the revaluations and change in pension liabilities described above. 

Changes in Reserves are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement in the Statement of Accounts. 

Capital Expenditure 
During the year, £34 million was spent on delivering the projects identifed within the Council’s capital 
programme. 

These projects included: 

• Expenditure on new housing developments at Union Street and Brunswick Street 

• Purchase of properties for use as temporary accommodation for homeless people 

• Acquisition of long leasehold interest in Lockmeadow Leisure Complex 

• Public realm improvements in the Town Centre 

The Council has an ambitious capital programme for the coming fve years, totalling over £100 million. The 
largest element in the capital programme is the Council’s housing and regeneration strategy. The programme will 
be funded both through New Homes Bonus receipts and other internal resources, and through external borrowing, 
in line with the regulatory requirement that such borrowing be afordable, prudent and sustainable. 

Actual 

19/20 

£000 

20/21 21/22 

£000 £000 

Five ye

22/23 

£000 

ar plan 

23/24 

£000 

24/25 

£000 

Total 

£000 

Housing Development and Regeneration 5,840 12,022 14,023 12,516 10,680 10,680 59,921 

Temporary Accommodation 3,083 2,190 2,190 

Disabled Facilities Grants 793 800 800 800 800 800 4,000 

Flood Action Plan 0 300 300 300 900 

Mote Park Improvements 297 3,650 840 4,490 

Town Centre Regeneration 688 40 40 

Property Investments 20,281 6,500 3,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 17,500 

Kent Medical Campus Innovation Centre 1,535 8,250 1,500 9,750 

Infrastructure delivery 0 600 600 600 600 600 3,000 

Corporate Property 699 1,430 175 175 175 175 2,130 

Biodiversity and Climate Change 1,000 1,000 

Mail Bus Station Redevelopment 53 750 750 

Section 106 Contributions 0 57 63 480 59 69 728 

Other 1,113 676 495 309 270 270 2,020 

34,382 38,265 22,296 17,680 15,084 15,094 108,419 
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FUTURE PLANS 
At the time of publishing the Statement of Accounts, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic remains 
very unclear. Whilst the Council is absolutely committed to fulflling its responsibilities for service 
delivery and to supporting the community’s recovery from the pandemic, the way in which it will do 
this remains to be determined. The Council’s Strategic Plan objectives are currently being reviewed to 
consider how they might need to be refreshed in light of the pandemic. 

The Strategic Plan depends on the Council’s fve year Medium Term Financial Strategy, which sets out 
how our strategic priorities will be delivered, given the fnancial resources available to the Council. 
The Council’s resources are very largely generated locally, with most of its income coming from 
Council Tax and other local sources, including parking, planning fees and property income.  Given the 
high dependence on self-generated income, which risks being afected adversely by the Covid-19 
pandemic, the Council is currently also reviewing the Medium Term Financial Strategy and will modify 
it as necessary. 

The Council’s capital programme is intended to support local public services and to help the Council 
achieve its strategic priorities for the borough. The Council plans to continue investing through the 
capital programme, to the extent that investments are sustainable in terms of our ability to fund 
interest payments and ultimately repayment of capital, and provided that resources are available 
whether through Public Works Loan Board borrowing or other sources of fnance. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Council manages risk through a comprehensive risk management framework. This involves 
identifcation of risk at corporate and service levels, ownership of individual risks by named ofcers, 
development of controls to mitigate risks, and regular reporting.  Quarterly reports are presented to the 
Corporate Leadership Team and bi-annual reports to Policy and Resources Committee.  Members take an 
active interest in the risk management process and engage fully in discussion about individual risks. 

The following table sets out what we have assessed as being the key corporate risks. 

Ranking Risk description 

Risk rating 

Inherent risk 
After planned 

mitigations 

1 Contraction in retail and leisure sectors 25 20 

2= Resurgence of current Covid-19 pandemic 20 16 

2= Environmental damage 16 16 

4 Major emergency with national / international impact 15 15 

5= Financial restrictions 20 12 

5= Poor partner relationships 16 12 

5= IT security failure 12 12 

8= Housing pressures increasing 12 9 

8= Not fulflling residential property responsibilities 12 9 

8= Short term impacts from end of Brexit transition period 12 9 

8= Building of incomplete communities 9 9 

12= Major project failure 12 8 

12= Governance failures 8 8 

14= Signifcant contract failure 12 6 

14= Loss of community engagement 12 6 

14= Not fulflling commercial property responsibilities 8 6 

17 Insufcient workforce capacity and skills 4 4 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

STATEME T OF RESPO SIBILITIES FOR THE STATEME T 
OF ACCOU TS 

The Council’s Responsibilities 

The Co ncil is req ired to: 

• Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs 
and to sec re that one of its officers has the responsibility for the 
administration of those affairs. In the Co ncil, that officer is the Director 
of Finance & B siness Improvement. 

• Manage its affairs to sec re economic, efficient and effective  se of 
reso rces and safeg ard its assets. 

• Approve the Statement of Acco nts. 

The Director of Finance & Business Improvement’s Responsibilities 

The Director of Finance & B siness Improvement is responsible for the 
preparation of the Co ncil’s Statement of Acco nts in accordance with proper 
practices as set o t in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local A thority Acco nting 
in the United Kingdom (the Code). 

In preparing this Statement of Acco nts, the Director of Finance & B siness 
Improvement has: 

• Selected s itable acco nting policies and applied them consistently. 
• Made j dgements and estimates that were reasonable and pr dent. 
• Complied with the Code. 

The Director of Finance & B siness Improvement has also: 

• Kept proper acco nting records which were  p to date. 
• Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fra d and 

other irreg larities. 

I certify that this Statement of Acco nts gives a tr e and fair view of the 
financial position of the Co ncil at the reporting date and of its expendit re and 
income for the year ended 31st March 2020. 

Signed: 

Mark Green, Director of Finance & B siness Improvement 

Date: 30th  ovember 2020 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

PRIMARY STATEME TS 

COMPREHE SIVE I COME & EXPE DITURE STATEME T 

For the years ending 31st March 2019 & 2020 

2018/19 (Restated) 
Gross Gross  et 

Expenditure Income Expenditure 
£000 £000 £000 

58,391 (52,352) 6,039 
20,064 (6,972) 13,092 
9,646 (2,705) 6,941 
6,874 (7,075) (201) 

Committee (See note below) 

Policy & Reso rces 
Comm nities, Ho sing & Environment 
Economic, Regeneration & Leis re 
Strategic Planning & Infrastr ct re 

Gross 
Expenditure 

£000 

53,508 
21,374 
6,279 
8,112 

2019/20 
Gross 

Income 
£000 

(45,833) 
(11,808) 
(2,280) 
(6,816) 

 et 
Expenditure 

£000 

7,675 
9,566 
3,999 
1,296 

94,974 (69,104) 25,870 Cost Of Services 89,273 (66,738) 22,535 

1,229 
169 

(28,821) 

Other Operating Expendit re (Note 9) 
Financing and Investment Income and 
Expendit re (Note 10) 
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant 
Income and Expendit re (Note 11) 

2,052 
1,807 

(355) 
(2,474) 

(27,747) 

1,698 
(666) 

(27,747) 

(1,553) (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 
Services 

(4,179) 

(7,832) 

(9,438) 

(17,271) 

Items that will not be reclassified 
to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

(S rpl s) or deficit on reval ation of 
property, plant & eq ipment assets 
Remeas rement of the Net Defined 
Benefit Liability 

Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

(5,567) 

(2,068) 

(7,635) 

(18,824) Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

(11,814) 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

 ote – Change of Committee Structure 

The Co ncil committee str ct re changed in 2019/20 to reflect the priorities set 
o t in the newly adopted Strategic Plan. As part of the restr ct re, the 
Heritage, C lt re and Leis re Committee was decommissioned, and the 
Economic Regeneration and Leis re Committee was created. A n mber of b dget 
heads were also reallocated to the Comm nities, Ho sing & Environment 
Committee. The comparative fig res for 2018/19 have therefore been restated 
to reflect this. The fig res that appeared in the 2018/19 Statement of Acco nts 
were as follows: 

Committee 

Policy & Reso rces 
Comm nities, Ho sing & Environment 
Heritage, C lt re & Leis re 
Strategic Planning, S stainability & Transportation 

Gross 
Expenditure 

£000 

62,187 
15,817 
10,096 
6,874 

2018/19 
Gross 

Income 
£000 

(52,890) 
(4,786) 
(4,353) 
(7,075) 

 et 
Expenditure 

£000 

9,297 
11,031 
5,743 
(201) 

Cost Of Services 94,974 (69,104) 25,870 

Other Operating Expendit re (Note 9) 
Financing and Investment Income and Expendit re 
(Note 10) 
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and 
Expendit re (Note 11) 

1,927 
2,040 

(698) 
(1,871) 

1,230 
170 

(28,821) 

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services (1,553) 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

MOVEME T I  RESERVES STATEME T 

For the years ending 31st March 2019 & 2020 

Current Year G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d

B
a
la
n
c
e

U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te
d

E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d
 G
F

B
a
la
n
c
e
s

C
a
p
it
a
l

R
e
c
e
ip
ts

R
e
s
e
rv
e

T
o
ta
l 
U
s
a
b
le

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

T
o
ta
l 
R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance at 1st April 2019 (Restated) 9,228 5,828 598 15,657 34,287 49,944 

Movement in Reserves during 
2019/20 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expendit re 4,179 0 0 4,179 7,635 11,814 
Adj stments between acco nting basis 
& f nding basis  nder reg lation (Note 
6) (2,286) 0 (49) (2,335) 2,335 0 

Movements between Reserves (2,302) 1,992 0 (310) 310 (0) 

Increase or Decrease in 2019/20 (409) 1,992 (49) 1,534 10,280 11,814 

Balance at 31st March 2020 8,818 7,820 549 17,193 44,565 61,758 

Comparative Year G
e
n
e
ra
l

F
u
n
d

B
a
la
n
c
e

E
a
rm
a
rk
e
d

G
F
 B
a
la
n
c
e
s

C
a
p
it
a
l

R
e
c
e
ip
ts

R
e
s
e
rv
e

T
o
ta
l 
U
s
a
b
le

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

(
R
e
s
ta
te
d
)

T
o
ta
l

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance at 1st April 2018 9,627 2,899 523 13,049 18,068 31,117 

Movement in Reserves during 
2018/19 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expendit re 1,558 0 1,558 17,269 18,827 
Adj stments between acco nting basis 
& f nding basis  nder reg lation (Note 
6) 2,381 (1,404) 75 1,052 (1,052) 0 

Movements between Reserves (4,333) 4,333 0 

Increase or Decrease in 2018/19 (394) 2,929 75 2,610 16,217 18,827 

Balance at 31st March 2019 
(Restated) 9,228 5,828 598 15,657 34,287 49,944 

The statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the 
different reserves held by the Co ncil, analysed into  sable reserves (i.e. those 
that can be applied to f nd expendit re or red ce local taxation) and other 
 n sable reserves. The statement shows how the movements in year of the 
a thority’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses inc rred in 
accordance with generally accepted acco nting practices and the stat tory 
adj stments req ired to ret rn to the amo nts chargeable to co ncil tax for the 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

year. The net increase/decrease line shows the stat tory general f nd) balance 
movements in the year following those adj stments. 

The balance at 31st March 2019 has been restated to reflect the addition of the 
Lockmeadow Car Park as a separate asset on the Balance Sheet, as part of 
Property, Plant & Eq ipment. The val e of the adj stment is £2.050m. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

BALA CE SHEET 

As at 31st March 2019 & 2020 

30th March 31st March 
2018 2019 31st March 

(Restated) (Restated)  otes 2020 
£000 £000 £000 

70,885 85,088 Property, Plant & Eq ipment 17 124,200 
19,976 23,014 Investment Property 18 23,270 
10,393 10,393 Heritage Assets 19 10,393 

477 564 Intangible Assets 654 
0 2,000 Long Term Investments 20 0 

40 83 Long Term Debtors 62 
101,771 121,142 Long Term Assets 158,579 

7,000 2,000 Short Term Investments 20 0 
110 97 Inventories 166 

14,291 19,654 Short Term Debtors 22 17,138 
10,244 11,184 Cash & Cash Eq ivalents 23 10,687 
31,645 32,935 Current Assets 27,991 

14,233 0 Short Term Borrowing 11,000 
959 22,347 Short Term Creditors 24 29,377 
296 1,559 Provisions 25 1,164 
521 521 Deferred Liability 27 517 

4,080 4,723 Capital Grants Receipts in 15 5,656 
Advance 

20,089 29,150 Current Liabilities 47,714 

1,348 707 Provisions 25 1,226 
184 259 Other Provisions 174 

3,057 2,536 Deferred Liability 27 2,020 
77,618 71,481 Other Long Term Liabilities 31 73,677 
82,207 74,983 Long Term Liabilities 77,098 

31,120 49,944  et Assets 61,758 

13,052 15,659 Usable Reserves 17,193 
18,068 34,285 Un sable Reserves 29 44,565 

31,120 49,944 Total Reserves 61,758 

A third balance sheet has been added to reflect the addition of the Lockmeadow 
car park as a separate asset. It had previo sly been incl ded as part of the 
market val ation. As the asset was in existence prior to 1st April 2018 and the 
val e itself (£2.050m) was considered to be material the third balance sheet was 
req ired. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

CASHFLOW STATEME T 

2018/19 
£000  otes 

2019/20 
£000 

(1,553) 

(8,612) 

2,179 

(7,988) 

5,431 
1,616 
(941) 

(10,244) 

Net (s rpl s) or deficit on the 
provision of services 
Adj stments to net s rpl s or 
deficit on the provision of 
services for non-cash 
movements 
Adj stments for items incl ded 
in the net s rpl s or deficit on 
the provision of services that 
are investing & financing 
activities 
 et cash flows from 
Operating activities 

Investing Activities 
Financing Activities 
 et increase or decrease in 
cash & cash equivalents 

Cash & cash eq ivalents at the 
beginning of the reporting period 

35 

36 

37 
38 

(4,179) 

(10,329) 

6,372 

(8,136) 

26,800 
(18,168) 

496 

(11,184) 

(11,184) 

Cash & cash equivalents at 
the end of the reporting 
period (10,687) 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

 OTES TO THE ACCOU TS 

1 – EXPE DITURE & FU DI G A ALYSIS 

For the years ending 31st March 2019 & 2020 

2018/19 (Restated) 
 et Expenditure 

in the 
Adjustments Comprehensive 

 et Expenditure between the Income & 
Chargeable to Funding and Expenditure 

the General Fund Accounting Basis Statement Committee (See note) 
£000 £000 £000 

6,774 (735) 6,039 Policy & Reso rces 
8,960 4,132 13,092 Comm nities, Ho sing & Environment 
1,778 5,163 6,941 Economic, Regeneration & Leis re 
(444) 243 (201) Strategic Planning & Infrastr ct re 

17,068 8,803 25,870  et Cost Of Services 

(16,239) (11,184) (27,423) Other Income & Expendit re 

 et 
Expenditure 

Chargeable to 
the General 

Fund 
£000 

11,603 
8,943 
1,889 
(473) 

21,962 

(28,430) 

2019/20 

Adjustments 
between the 
Funding and 
Accounting 

Basis 
£000 

(3,927) 
623 

2,109 
1,769 

575 

1,713 

 et Expenditure 
in the 

Comprehensive 
Income & 

Expenditure 
Statement 

£000 

7,675 
9,566 
3,999 
1,296 

22,535 

(26,717) 

829 (2,381) (1,553) (Surplus) or Deficit (6,470) 2,288 (4,182) 

12,526 Opening General F nd Balance 

(977) Less/Pl s S rpl s or (Deficit) on General 
F nd Balance in Year 

15,056 

2,597 

15,056 Closing General Fund Balance at 
31st March 

16,641 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

The Expendit re and F nding Analysis shows how ann al expendit re is  sed 
and f nded from reso rces (government grants, rents, co ncil tax and b siness 
rates) by local a thorities in comparison with those reso rces cons med or 
earned by a thorities in accordance with generally accepted acco nting 
practices. It also shows how this expendit re is allocated for decision making 
p rposes between the co ncil’s service committees. Income and expendit re 
acco nted for  nder generally accepted acco nting practices is presented more 
f lly in the Comprehensive Income and Expendit re Statement. 

 OTE TO THE EXPE DITURE & FU DI G A ALYSIS 

Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis 2019/20 

Adjustments from General Fund to Adjustments  et Change 
arrive at the Comprehensive for Capital for Pensions Other 
Income & Expenditure Statement Purposes Adjustments Differences Total 
amounts ( ote i) ( ote ii) ( ote iii) Adjustments 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Policy & Reso rces 1,481 1,673 (7,081) (3,927) 
Comm nities, Ho sing & Environment (1,877) 2,501 623 
Economic, Regeneration & Leis re 1,842 267 2,109 
Strategic Planning & Infrastr ct re 105 1,664 1,769 
 et Cost of Services 1,551 1,673 (2,649) 575 

Other income and expendit re from the 
Expendit re & F nding Analysis (1,551) (1,673) 4,937 1,713 

Difference between General Fund 
surplus or deficit and 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services (0) 0 2,288 2,288 

Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis 2018/19 

Adjustments from General Fund to Adjustments  et Change 
arrive at the Comprehensive for Capital for Pensions Other 
Income & Expenditure Statement Purposes Adjustments Differences Total 
amounts ( ote i) ( ote ii) ( ote iii) Adjustments 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Policy & Reso rces 
Comm nities, Ho sing & Environment 
Economic Regeneration & Leis re 
Strategic Planning & Infrastr ct re 

 et Cost of Services 

908 
1,835 
4,670 

(1,506) 
5,908 

1,366 

1,366 

(3,009) 
2,296 
493 

1,749 
1,529 

(735) 
4,132 
5,163 

243 
8,802 

Other income and expendit re from the 
Expendit re & F nding Analysis (5,908) (1,366) (3,910) (11,184) 

Difference between General Fund 
surplus or deficit and 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services (0) 0 (2,381) (2,381) 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

 ote – Change of Committee Structure 

The Co ncil committee str ct re changed in 2019/20 to reflect the priorities set 
o t in the newly adopted Strategic Plan. As part of the restr ct re, the 
Heritage, C lt re and Leis re Committee was decommissioned, and the 
Economic Regeneration and Leis re Committee was created. A n mber of b dget 
heads were also reallocated to the Comm nities, Ho sing & Environment 
Committee. The comparative fig res for 2018/19 have therefore been restated 
to reflect this. The fig res that appeared in the 2018/19 Statement of Acco nts 
were as follows: 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

Committee 

Policy & Reso rces 
Comm nities, Ho sing & 
Environment 
Heritage, C lt re & Leis re 
Strategic Planning, S stainability & 
Transportation 

 et 
Expenditure 

Chargeable to 
the General 

Fund 
£000 

7,517 
8,052 

1,942 
(444) 

2018/19 

Adjustments 
between the 
Funding and 
Accounting 

Basis 
£000 

1,780 
2,979 

3,800 
243 

 et Expenditure 
in the 

Comprehensive 
Income & 

Expenditure 
Statement 

£000 

9,297 
11,031 

5,742 
(201) 

 et Cost Of Services 17,067 8,802 25,870 

Other Income & Expendit re (16,239) (11,184) (27,423) 

(Surplus) or Deficit 828 (2,382) (1,553) 

 ote to the Expenditure & Funding Analysis 

Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis 2018/19 

Adjustments from General Fund to Adjustments  et Change 
arrive at the Comprehensive for Capital for Pensions Other 
Income & Expenditure Statement Purposes Adjustments Differences Total 
amounts ( ote i) ( ote ii) ( ote iii) Adjustments 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Policy & Reso rces 3,175 1,366 (2,761) 1,780 
Comm nities, Ho sing & Environment 1,856 1,123 2,979 
Heritage, C lt re & Leis re 2,382 1,418 3,800 
Strategic Planning, S stainability & 
Transportation (1,506) 1,749 243 
 et Cost of Services 5,907 1,366 1,529 8,802 

Other income and expendit re from the 
Expendit re & F nding Analysis (5,908) (1,366) (3,910) (11,184) 

Difference between General Fund 
surplus or deficit and 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services 0 0 (2,381) (2,382) 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

 ote i – Adjustments for Capital Purposes 

• This col mn adj sts Policy & Reso rces Committee for the stat tory 
adj stments p t thro gh in respect of depreciation, amortisation of 
intangible assets, reven e f nding from capital  nder stat te, and other 
capital charges. 

 ote ii –  et Charge for Pensions Adjustments 

• This col mn adj sts Policy & Reso rces Committee for the stat tory 
adj stments p t thro gh in respect of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension 
related income and expendit re. 

 ote iii – Other Differences 

• This col mn adj sts the service committees for vario s recharges s ch as 
accommodation, telephones, staff recharges and IT recharges as when 
they are reported they only incl de direct costs. 

EXPE DITURE A D I COME A ALYSED BY  ATURE 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Expenditure 

Employee Benefit Expenses 
Other Services Expenses 
Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment 
Interest Payments 
Precepts & Levies 
Gain/(Loss) on the Disposal of Assets 
Total Expenditure 

Income 

Fees, Charges & Other Service Income 
Interest & Investment Income 
Income from Co ncil Tax & NDR 
Government Grants & Contrib tions 
Total Income 

22,062 
88,771 
7,119 
110 

1,811 
(1,446) 
118,427 

(24,170) 
(220) 

(45,552) 
(50,037) 

(119,980) 

24,354 
84,723 
4,294 
135 

1,936 
(2,980) 
112,462 

(27,239) 
(217) 

(43,821) 
(45,364) 

(116,641) 

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services (1,553) (4,179) 

The increase in employee benefit expenses arises in part from additional pension 
costs following the McClo d case and s bseq ent r ling relating to age 
discrimination within pension schemes. F rther detail regarding this is provided 
within note 31. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

2 - ACCOU TI G POLICIES 

General Principles 

The Statement of Acco nts s mmarises the Co ncil’s transactions for the 
2019/20 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2020. The 
Co ncil is req ired to prepare an ann al Statement of Acco nts by the Acco nts 
& A dit Reg lations (England) 2015 which req ire the acco nts to be prepared in 
accordance with proper acco nting practices. These practices primarily comprise 
the Code of Practice on Local A thority Acco nting in the UK 2019/20, s pported 
by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

The following acco nting concepts have been given precedence in 
the preparation of the acco nts: 

• Going concern 
• Primacy of legislative req irements 

The acco nting convention adopted in the Statement of Acco nts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the reval ation of certain categories of non-c rrent 
assets and financial instr ments. 

Revenue Recognition 

In accordance with IFRS 15, reven e is acco nted for at the point at which 
services are delivered to service recipients, not necessarily when cash payments 
are made or received. In partic lar: 

• Reven e from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or 
the provision of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services 
are transferred to the service recipient in accordance with the 
performance obligations in the contract. 

• Expenses in relation to services received (incl ding services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expendit re when the services are received 
rather than when payments are made. 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is 
acco nted for respectively as income and expendit re on the basis of the 
effective interest rate for the relevant financial instr ment rather than the 
cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

• Where reven e and expendit re have been recognised b t cash has not 
been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amo nt is 
recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the 
balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to reven e for the 
income that might not be collected. 

• Accr als are recognised where the val e exceeds £10,000. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Income from Council Tax and  on-Domestic (Business) Rates: 

Reven e relating to co ncil tax and b siness rates is meas red at the f ll 
amo nt receivable (net of any impairment losses) as they are non-contract al, 
non-exchange transactions. Reven e is recognised when it is probable that the 
economic benefits of the transaction will flow to the Co ncil and the amo nt of 
reven e can be meas red reliably. 

The co ncil tax and b siness rate income incl ded in the CIES is the accr ed 
income for the year, which consists of: 

• The Co ncil’s co ncil tax precept and b siness rate share from the 
Collection F nd i.e. the amo nt billed for the year; and 

• The Co ncil’s share of the act al co ncil tax and b siness rate s rpl s or 
deficit on the Collection F nd at the end of the c rrent year, adj sted for 
the Co ncil’s share of the s rpl s or deficit on the f nd at the preceding 
year end that has not been distrib ted or recovered in the c rrent year. 

The latter is not req ired by reg lation to be credited to the General F nd and so 
is taken to the Collection F nd Adj stment Acco nt and incl ded as a reconciling 
item in the Movement in Reserves Statement on the General F nd balance. 

The Co ncil as billing a thority recognises a creditor in its balance sheet for cash 
collected from taxpayers and b sinesses on behalf of major preceptors b t not 
yet paid to them, or a debtor for cash paid to major preceptors. 

Overheads & Support Services 

The costs of s pport services and overheads are charged to those that benefit 
from the s pply or service in accordance with the absorption costing principle. 
The f ll cost of overheads and s pport services is shared between  sers in 
proportion to the benefits received. 

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates 
& Errors 

Prior period adj stments may arise as res lt of a change in acco nting policies 
or to correct a material error. Changes in acco nting estimates are acco nted for 
prospectively, i.e. in the c rrent or financial years affected by the change and do 
not give rise to a prior period adj stment. 

Changes in acco nting policies are only made when req ired by proper 
acco nting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant 
information abo t the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the 
Co ncil’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it 
is applied retrospectively ( nless stated otherwise) by adj sting opening 
balances and comparative amo nts for the prior period as if the new policy had 
always been applied. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Material errors discovered in prior period fig res are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amo nts for the prior period. 

Value Added Tax 

VAT payable is incl ded as an expense only to the extent that it is not 
recoverable from Her Majesty’s Reven e & C stoms. VAT receivable is excl ded 
from income. 

F rther acco nting policies can be fo nd thro gho t these acco nts with the 
notes to which they relate. 

ROU DI G 

It is not the Co ncil’s policy to adj st for immaterial cross -casting differences 
between the main statements and disclos re notes. 

3 - CRITICAL JUDGEME TS I  APPLYI G ACCOU TI G POLICIES 

In applying the acco nting policies, the Co ncil has had to make certain 
j dgements abo t complex transactions or those involving  ncertainty abo t 
f t re events. The critical j dgements made in the Statement of Acco nts are: 

• There is a high degree of  ncertainty abo t f t re levels of f nding for 
local government. However the Co ncil has determined that this 
 ncertainty is not yet s fficient to provide an indication of the assets of 
the Co ncil might be impaired as a res lt of a need to close facilities and 
red ce levels of service provision. 

• A comprehensive review of all property leases was  ndertaken at the end 
of 2017/18 to determine whether they sho ld be classified as an operating 
lease (which are off-Balance Sheet), or a finance lease (which is on-
Balance Sheet). The res lt of this review was that the Co ncil c rrently 
has no property leases which need to be classified as finance leases. 

• A review of the contract for waste collection has determined that the 
contract al arrangements do not meet the req irements of IFRIC 4. 

• It has been determined that an arrangement between the Co ncil and the 
managing contractor of the Leis re Centre is classified as a service 
concession arrangement. Under the terms of the arrangement the Co ncil 
makes reg lar payments over a 15 year period to cover the costs of major 
ref rbishment works which have been  ndertaken by the contractor. 

• A j dgement has been made as to which of the co ncil’s assets fall  nder 
the category of Heritage Assets, and the appropriate basis for val ation 
and disclos re. The o tcome of this j dgement is reflected in the 
Heritage Assets note. 

• A review of operational assets not reval ed this year has been  ndertaken 
to determine whether or not there co ld have been a material movement 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

in the asset val es. Using g idance from the external val er, it has been 
concl ded that the assets are materially fairly stated. 

• As a wholly owned s bsidiary of the co ncil, Maidstone Property Holdings 
Limited falls within the gro p bo ndary on the gro nds of control and 
significant infl ence in line with the Code. However the Co ncil’s interests 
in aggregate are not s fficiently material to warrant prod cing 
consolidated financial statements when reviewing both q antitative and 
q alitative information. For this reason, gro p acco nts are not deemed 
necessary within these statements. 

• The Co ncil has determined that it does not need to prepare gro p 
acco nts to incl de Cobtree Manor Estate Tr st, on the gro nds that the 
Co ncil neither controls, jointly controls, nor has significant infl ence over 
the Tr st. Co ncillors who sit on the Cobtree Manor Estate Charity 
Committee act on behalf of the Tr st in their decision making, rather than 
in the interests of Maidstone Boro gh Co ncil. The objectives of the Tr st 
derive from a separate tr st, the Cobtree Charity Tr st, and cannot be 
infl enced by the Co ncil’s objectives. The Co ncil does not control the 
Tr st in its capacity as an investor, it is not exposed to variable ret rns 
from its involvement with the Tr st, and the Tr st does not provide any 
services which the co ncil wo ld otherwise be obliged to provide. The 
co ncil provides services to the Tr st in terms of the day to day 
administration of its affairs and gro nds maintenance of Cobtree Manor 
Park. The Co ncil recharges the cost of providing these services to 
Cobtree Manor Park, b t does not seek to generate a s rpl s from the 
arrangement. 

• In the latter part of the year 2019/20 the Covid-19 pandemic had a 
profo nd impact across service areas, b sinesses and the wider 
comm nity testing the Co ncil’s b siness contin ity planning 
arrangements. It will, in all likelihood, also have a significant adverse 
impact on the Co ncil’s finances and, in t rn, reserve balances. This is 
disc ssed in more detail in the Narrative Report. 

There will be n mero s iss es that will impact on local a thorities as a 
res lt of the Covid-19 pandemic. Specific areas within the financial 
statements incl de: 

- Val ation  ncertainty in respect of property, plant and eq ipment, 
investment property and heritage assets. 

- Pension F nd Assets and Liabilities – The scheme has been assessed 
by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of act aries. F rther 
information relating to the pension scheme can be fo nd in Note 31. 

- Collectability of debt – It is likely that Covid-19 containment meas res 
will res lt in an adverse impact on the Co ncil’s ability to collect debt. 
The impairment allowances for do btf l debts have been reviewed and 
increased in light of this risk. F rther information can be fo nd in Note 
22. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

4 - ASSUMPTIO S MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE & OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATIO  U CERTAI TY 

The Statement of Acco nts contains estimated fig res that are based on ass mptions made by the Co ncil abo t the f t re 
or that are otherwise  ncertain. Estimates are made taking into acco nt historical experience, c rrent trends and other 
relevant factors. However, beca se balances cannot be determined with certainty, act al res lts co ld be materially different 
from the ass mptions and estimates. 

The items in the Co ncil’s financial statements at 31st March 2020 for which there is a significant risk of material adj stment 
in the forthcoming year are as follows: 

Balance Source of Uncertainty Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 

Property 
valuations 

Property val ations are based on market 
prices and are periodically reviewed to 
ens re that the Co ncil does not materially 
misstate its non-c rrent assets and 
investment properties. 

The Co ncil’s external val ers provided 
val ations for the Co ncil’s entire 
investment portfolio and a proportion of its 
operational portfolio. The remaining balance 
of operational properties was also reviewed 
to ens re val es were reflective of c rrent 
appropriate val es. 

The o tbreak of Covid-19 has impacted 
global financial markets and as at the 
val ation date, less weight can be attached 
to previo s market evidence to inform 
opinions of val e. There is an  nprecedented 
set of circ mstances on which to base a 

A red ction in the estimated val ations wo ld 
res lt in red ctions to the Reval ation Reserve 
and / or a loss recorded as appropriate in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expendit re 
Statement (CIES). If the val e of the Co ncil’s 
property portfolio were to red ce by 10%, this 
wo ld res lt in a change of approximately £6.5m. 

An increase in estimated val ations wo ld res lt 
in increases to the Reval ation Reserve and / or 
reversals of previo s negative reval ations to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expendit re 
Statement and / or gains being recorded as 
appropriate in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expendit re Statement. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Balance Source of Uncertainty Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 

j dgement. 

Val ations are therefore reported on the 
basis of ‘material val ation  ncertainty’ as 
per the RICS Red Book Global. 
Conseq ently, less certainty and a higher 
degree of ca tion sho ld be attached to the 
val ation. At the c rrent time, it is not 
possible to acc rately predict the longevity 
and severity of the impact of Covid-19 on 
the economy. Therefore, val es have been 
based on the sit ation prior to Covid-19, on 
the ass mption that val es will be restored 
when the real estate market becomes more 
fl id. 

The estimated remaining  sef l life of all 
operational assets is reviewed ann ally 
based on the advice from the Co ncil 
external val ers. 

Depreciation Assets are depreciated over  sef l lives 
which are based on the level of repairs and 
maintenance that will be inc rred in relation 
to individ al assets. If c rrent spending on 
repairs and maintenance were to be 
red ced, this co ld affect a change to  sef l 
lives assigned to the assets. 

Depreciation charges for operational b ildings will 
change in direct relation to changes in estimated 
fair val e. F rthermore, if the  sef l life of assets 
is red ced the ann al depreciation charge 
increases and the carrying amo nt of the asset 
falls. It is estimated that the ann al depreciation 
charge for b ildings wo ld increase by £0.6m for 
every year that  sef l lives had to be red ced. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Balance Source of Uncertainty Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 

Pensions Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions A 0.1% increase in the disco nt rate will red ce 
Liability depends on several complex j dgements 

relating to the disco nt rate 
 sed, the rate at which salaries are 
projected to increase, changes in retirement 
ages, mortality rates and expected 
ret rns on Pension F nd investments. 
The Co ncil has engaged Barnett 
Waddingham as its cons lting act ary to 
provide expert advice abo t the ass mptions 
to be applied. The ongoing impact of the 
Covid19 pandemic has created  ncertainty 
s rro nding illiq id asset val es. As s ch, 
the Pension F nd property and 
infrastr ct re allocations as at 31 March 
2020 are diffic lt to val e according to 
preferred acco nting policy. 

We are aware that the Kent Pension F nd 
intends to disclos re a ‘material val ation 
 ncertainty’ in relation to the directly held 
property and pooled property f nds within 
the assets of the pension f nd. This is d e to 
the level of  ncertainty since the o tbreak of 
Covid-19. The Co ncil’s share of these 
assets is material and therefore the 
 ncertainty has been disclosed. 

the net pension liability by £3.4m; 
• A 0.1% increase in the ass med level of 
pension increases will increase the net pension 
liability by £3.2m; 
• An increase of one year in longevity will 
increase the net pension liability by £7.6m. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Balance Source of Uncertainty Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 

Arrears At 31st March 2020 the Co ncil had a 
balance of s ndry debtors for £13.9m. A 
review of significant balances s ggested that 
an impairment allowance for bad debts of 
£4.1m was appropriate. The allowance has 
been increased this year given the increased 
risk of non-payment arising from Covid 19 
lockdown meas res. Uncertainty remains as 
to whether or not s ch an allowance is 
s fficient. 

If collection rates were to deteriorate, a 50% 
increase in the level of impairment req ired for 
do btf l debts wo ld req ire an additional £2m 
to be set aside as an allowance. 

 on- The Collection F nd is liable for potential If the yield losses from s ccessf l appeals were 
Domestic losses arising from appeals against the to increase by 10%, an additional provision of 
Rates rateable val e of b siness premises. A £0.532m wo ld be req ired overall, and the 
Appeals provision of £5.324m has therefore been 

created to recognise c rrent and backdated 
appeals. The co ncil’s share of the provision 
of £2.130m is reflected on the balance 
sheet. This is deemed to be appropriate as it 
is based on a detailed analysis of information 
provided by the VOA. 

There is  ncertainty regarding the val e of 
potential losses against the 2017 val ation 
list. A provision of 2.1p per po nd of 
rateable val e is reflected in the above total. 

co ncil’s share of the provision wo ld increase by 
£0.213m. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Balance Source of Uncertainty Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 

Brexit The UK stopped being a member of the 
E ropean Union (EU) at 23:00 GMT on 31 
Jan ary 2020. However, significant 
 ncertainty remains concerning the UK’s 
f t re relationship with the EU. C rrent 
ass mptions  nderlying asset val ations and 
pensions liability ass me no significant 
impact from Brexit. 

Depending on the circ mstances of Britain’s 
depart re from the EU, it is possible that asset 
val es may fall and/or that ass mptions 
 nderlying the assessment of pensions liabilities 
may alter. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

5 - ACCOU TI G STA DARDS THAT HAVE BEE  ISSUED BUT HAVE  OT YET 
BEE  ADOPTED 

International Acco nting Standard 8 req ires the Co ncil to disclose the expected impact 
of new standards that have been iss ed, b t not yet adopted. 

Acco nting Standards that have been iss ed, b t not yet adopted incl de: 

• Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Vent res: Long-term 
Interests in Associates and Joint Vent res 

• Ann al Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle 
• Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, C rtailment or 

Settlement. 

None of the above standards, when adopted, are expected to have a material impact on 
the Co ncil’s financial statements. 

IFRS 16 Leases – Agreed to defer the implementation for one year. This will mean the 
effective date for implementation is now 1 April 2021. It is not c rrently possible to 
estimate the impact of these changes. 

6 - ADJUSTME TS BETWEE  ACCOU TI G BASIS & FU DI G BASIS U DER 
REGULATIO S 

This note details the adj stments that are made to total comprehensive income and 
expendit re recognised by the Co ncil in the year in accordance with proper acco nting 
practice to the reso rces that are specified by stat tory provisions as being available to 
the Co ncil to meet f t re capital and reven e expendit re. 

General Fund Balance 

The General F nd is the stat tory f nd into which all the receipts of the Co ncil are 
req ired to be paid and o t of which all liabilities of the Co ncil are to be met, except to 
the extent that stat tory r les might provide otherwise. These r les can also specify the 
year in which liabilities and payments sho ld impact on the General F nd balance, which 
is not necessarily in accordance with proper acco nting practice. The General F nd 
balance therefore s mmarises the reso rces that the Co ncil is stat torily empowered to 
spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of reso rces that the 
Co ncil is req ired to recover) at the end of the financial year. 

Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other 
assets, which are restricted by stat te from being  sed other than to f nd new capital 
expendit re or to be set aside to finance historical capital expendit re. The balance on 
the reserve shows the reso rces that have yet to be applied for these p rposes at the 
year-end. 

Capital Grants Unapplied 

The Capital Grants Unapplied Acco nt (Reserve) holds the grants and contrib tions 
received towards capital projects for which the Co ncil has met the conditions that wo ld 
otherwise req ire repayment of the monies b t which have yet to be applied to meet 
expendit re. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expendit re 
against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which it can take place. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

2019/20 Usable Reserves 

General Capital 
Fund Receipts 

balance Reserve 
£000 £000 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 

Amo nts by which income and expendit re incl ded in 
the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement 
are different from the year calc lated in accordance with 
stat tory req irements: 

Pensions Costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions 
Reserve) 

Co ncil Tax and NDR (transfers to or from the 
Collection F nd Adj stment Acco nt) 

Holiday Pay (transferred to the Acc m lated Absences 
Acco nt) 

Reversal of entries incl ded in the S rpl s or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services in relation to capital 
expendit re (these items are charged to the Capital 
Adj stment Acco nt) 
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital 
Resources 

Transfer of non-c rrent asset sale proceeds from 
reven e to the Capital Receipts Reserve 

Stat tory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer 
from the Capital Adj stment Acco nt) 

Capital expendit re finance from reven e balances 
(transfer to the Capital Adj stment Acco nt) 
Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital 
Resources 

Adjustments to Capital Resources 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital 
expendit re 

Application of capital grants to finance capital 
expendit re 
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 

4,264 

(910) 

(5) 

5,316 

8,665 0 

(1,384) 1,963 

(520) 

(4,636) 

(6,540) 1,963 

(2,012) 

(4,411) 

(4,411) (2,012) 

Total Adjustments (2,286) (49) 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

2018/19 Comparative Figures Usable Reserves 
General Capital 
Fund Receipts 

balance Reserve 
£000 £000 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 

Amo nts by which income and expendit re incl ded in 
the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement 
are different from the year calc lated in accordance with 
stat tory req irements: 

Pensions Costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions 
Reserve) 

Co ncil Tax and NDR (transfers to or from the 
Collection F nd Adj stment Acco nt) 

Holiday Pay (transferred to the Acc m lated Absences 
Acco nt) 

Reversal of entries incl ded in the S rpl s or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services in relation to capital 
expendit re (these items are charged to the Capital 
Adj stment Acco nt) 
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital 
Resources 

Transfer of non-c rrent asset sale proceeds from 
reven e to the Capital Receipts Reserve 

Stat tory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer 
from the Capital Adj stment Acco nt) 

Capital expendit re finance from reven e balances 
(transfer to the Capital Adj stment Acco nt) 
Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital 
Resources 

Adjustments to Capital Resources 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital 
expendit re 

Application of capital grants to finance capital 
expendit re 
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 

3,301 

(1,101) 

(5) 

6,521 

8,717 0 

(698) 816 

(521) 

(3,749) 

(4,968) 816 

(741) 

(1,367) 

(1,367) (741) 

Total Adjustments 2,380 75 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Accounting Policy Charges to Revenue for  on Current Assets 

Services, s pport services and trading acco nts are debited with the following 
amo nts to record the cost of holding non-c rrent assets d ring the year: 

• Depreciation attrib table to the assets  sed by the relevant service 

• Reval ation & impairment losses on assets  sed by the service where 
there are no acc m lated gains in the Reval ation Reserve against which 
the losses can be written off. 

• Amortisation of intangible non-c rrent assets attrib table to the service 

The Co ncil is not req ired to raise co ncil tax to f nd depreciation, reval ation 
and impairment losses or amortisation. 

7 – EARMARKED RESERVES 

Within the General F nd balance of £16.838m at the end of the year the Co ncil 
maintains a n mber of Earmarked Reserves for specific p rposes as follows: 

31st March 
2019 
£000 

Contributions 
to/from 
Balances 

£000 

31st March 
2020 
£000 

Local Plan Review 
Neighbo rhood Planning 
Planning Appeals 
Trading Acco nts 
Civil Parking Enforcement 
F t re Capital Expendit re 
F t re F nding Press res 
Homelessness Prevention & Temporary 
Accommodation 
B siness Rates Growth 
Occ pational Health & Safety 
Lockmeadow Complex 

200 
64 

300 
31 

419 
431 

0 

700 
3,682 

0 
0 

109 
11 

(14) 

(254) 

1,589 

(19) 
205 
31 

335 

309 
75 

286 
32 

164 
431 

1,589 

681 
3,887 

31 
335 

Total Earmarked Reserves 5,828 1,993 7,820 
Unallocated Balances 9,228 (409) 8,819 

Total General Fund Reserves 15,056 1,583 16,638 

Description of Earmarked Reserves: 

Local Plan Review – this is f nding set aside to s pport the review of the Local 
Plan, d e to be completed in 2022. 

 eighbourhood Planning – this is f nding from central government to s pport 
the prod ction of local Neighbo rhood Plans. 

Trading Accounts – these are ring-fenced s rpl ses from trading areas within 
the Co ncil that by stat te can only be  sed within these areas. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Planning Appeals – This reserve was created as a contingency for potential 
costs of f t re planning appeals. This is in addition to the provision held for 
costs relating to known appeals. 

Civil Parking Enforcement – These are ring-fenced s rpl ses from the on-
street parking for re-investment within parking services 

Housing Prevention & Temporary Accommodation – These are government 
grants will be  sed to f nd homelessness prevention initiatives and a sinking 
f nd for temporary accommodation repairs and maintenance. 

Future Capital Expenditure – These are f nds set-aside from balances for  se 
on f t re capital projects. 

Future Funding Pressures – This reserve holds f nds set aside as contingency 
for f t re local government f nding reforms. 

Business Rates Growth – these are locally retained rates from the B siness 
Rates Pool and Pilot that the Co ncil has participated in d ring 2018/19, which 
will be  sed to s pport local initiatives. 

Occupational Health & Safety – This reserve was created to hold f nding set 
aside in case the need sho ld arise to make a prosec tion  nder occ pational 
health and safety legislation. It replaces the ann al b dget previo sly held for 
this p rpose. 

Lockmeadow Complex – This reserve contains amo nts set aside for 
smoothing of rental income from the Lockmeadow complex, based on projected 
ann al fl ct ations over the medi m term 

Accounting Policy Reserves 

The Co ncil sets aside specific amo nts as reserves for f t re policy p rposes or 
to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amo nts o t of 
the General F nd Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When 
expendit re to be financed from a reserve is inc rred, it is charged to the 
appropriate service in that year to score against the S rpl s or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement. 
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General F nd Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against co ncil 
tax for the expendit re. 

The Co ncil has created a series of Earmarked Reserves to manage more 
effectively the reso rces set aside for specific activities. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the acco nting process for non-c rrent 
assets, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent  sable reso rces 
for the Co ncil – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 

8 - MATERIAL ITEMS OF I COME & EXPE SE 

There are no material items of income and expendit re that are not detailed in 
the notes below. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

9 - OTHER OPERATI G EXPE DITURE 

These are corporate items of income and expendit re that cannot reasonably be 
allocated or apportioned to services. 

2018/19 2019/20 
£000 £000 

Parish Co ncil precepts 1,811 1,936 
Levies 116 116 
(Gains)/losses on the disposal of non-
c rrent assets (698) (355) 

1,228 1,698 

10 - FI A CI G A D I VESTME T I COME & EXPE DITURE 

These are corporate items of income and expendit re arising from the Co ncil’s 
involvement in financial instr ments and similar transactions involving interest 
and investment properties. 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Interest payable and similar charges 
Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit 
Liability 
Interest receivable and similar income 
Income & Expendit re in relation to 
investment properties and changes in their 
fair val e 

105 

1,935 
(221) 

(1,649) 

134 

1,673 
(217) 

(2,256) 
169 (666) ` 

11 - TAXATIO  &  O -SPECIFIC GRA T I COMES 

This note consolidates all the grants and contrib tions receivable, incl ding 
those that cannot be identified to partic lar service expendit re. 

Credited to Taxation &  on Specific 
Grant Income 2018/19 

£000 
2019/20 

£000 

Co ncil tax income 
Income from Retained B siness Rates 
Tariff Payable 
Levy Payable 
Non-ringfenced Government Grants 

17,354 
26,971 

(18,602) 
(120) 
3,218 

18,180 
21,918 

(19,028) 
(110) 
6,788 

Total 28,821 27,747 

Credited to Services 

Ho sing Benefit S bsidy 
Non-Domestic Rates - Cost of Collection 
Co ncil Tax Administration 
Other Grants 

45,834 
206 
150 
591 

38,958 
205 
148 

1,695 
Total 46,782 41,005 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

In 2019/20 Income from Retained B siness Rates has benefited from the 
Co ncil’s participation in the Kent B siness Rates Pool, as explained in note 2 to 
the Collection F nd Statement. 

Accounting Policy Government Grants & Contributions 

Whether paid on acco nt, by instalments or in arrears, government grants, third 
party contrib tions and donations are recognised as d e to the Co ncil when 
there is a reasonable ass rance that: 

• The Co ncil will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

• The grants and contrib tions will be received. 

Amo nts recognised as d e to the Co ncil are not credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expendit re Statement  ntil conditions attached to the grant or 
contrib tion have been satisfied. Conditions are stip lations that specify that the 
f t re economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acq ired 
 sing the grant or condition are req ired to be cons med by the recipient as 
specified, or f t re economic benefits or service potential m st be ret rned to 
the transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contrib tions for which conditions have not been 
satisfied are carried on the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are 
satisfied, the grant or contrib tion is credited to the relevant service line 
(attrib table reven e grants and contrib tions) or Taxation & Non-Specific Grant 
Income (non-ringfenced reven e grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re 
Statement, they are reversed o t of the General F nd Balance in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be  sed to finance capital 
expendit re, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has 
been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adj stment Acco nt. Amo nts in the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adj stment 
Acco nt once they have been applied to f nd capital expendit re. 

12 - MEMBERS’ ALLOWA CES 

The amo nt of Members Allowances paid d ring 2019/20 totalled £359,506 
(£355,578 in 2018/19). 

The Co ncil also prod ces a statement, in accordance with provision 1021 – 
15(3) of the Local A thorities (Members Allowance) (England) Reg lations 2003, 
giving details of allowances paid to Members for the year. This can be viewed on 
the Co ncil’s website: 
http://www.maidstone.gov. k/home/primary-services/co ncil-and-
democracy/additional-areas/b dgets-and-spending/tier-3/co ncillor-
allowances#co ncillor_allowances 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

13 – OFFICERS REMU ERATIO  

The rem neration paid to the Co ncil’s senior employees is as follows: 

2019/20 

£000 

S
a
la
ry
 (
I
n
c
lu
d
in
g

F
e
e
s
)

£000 

O
th
e
r 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
,

A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
s
 &
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 i
n
 K
in
d
 

£000 

T
o
ta
l

R
e
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 P
e
n
s
io
n

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

£000 

P
e
n
s
io
n

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

£000 

T
o
ta
l

R
e
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 P
e
n
s
io
n

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

Chief Exec tive 148 3 150 21 171 
Director of Finance & B siness 
Improvement 105 1 106 15 121 
Director of Regeneration & 
Place 105 1 106 15 121 

Director of Mid-Kent Services 94 1 96 13 109 

S
a
la
ry
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 F
e
e
s
)
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e
r 
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n
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A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
s

&
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2018/19 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Chief Exec tive 127 9 136 19 155 
Director of Finance & B siness 
Improvement 102 1 103 14 117 
Director of Regeneration & Place 102 2 104 14 118 
Director of Mid-Kent Services 90 2 92 13 105 

Senior Officers are defined as those who sit on the Corporate Leadership Team. 
There are no other officers who report directly to the Chief Exec tive and receive 
more than £50,000 rem neration for the year. 

The Chief Exec tive receives additional rem neration to reflect her role as the 
Co ncil’s Ret rning Officer d ring elections. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

The Director of Mid-Kent Services is jointly f nded with Swale and T nbridge 
Wells Boro gh Co ncils, each making eq al contrib tions. Therefore, Maidstone’s 
share of the salary is one-third of the val e above (£36,000). 

The Monitoring Officer (Head of Mid Kent Legal Services) also sits on the 
Corporate Leadership Team b t is paid by Swale Boro gh Co ncil. Details of her 
rem neration are therefore within their acco nts. 

The Co ncil’s other employees receiving more than £50,000 rem neration for 
the year (excl ding employer’s pension contrib tions) were paid the following 
amo nts: 

Remuneration Banding 
2018/19  o. of 
Employees 

2019/20  o. of 
Employees 

£50,000 - £54,999 
£55,000 - £59,999 
£60,000 - £64,999 
£65,000 - £69,999 
£70,000 - £74,999 
£75,000 - £79,999 
£80,000 - £84,999 
£85,000 - £89,999 
£90,000 - £94,999 

5 
7 
4 
3 
1 
0 
3 
0 
0 

8 
5 
5 
3 
2 
2 
2 
1 
0 

Exit Packages 

The n mber of exit packages with total cost per band and the total cost of the 
comp lsory and other red ndancies are set o t in the table below: 

Exit Package Cost  umber of Total number of Total cost of exit 
Band (including compulsory  umber of other exit packages by packages in each 
special payments) redundancies departures agreed cost band band 

2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 

£000 £000 

£0 - £20,000 0 4 0 2 0 6 0 36 

£20,001 - £40,000 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£40,001 - £80,000 0 1 2 0 2 1 121 24 

£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 1 5 2 2 2 7 121 60 

14 - EXTER AL AUDIT COSTS 

The Co ncil has inc rred the following costs in relation to the a dit of the 
Statement of Acco nts, certification of grant claims and to non-a dit services 
provided by the Co ncil’s external a ditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Fees payable with regard to external 
a dit services carried o t by the 
appointed a ditor for the year 
Rebate from P blic Sector A dit 
Appointments Ltd. 
Fees payable for the certification of grant 
claims and ret rns d ring the year 

38 

0 

20 

46 

(5) 

22 
Total 58 63 

15 – CAPITAL GRA TS RECEIPTS I  ADVA CE 

The Co ncil has received a n mber of grants, contrib tions and donations that 
have yet to be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them 
that will req ire the monies or property to be ret rned to the giver. The balances 
at the year-end are as follows: 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Balance at start of year: 

Grants Received 

F nding  sed for capital expendit re 

4,080 

2,010 

(1,367) 

4,723 

5,439 

(4,507) 

Balance at end of year: 4,723 5,656 

The majority of the balance (£3.758m) relates to Section 106 monies held by 
the Co ncil for f t re  se. There is also a f rther £1.46m held for disabled 
facilities grants which is an ongoing area of work for the Co ncil. 

16 - RELATED PARTIES 

The Co ncil is req ired to disclose material transactions with related parties – 
bodies or individ als that have the potential to control or infl ence the Co ncil or 
to be controlled or infl enced by the Co ncil. Disclos re of these transactions 
allows readers to assess the extent to which the Co ncil might have been 
constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have sec red the 
ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Co ncil. 

Central Government 

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the 
Co ncil- it is responsible for providing the stat tory framework within which the 
Co ncil operates, and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the 
Co ncil has with other parties (e.g. co ncil tax bills, ho sing benefits). Grants 
received from government departments are set o t in the s bjective analysis in 
Note 1 – the Expendit re & F nding Analysis. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Members and Senior Officers 

Members of the Co ncil have direct control over the Co ncil’s financial and 
operating policies. The total of Members’ Allowances paid in 2019/20 is shown in 
Note 12. 

All Members and Senior Officers were req ired to complete a declaration of 
interests that incl ded details of any finance-related transactions with the 
Co ncil. There were no declarations of significance. 

The Director of Regeneration and Place and Head of Ho sing and Comm nity 
Services are both Directors of Maidstone Property Holdings Ltd, which is a wholly 
owned s bsidiary of the Co ncil. The Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, 
reflects £169,094 (2018/19, £75,313) which is payable from Maidstone Property 
Holdings to Maidstone Boro gh Co ncil, relating to income and expendit re for 
the 2019/20 financial year. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

17 - PROPERTY, PLA T & EQUIPME T 

Movements on Balances 

Movements in 2019/20 

Cost or Valuations 
At 1st April 2019 
Additions 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) recognised in 
the Reval ation Reserve 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) recognised in 
the S rpl s/Deficit on the Provision of Services 
Derecognition of assets 
Other movements in cost or val ation 
At 31st March 2020 

Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment 
At 1st April 2019 
Depreciation charge 

Depreciation written o t to the Reval ation Reserve 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) recognised in 
the S rpl s/Deficit on the Provision of Services 
Derecognition of assets 
At 31st March 2020 

 et Book Value 

£000 

4,352 
517 

0 

0 
0 

204 
5,073 

I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

(3,375) 
A
s
s
e
ts

(263) 

0 

0 
0 

(3,638) 

£000 

67,137 
23,681 

3,241 

(261) 
(351) 
1,172 

94,619 

(4,007) 
(2,208) 

2,343 
L
a
n
d
 &

B
u
il
d
in
g
s

0 
0 

(3,872) 

£000 

13,898 
1,128 

0 

0 
(857) 
2,787 

16,956 

(6,889) 
(985) 

0 

0 
697 

(7,177) 
P
la
n
t,

M
a
c
h
in
e
ry
 &

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

£000 

1,544 
869 

0 

0 
(662) 

0 
1,751 

(1,106) 
(296) 

0 

0 
609 

(793) 

V
e
h
ic
le
s

£000 

4,825 
92 

0 

0 
(458) 

0 
4,459 

(3,269) 
(407) 

0 

0 
378 

(3,298) 

I
T
 &
 O
ff
ic
e

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

£000 

3,436 
265 

0 

0 
0 
0 

3,701 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

A
s
s
e
ts

£000 

8,545 
11,198 

0 

0 
(16) 

(3,308) 
16,419 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

A
s
s
e
ts
 U
n
d
e
r

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n

£000 

103,739 
37,750 

3,241 

(261) 
(2,344) 

855 
142,980 

(18,646) 
(4,159) 

2,343 

0 
1,684 

(18,778) 

T
o
ta
l

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
,

P
la
n
t 
&

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

At 31st March 2020 1,435 90,747 9,779 958 1,161 3,701 16,419 124,200 
At 31st March 2019 979 63,125 7,010 439 1,556 3,433 8,545 85,088 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Movements in 2018/19 (Restated) 

Cost or Valuations 
At 1st April 2018 
Additions 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) recognised in 
the Reval ation Reserve 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) recognised in 
the S rpl s/Deficit on the Provision of Services 
Rerecognition of Assets 
Other movements in cost or val ation 
At 31st March 2019 

Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment 
At 1st April 2018 
Depreciation charge 

Depreciation written o t to the Reval ation Reserve 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) recognised in 
the S rpl s/Deficit on the Provision of Services 
Derecognition of Assets 
At 31st March 2019 

 et Book Value 

£000 

4,321 
33 

0 

0 
0 
0 

4,354 

(3,147) 
(228) 

I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

A
s
s
e
ts

0 

0 
0 

(3,375) 

£000 

55,303 
5,289 

7,828 

1,467 
(40) 

(2,714) 
67,133 

(3,298) 
(3,423) 

2,381 

333 
L
a
n
d
 &

0 
B
u
il
d
in
g
s

(4,007) 

£000 

14,465 
300 

0 

0 
(902) 

36 
13,899 

(6,907) 
(868) 

0 

0 
886 

(6,889) 

P
la
n
t,

M
a
c
h
in
e
ry
 &

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

£000 

1,724 
216 

0 

0 
(359) 
(36) 

1,545 

(1,174) 
(209) 

0 

0 
277 

(1,106) 

V
e
h
ic
le
s

£000 

4,802 
69 

0 

0 
(46) 

0 
4,825 

(2,899) 
(410) 

0 

0 
40 

(3,269) 

I
T
 &
 O
ff
ic
e

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

£000 

3,241 
222 

0 

0 
(30) 

0 
3,433 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

A
s
s
e
ts

£000 

4,454 
4,091 

0 

0 
0 
0 

8,545 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

A
s
s
e
ts
 U
n
d
e
r

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n

£000 

88,310 
10,220 

7,828 

1,467 
(1,377) 
(2,714) 
103,734 

(17,425) 
(5,138) 

2,381 

333 
1,203 

(18,646) 

T
o
ta
l

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
,

P
la
n
t 
&

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

At 31st March 2019 979 63,125 7,010 439 1,556 3,433 8,545 85,088 
At 31st March 2018 1,174 52,004 7,558 550 1,903 3,241 4,454 70,885 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

The balance at 31st March 2019 has been restated to reflect the addition of the Lockmeadow Car Park as a separate asset on 
the Balance Sheet, as part of Land & B ildings. The val e of the adj stment is £2.050m. 

Additions for 2019/20 incl de the acq isition of a n mber of properties, the most significant of which are as follows: 

• The Lockmeadow Entertainment Complex in Maidstone. 
• A f rther 11 ho ses in Maidstone to provide temporary accommodation for homeless families. 

As Land & B ildings form the most significant element of Property, Plant & Eq ipment a more detailed analysis of the assets 
is shown in the table below, s b-totalled by asset class. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

C
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T
o
o
ls
h
e
d
s

E
n
te
rt
a
in
m
e
n
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 C
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o
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v
e
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R
e
s
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n
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a
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m
e
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l

T
h
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e
s

T
o
w
n
 H
a
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T
o
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l 
L
a
n
d
 &
 B
u
il
d
in
g
s
 

Analysis of Land & Buildings 
Movements 2019/20 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or Valuations 
At 1st April 2019 15,789 2,182 1,855 0 3,435 9,174 197 8,561 1,059 12,303 748 1,680 4,808 4,285 1,057 67,133 
Additions 101 8 20,288 34 3,051 36 93 17 26 26 23,681 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Reval ation Reserve 775 (81) 1,077 385 88 (541) 661 70 99 709 0 3,241 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the S rpl s/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services (36) 97 (377) (1) 66 (252) 
Derecognition of Assets (290) (60) (350) 
Other movements in cost or val ation 1,135 37 1,172 
At 31st March 2020 16,274 2,166 1,960 22,500 3,469 12,232 285 8,056 1,720 12,465 748 1,680 4,961 4,960 1,150 94,625 

Accumulated Depreciation & 
Impairment 
At 1st April 2019 12 (269) (75) (427) (1,271) (39) (68) (63) (679) (18) (304) (878) 118 (49) (4,010) 
Depreciation charge (20) (13) (150) (361) (966) (50) (13) (79) (75) (101) (345) (30) (6) (2,208) 
Depreciation written o t to the Reval ation 
Reserve 266 106 730 66 61 680 503 (117) 48 2,343 

Reval ation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the S rpl s/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 0 
Other movements in cost or val ation 0 
At 31st March 2020 12 (23) 17 (150) (788) (1,506) (39) (51) (15) (78) (93) (405) (720) (29) (7) (3,875) 

 et Book Value 

At 31st March 2020 16,286 2,143 1,978 22,350 2,681 10,726 246 8,005 1,705 12,387 655 1,275 4,240 4,931 1,143 90,751 
At 31st March 2019 15,801 1,913 1,779 0 3,009 7,903 158 8,492 996 11,623 730 1,376 3,930 4,403 1,008 63,126 
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Analysis of Land & Buildings 
Movements 2018/19 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or Valuations 
At 1st April 2018 9,451 1,639 1,833 0 3,424 5,173 197 8,100 1,050 12,295 643 1,680 4,808 3,960 1,050 55,303 
Additions 13 557 22 11 4,435 0 0 9 22 0 0 0 212 7 5,288 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Reval ation Reserve 4,769 0 0 0 0 0 2,307 0 0 319 0 0 434 0 7,829 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the S rpl s/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 1,556 0 0 0 (89) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,467 
Derecognition of Assets 0 (14) 0 0 (12) 0 0 0 (14) 0 0 0 0 0 (40) 
Other movements in cost or valuation 0 0 0 0 0 (333) 0 (1,846) 0 0 (214) 0 0 (321) 0 (2,714) 
At 31st March 2019 15,789 2,182 1,855 0 3,435 9,174 197 8,561 1,059 12,303 748 1,680 4,808 4,285 1,057 67,133 

Acc m lated Depreciation & Impairment 
At 1st April 2018 12 (202) 15 0 (65) (652) (39) (1,515) (10) (97) (118) (203) (389) (28) (8) (3,298) 
Depreciation charge 0 (67) (91) (361) (952) 0 (398) (53) (583) (113) (101) (489) (176) (41) (3,423) 

Depreciation written o t to the Reval ation 
Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,845 0 0 214 0 0 322 0 2,381 
Reval ation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the S rpl s/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 0 0 0 0 0 333 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 334 
Other movements in cost or valuation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
At 31st March 2019 12 (269) (75) 0 (427) (1,271) (39) (68) (63) (679) (18) (304) (878) 118 (49) (4,007) 

Net Book Val e 

At 31st March 2019 15,801 1,913 1,779 0 3,009 7,903 158 8,492 996 11,623 730 1,376 3,930 4,403 1,008 63,126 
At 31st March 2018 9,463 1,437 1,848 0 3,359 4,522 158 6,585 1,040 12,198 525 1,477 4,419 3,932 1,042 52,004 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Comm nity Assets have all previo sly been reval ed at £1 each, in accordance 
with the acco nting policy set o t below. The Code of Practice on Local A thority 
Acco nting req ires Comm nity Assets to be recorded on the Balance Sheet at 
Historic Cost. D e to the age and nat re of many of the Comm nity Assets it is 
not possible to ascertain an acc rate historical cost, b t expendit re inc rred is 
now added to the val e of the asset. Any expendit re on Comm nity Assets was 
previo sly written off as Reven e Expendit re charged to Capital  nder Stat te. 

The Code of Practice also req ires that material classes of assets within 
Property, Plant & Eq ipment are now val ed together and disclosed separately 
within the Statement, and this analysis is shown in the table on the previo s 
page. 

Capital Commitments 

As at 31st March 2020 the Co ncil had the following capital commitments: 

Project £000 

Union Street ho sing development * 
Br nswick Street ho sing development * 
Springfield Mill ho sing development 
Kent Medical Camp s - Innovation Centre * 
Lockmeadow ref rbishments 

1,913 
2,917 
1,011 
5,401 
3,500 

The fig res for schemes marked with an asterisk are net of committed external 
f nding that the Co ncil will receive. 

Revaluations 

The Co ncil carries o t a rolling programme that ens res that all Property, Plant 
& Eq ipment req ired to be meas red at c rrent val e is reval ed at least every 
5 years. All val ations were carried o t externally by Harrisons Chartered 
S rveyors. Val ations of land and b ildings were carried o t in accordance with 
the methodologies and bases for estimation set o t in the professional standards 
of RICS. The latest reval ations were carried o t as at 30th November 2019 in 
accordance with the req irements of the Code of Practice and are considered to 
be materially acc rate at the Balance Sheet date. 

The table also shows the historic cost val es of the vario s asset classes, which 
were established at 1st April 2007 when the c rrent capital acco nting 
req irements came into force. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

£000 
Carried at historical cost 5,073 

Val ed at c rrent val e as at: 

31st March 2016 
31st March 2017 

I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

31st March 2018 
A
s
s
e
ts

31st March 2019 
31st March 2020 

£000 £000 £000 
3,701 419 16,956 

0 
1,674 
9,208 

17,338 
65,986 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
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ts
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£000 
1,751 

V
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£000 £000 
4,460 16,417 

I
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£000 
48,777 

0 
1,674 
9,208 
17,338 
65,986 

T
o
ta
l 

Total Cost or Val ation 5,073 3,701 94,625 16,956 1,751 4,460 16,417 142,983 

Accounting Policy Property, Plant & Equipment 

Assets that have physical s bstance and are held for  se in the provision of 
services or for administrative p rposes on a contin ing basis. 

Recognition 

Expendit re on the acq isition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant & 
Eq ipment is capitalised on an accr als basis in the acco nts, provided that the 
asset val e is over £10,000 and yields benefits to the Co ncil and the services it 
provides, for a period of more than one year. This excl des expendit re on 
ro tine repairs and maintenance of non-c rrent assets which is charged directly 
to service reven e acco nts. 

Measurement 

Assets are initially meas red at cost, comprising: 

• The p rchase price 

• Any costs attrib table to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in manner intended by 
management. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet  sing the following meas rement 
bases: 

• Infrastr ct re, Comm nity Assets and Assets Under Constr ction -
Depreciated Historical Cost 

• All other assets – c rrent val e, determined as the amo nt that wo ld be 
paid for the asset in its existing  se (existing  se val e – EUV). 

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair val e beca se of the specialist 
nat re of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is  sed as an estimate 
of fair val e. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Where non-property assets have short  sef l lives or low val es (or both), 
depreciated historical cost basis is  sed as a proxy for fair val e. 

Assets incl ded in the Balance Sheet at c rrent val e are re-val ed s fficiently 
reg larly to ens re that their carrying amo nt is not materially different from 
their fair val e at the year-end, b t as a minim m every 5 years. Increases in 
val ations are matched by credits to the Reval ation Reserve to recognise 
 nrealised gains. (Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expendit re Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss 
previo sly charged to a service.) 

Where decreases in val e are identified, they are acco nted for by: 

• Where there is a balance of reval ation gains for the asset in the 
Reval ation Reserve, the carrying amo nt of the asset is written down 
against that balance ( p to the amo nt of the acc m lated gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Reval ation Reserve or an ins fficient 
balance, the carrying amo nt of the asset is written down against the 
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re 
Statement. 

The Reval ation Reserve contains reval ation gains recognised since 1st April 
2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date 
have been consolidated into the Capital Adj stment Acco nt. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that 
an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences 
are estimated to be material, the recoverable amo nt of the asset is estimated 
and, where this is less than the carrying amo nt of the asset, an impairment 
loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are acco nted for by: 

• Where there is a balance of reval ation gains for the asset in the 
Reval ation Reserve, the carrying amo nt of the asset is written down 
against that balance ( p to the amo nt of the acc m lated gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Reval ation Reserve or an ins fficient 
balance, the carrying amo nt of the asset is written down against the 
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re 
Statement. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed s bseq ently, the reversal is credited to 
the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re 
Statement,  p to the amo nt of the original loss, adj sted for depreciation that 
wo ld have been charged if the loss has not been recognised. ` 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant & Eq ipment assets by the 
systematic allocation of depreciable amo nts over their  sef l lives. An 
exception is made for assets witho t a determinable finite  sef l life (i.e. 
freehold land and certain Comm nity Assets) and assets that are not yet 
available for  se (i.e. assets  nder constr ction). 

Depreciation is calc lated on the following bases: 

• B ildings – straight-line allocation over the  sef l life of the property as 
estimated by a s itably q alified officer. The  sef l lives range from 4 to 
50 years. 

• Vehicles, Plant, F rnit re & Eq ipment – straight-line allocation over the 
 sef l life of the asset as estimated by a s itably q alified officer. 

• Infrastr ct re - straight-line allocation over 20 years. 

Reval ation gains are also depreciated, with an amo nt eq al to the difference 
between c rrent val e depreciation charged on assets and depreciation that 
wo ld have been charged based on their historical cost being transferred each 
year from the Reval ation Reserve to the Capital Adj stment Acco nt. 

18 - I VESTME T PROPERTIES 

The following items of income and expense have been acco nted for in the 
financing and investment income and expendit re line in the comprehensive 
income and expendit re statement: 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Rental income from investment property 

Direct operating expenses arising from 
investment property 

(1,551) 

263 

(2,315) 

940 

 et gain/(loss) (1,287) (1,375) 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

The following table s mmarises the movement in the fair val e of investment 
properties over the year: 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Balance at start of the year 

Additions 

Transfers 

Net gains/losses from fair val e adj stments 

19,976 

2,439 

0 

599 

23,014 

14 

(854) 

1,096 

Balance at end of year 23,014 23,270 

In estimating the fair val e of the a thority’s investment properties, the highest 
and best  se of the properties is their c rrent  se. 

The fair val e for the co ncil’s investment property portfolio has been based on 
the market approach  sing c rrent market conditions and recent sales or lettings 
evidence and other relevant information for similar assets in Maidstone Boro gh, 
or other s itably comparable locations. Where appropriate, adj stments have 
been made to the comparable evidence to relate these directly to the s bject 
properties. Market conditions are s ch that similar properties are actively sold or 
let and the level of observable inp ts are significant, leading to the properties 
being categorised at Level 2 in the fair val e hierarchy. 

There has been no change in the val ation techniq es  sed d ring the year for 
investment properties. 

Accounting Policy Investment Properties 

Investment properties are those that are  sed solely to earn rentals and/or for 
capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is  sed in any way 
to facilitate the delivery of services or prod ction of goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are meas red initially at cost and s bseq ently at fair 
val e, based on the highest and best  se val e of the asset from the market 
participant’s perspective. Investment properties are not depreciated and 
an ann al val ation programme ens res that they are held at highest and best 
 se val e at the Balance Sheet date. Gains and losses on reval ation are posted 
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expendit re line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expendit re Statement. The same treatment 
is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the 
Financing and Investment Income line and res lt in a gain for the General F nd 
Balance. However, reval ation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted 
by stat tory arrangements to have an impact on the General F nd Balance. The 
gains and losses are therefore reversed o t of the General F nd Balance in the 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adj stment Acco nt 
and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

Accounting Policy Fair Value Measurement 

The Co ncil meas res some of its assets and liabilities at fair val e at the end of 
the reporting period. Fair val e is the price that wo ld be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability at the meas rement date. The fair val e 
meas rement ass mes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageo s market for the 
asset or liability. 

The Co ncil  ses external val ers to provide a val ation of its assets and 
liabilities in line with the highest and best  se definition within the acco nting 
standard. The highest and best  se of the asset or liability being val ed is 
considered from the perspective of a market participant. 

Inp ts to the val ation techniq es in respect of the Co ncil’s fair val e 
meas rement of its assets and liabilities are categorised within the fair val e 
hierarchy as follows: 

Level 1 – q oted prices ( nadj sted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that the a thority can access at the meas rement date. 

Level 2 – inp ts other than q oted prices incl ded within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 –  nobservable inp ts for the asset or liability. 

19 – HERITAGE ASSETS: RECO CILIATIO  OF THE CARRYI G VALUE 
HELD BY THE COU CIL 

Museum War Statues & Other Total 
Exhibits Memorials Sculptures Items Assets 

Cost or Valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

1st April 2019 9,090 480 515 308 10,393 
Additions 0 
Disposals 0 
31st March 2020 9,090 480 515 308 10,393 

1st April 2018 9,090 480 515 308 10,393 
Additions 0 
Disposals 0 
31st March 2019 9,090 480 515 308 10,393 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Museum Exhibits 

The exhibits are held in two main locations, the Maidstone M se m & Bentlif Art 
Gallery, and the Carriage M se m. F rther information on the m se ms and 
their collections can be seen on their dedicated website: 

http://www.m se m.maidstone.gov. k/ 

The total of £9.090m represents those items that have formally been val ed as 
at 1st April 2011 for ins rance p rposes by a n mber of rep table a ction 
ho ses. The val e of the total collection is likely to be far higher, and is val ed 
for ins rance p rposes at £17.0m (which incl des items on loan to the Co ncil, 
and those held in Tr st at the M se m), b t it is considered that it wo ld not be 
cost-effective or of any significant benefit to formally val e the entire collection. 
The val e is reviewed on an ann al basis for ins rance p rposes. 

War Memorials 

The Co ncil is responsible for two war memorials, one in the Broadway and the 
other in Brenchley Gardens. A local stone mason has provided a replacement 
val e for the two memorials. Upkeep and maintenance of the memorials is the 
responsibility of the Co ncil’s Property Services section. 

Statues and Sculptures 

There are a n mber of stat es and sc lpt res thro gho t the boro gh that the 
Co ncil are responsible for. These are in a n mber of locations, and have been 
val ed at their p rchase cost, where this is known, altho gh none of them 
individ ally have a significant val e. 

Other Items 

This relates to two items, the civic regalia  sed by the Mayor, and the 
‘Elemental’ art installation on the bridge across the River Medway. The civic 
regalia have been val ed by a local jeweller for ins rance p rposes, and the art 
installation has been val ed at p rchase cost. 

Listed Buildings and Other Heritage Assets 

The Old College complex, comprising the Gateway, the Master’s Tower and the 
Q arterdeck has been classified as a heritage asset. However d e to the age and 
nat re of the b ildings it is not possible to ascertain an acc rate val ation. 

In addition the Co ncil owns a n mber of other assets. These have not been 
val ed as it wo ld not be cost-effective in terms of time and financial reso rces 
to do so. These incl de the balance of the m se m exhibits referenced earlier in 
this note. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Accounting Policy Heritage Assets 

Tangible Heritage Assets (described in this summary of significant 
accounting policies as heritage assets) 

The Co ncil’s Heritage Assets are held principally for their contrib tion to 
knowledge and/or c lt re. Heritage Assets are recognised and meas red 
(incl ding the treatment of reval ation gains and losses and impairments) in 
accordance with the Co ncil’s acco nting policies on property, plant and 
eq ipment. However, some of the meas rement r les are relaxed in relation to 
Heritage Assets, and the val ation methods applied are as follows: 

• Replacement Cost 
• P rchase Cost 
• Ins rance Val ation 

Where it is considered impractical (in terms of cost and/or benefit) to obtain a 
val ation there is no req irement to do so, b t any assets that are treated in 
this way m st be disclosed in the Heritage Assets note. 

20 - FI A CIAL I STRUME TS 

Categories of Financial Instruments 

The following categories of financial instr ment are carried in the Balance Sheet: 

Long-term Short-Term 
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 

2019 2020 2019 2020 
£000 £000 £000 £000 

Treasury Investments 
Financial assets at amortised cost 2,000 0 13,014 11,025 

Debtors 
Financial assets at amortised cost 83 (0) 11,897 10,630 

Loans 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 0 0 0 11,000 

Creditors 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 0 0 10,407 13,926 

Other Long Term Liabilities 
Finance Lease Liabilities at 
amortised cost 2,527 2,020 520 517 

On the face of the Balance Sheet Financial Assets at Amortised Cost where the 
b siness model for the Co ncil is to collect contract al cash flows. £2m of 
Treas ry Investments are in local a thorities with £9.025m invested in AAA 
rated Money Market F nds. The Co ncil has no long-term treas ry f nds 
invested at the year end. Debtors incl des two service loans to third parties, 
Kent Savers £25k and One Maidstone £36k (B siness Improvement District 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Levy). The Co ncil has long-term creditors, and the fair val e of trade and other 
receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amo nt. 

The Co ncil has taken o t short term loans with other local a thorities of £11m. 
£7m was req ired to f nd the p rchase of the Lockmeadow Leis re Complex 
which enables the Co ncil to gain control of the area for possible f t re 
regeneration, the remaining £4m was for f nding other areas of the Co ncil’s 
capital programme. 

Other Long-Term Liabilities relates to the services concession arrangement 
between the Co ncil and Serco, the managing contractor of Maidstone Leis re 
Centre. Details of this arrangement are disc ssed within 27 – Private Finance 
Initiatives & Similar Contracts. 

The c rrent financial liabilities are all d e to be settled within one year. 

Income & Expense 

Long-term Short-Term 

31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 
2019 2020 2019 2020 
£000 £000 £000 £000 

Income: 
Financial assets at amortised cost 19 0 201 208 
Other Interest 0 0 0 9 

Total 19 0 201 217 

Expenditure: 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 0 0 0 24 

Total 0 0 0 24 

Adoption of IFRS 9 

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instr ments by the Code of Practice on Local 
A thority Acco nting came into effect for financial year 2018/19. The effects of 
reclassification of financial assets following the adaptation of IFRS 9 Financial 
Instr ments by the Code of Practice on Local A thority Acco nting are shown in 
the table below: IFRS 9 req ires an a thority to review its financial assets for 
impairment d e to the risk of non settlement. As stated in the previo s section, 
the Co ncil has two service loans which are classified as solely payments of 
principal and interest and the b siness model is to collect contract al cash flows 
which is classified  nder the definition of the code paragraph 7.1.5 and are 
val ed at amortised cost. These req ire assessment to determine the credit risk 
since initial recognition, however materiality comes into effect as per the Code. 
These loans being at very low val es (£36k and £25k) are below the materiality 
threshold for the Co ncil, therefore no impairment is req ired. 
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Accounting Policy Financial Instruments 

Financial Liabilities: 

Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Co ncil 
becomes a party to the contract al provisions of a financial instr ment and are 
initially meas red at fair val e and are carried at their amortised cost. Interest is 
charged to the Financing and Investment Income & Expendit re line in the 
Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement. 

Financial Assets: 

The Co ncil reg larly holds the following financial instr ments at amortised cost: 

• Deposits with financial instit tions and local a thorities 

• Money Market F nds; and 

• Service Loans. 

The Co ncil also maintains a contin o sly ‘rolling’ portfolio of Debtors (also held 
at amortised cost). 

Financial assets meas red at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance 
Sheet when the Co ncil becomes party to the contract al provisions of a 
financial instr ment and are initially meas red at fair val e. They are 
s bseq ently meas red at amortised cost. Ann al credits to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expendit re line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expendit re Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying 
amo nt of the asset m ltiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instr ment. For most of the financial assets held by the Co ncil, this means that 
the amo nt presented in the Balance Sheet is the o tstanding principal 
receivable (pl s accr ed interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the 
amo nt receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

The Co ncil considers the potential for credit losses on financial assets held at 
amortised cost either on a 12-month or lifetime basis (Simplified model -
Debtors only). An exception is: 

• Deposits with local a thorities – credit losses are not recognised for 
deposits held with central Government or other local a thorities d e to stat tory 
provisions (the Local Government Act 2003), which prevent defa lt. 

Impairment losses are calc lated to reflect the expectation that the f t re cash 
flows might not take place beca se the borrower co ld defa lt (triggering a 
credit loss) on their obligations. 

With regard to Debtors, an Impairment Allowance for Bad Debts (IABD) is 
applied ann ally based on a set of ass mptions on the collectability of external 
debts based on past experience and f t re expectations. 
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Fair Value 

Inp ts to the meas rement techniq es in respect of the Co ncil’s fair val e 
meas rement of its assets and liabilities are categorised within the fair val e 
hierarchy as follows: 

• Level 1 – fair val e is only derived from q oted prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 – fair val e is calc lated from inp ts other than those q oted 
prices, that are observable for the asset or liability 

• Level 3 – fair val e is determined  sing  nobservable inp ts, e.g. non-
market data s ch as cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness 

All val ations on Co ncil’s investments  ses level 2. 

The acco nts are req ired to show the fair val e of the financial assets held by 
the Co ncil. Fair val e is defined as the amo nt for which an asset co ld be 
exchanged ass ming that the transaction was negotiated between parties 
knowledgeable abo t the market in which they are dealing and willing to b y/sell 
at an appropriate price, with no other motive in their negotiations other than to 
sec re a fair price. 

The fair val e of investments is shown in the table below with the level in the 
fair val e hierarchy. 

31st March 2019 Fair Value 31st March 2020 
Book Value Fair Value Level Book Value Fair Value 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Financial Assets 
Long Term Investments 2,019 2,018 2 0 0 
Short Term Investments 
(less than 1 yr) 13,050 13,050 2 11,056 11,056 

Financial Liabilities 
Short Term Loans with 
other LAs 0 0 2 11,024 11,025 

21 -  ATURE & EXTE T OF RISKS ARISI G FROM FI A CIAL 
I STRUME TS 

The Co ncil co ld be exposed to risk in relation to expos re to interest rate 
movements in its investment and debt portfolios. This risk is managed thro gh 
the Ann al Treas ry Management Strategy which draws together Co ncil’s 
pr dential and treas ry indicators and its expected treas ry operations, 
incl ding an expectation of interest rate movements. From this Strategy a 
treas ry indicator is set which provides maxim m limits for fixed and variable 
interest rate expos re. Expos re is managed by  se of Pr dential Indicators, 
which set limits on the proportion of investments held at fixed and variable 
rates. These indicators are monitored on a daily basis. The main expos re to risk 
in this area is the  se of investment Call Acco nts and Money Market F nds 
which are linked to Base Rate. However, the risk is considered to be small as 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

these acco nts are generally only  sed for the short term investment of f nds 
for cash flow p rposes, and f nds can be withdrawn on a daily basis. 

The Co ncil also provides written principles for overall risk management, as well 
as written policies covering specific areas s ch as interest rate risk, credit risk 
and the investment of s rpl s cash. These are set o t in the Co ncil’s Treas ry 
Management Practices, which are a req irement of CIPFA’s Treas ry 
Management Code of Practice, which has been adopted by the Co ncil. Treas ry 
Management indicators have also been set to control key financial instr ments 
risks in accordance with CIPFA’s Pr dential Code. The Treas ry Management 
Practices can also be viewed on the Co ncil’s website. 

Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 

A s mmary of the main points of the strategy is as follows: 

• to  tilise cash balances rather than loan debt to finance the capital 
programme in the short term, d e to low investment ret rns and high 
co nterparty risk in the c rrent economic climate; 

• to f rther diversify its portfolio, as far as is operationally feasible, 
ens ring that a combination of sec red and  nsec red investments 
are considered. Greater  se of Local A thority investments will be 
so ght d e to the high sec rity of the borrower which enables 
investment over a longer period where f nds are not req ired 
immediately. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial instit tions, as well as 
credit expos res to the Co ncil’s c stomers. The Co ncil manages credit risk by 
ens ring that investments are only placed with organisations of high credit 
q ality as set o t in the Treas ry Management Strategy. These incl de 
commercial entities with a minim m long-term credit rating of A-, the UK 
government, other local a thorities, and organisations witho t credit ratings 
 pon which the Co ncil has received independent investment advice. 

There are no credit limits set on the Co ncil’s c stomers, as the amo nts 
involved are not considered s fficiently material to warrant the setting of s ch 
limits. 

As at 31st March 2020 investments were held with the following instit tions: 
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31st March 
2019 
£000 

31st March 
2020 
£000 

AAA rated Instit tions 
AA+ rated Instit tions 
AA rated Instit tions 
AA- rated Instit tions 
A+ rated Instit tions 
A rated Instit tions 
A- rated Instit tions 
BBB+ rated Instit tions 
Unrated Local A thorities 
UK Government 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

14 
0 
0 

15,000 
0 

5,025 
0 
0 

3,000 
1,000 

0 
0 
0 

2,000 
0 

Total 15,014 11,025 

Liquidity Risk 

Liq idity risk arises from the Co ncil having ins fficient reso rces to meet its on-
going commitments. The Co ncil has a comprehensive cash flow management 
system that seeks to ens re that cash is available as needed. If  nexpected 
movements happen, the Co ncil has ready access to borrowings from the money 
market, other local a thorities and the P blic Works Loan Board. There is no 
significant risk that it will be  nable to raise finance to meet its commitments 
 nder financial instr ments. A borrowing provision of £4m exists for short term 
cash flow p rposes. However, provision has also been made with the c rrent 
Treas ry Management Strategy to have an a thorised debt limit of £24m to f nd 
on-going schemes in the event of projected capital receipts not being realised. 

Refinancing and Maturity Risk 

The Co ncil maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the 
cash flow proced res above are considered against the refinancing risk 
proced res, longer-term risk to the Co ncil relates to managing the expos re to 
replacing financial instr ments as they mat re. This risk relates to both the 
mat ring of longer-term financial liabilities and longer term financial assets. 

The approved treas ry indicator limits for the mat rity str ct re of debt and the 
limits placed on investments placed for greater than one year in d ration are the 
key parameters  sed to address this risk. The Co ncil approved treas ry and 
investment strategies address the main risks and the central treas ry team 
address the operational risks within the approved parameters. This incl des: 

• monitoring the mat rity profile of financial liabilities and amending the 
profile thro gh either new borrowing or the resched ling of the existing 
debt; and 

• monitoring the mat rity profile of investments to ens re s fficient liq idity 
is available for the Co ncil’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of 

Page 50 



     
 

 

  
 

           
        

      

              
                 

             
            

             
               
             

             
              

    

         

    

   
      

 

 

              
         

          
            

                
                

 
             

           
      

   

           
            
   

 

 

 

 

Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

longer term investments to provide stability of mat rities and ret rns in 
relation to the longer term cash flow needs. 

Market Risk – Interest Rate Risk 

As the Co ncil did not find itself needing to borrow f nds d ring 2018/19, except 
in the short term for cash flow reasons, its only risk is in relation to expos re to 
interest rate movements in its investments. This expos re is managed by  se of 
Pr dential Indicators, which set limits on the proportion of investments held at 
fixed and variable rates. These indicators are monitored on a daily basis. The 
main expos re to risk in this area is the  se of investment Call Acco nts and 
Money Market F nds which are linked to Base Rate. However, the risk is 
considered to be small as these acco nts are generally only  sed for the short-
term investment of f nds for cash flow p rposes, and f nds can be withdrawn on 
a daily basis. 

The risk expos re is s mmarised in the table below. 

31st March 
2019 
£000 

31st March 
2020 
£000 

Notice acco nts/Money market f nds 
Fixed term deposits with other local a thorities 

14 
15,000 

9,025 
2,000 

Total 15,014 11,025 

The Co ncil has a n mber of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The 
Ann al Treas ry Management Strategy draws together the Co ncil’s pr dential 
and treas ry indicators and its expected treas ry operations, incl ding an 
expectation of interest rate movements. From this Strategy a treas ry indicator 
is set to control the A thority’s expos re to interest rate risk. An  pper limit is 
set on the one-year reven e impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates. 

The Co ncil also makes  se of interest rate forecasts and market data and 
advice provided by its Treas ry Management advisors to ens re that investment 
income is maximised wherever possible. 

Foreign Exchange Risk 

The Co ncil has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign 
c rrencies and th s has no expos re to loss arising from movements in 
exchange rates. 
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22 – DEBTORS 

Short Term Debtors 

2018/19 

£000 

2019/20 

£000 

Central government bodies 

Other local a thorities 

Other entities and individ als 

5,385 

3,303 

15,228 

1,299 

6,903 

13,887 

Total 23,915 22,090 

Allowance for Bad Debts 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Excess Charges Impairment Allowance 
S ndry Bad Debts Impairment Allowance 

630 
3,628 

817 
4,134 

Total 4,258 4,952 

The fig re on the balance sheet represents Debtors less Provision for Bad Debts, 
which totals £17.138m. 

Other entities and individ als within Short Term Debtors are broken down as 
follows: 

2018/19 

£000 

2019/20 

£000 

Co ncil Tax payers 

B siness Rate payers 

Capital debtors 

General debtors 

Payments in Advance 

Other miscellaneo s amo nts 

1,050 

1,603 

23 

10,933 

678 

941 

1,204 

1,470 

560 

8,937 

575 

1,141 

Total 15,229 13,887 
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23 - CASH & CASH EQUIVALE TS 

The balance of Cash & Cash Eq ivalents is made  p of the following elements: 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Cash held by the Co ncil 
Bank c rrent acco nts 
Short-term deposits 

12 
157 

11,014 

3 
(341) 

11,025 

Total 11,183 10,687 

Accounting Policy Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial instit tions 
repayable witho t penalty on notice of not more than 24 ho rs. Cash eq ivalents 
are investments that mat re in 3 months or less from the date of acq isition and 
that are readily convertible to known amo nts of cash with insignificant risk of 
change in val e. C rrently, d e to the req irement of f nding for its liabilities, all 
Co ncil investments are classified as cash and cash eq ivalents. 

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash eq ivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
Co ncil’s cash management. 

24 – CREDITORS 

Short Term 

2018/19 2019/20 
£000 £000 

Central government bodies 
Other local a thorities 
Other entities and individ als 

657 4,960 
8,812 4,820 

12,878 19,598 

Total 22,347 29,377 

The movement in the balances for Central Government and other local 
a thorities is a reflection of movements in the debtor and creditor balances 
relating to the collection f nd. 

The movement in other entities and individ als reflects an increase in Section 
106 monies received from developers that will be passed onto other 
organisations, primarily Kent Co nty Co ncil and the NHS. 
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Other entities and individ als are broken down as follows: 

2018/19 2019/20 
£000 £000 

General creditors 
Capital creditors 
Co ncil tax payers 
B siness Rate payers 
Receipts in advance 
Deposits 
Retentions 

2,886 2,423 
1,583 1,379 
180 193 
408 220 

1,716 5,259 
5,937 9,839 
168 285 

Total 12,878 19,598 

25 - PROVISIO S 

Provision for Appeals 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

B siness Rates Appeals - C rrent 
B siness Rates Appeals - Backdated 
Planning Appeals 

1,179 
707 
380 

774 
1,355 
261 

Total 2,266 2,391 

The Co ncil is req ired to acco nt for the effect of B siness Rates appeals which 
were previo sly borne by the national pool. The balance represents the Co ncil’s 
40% share of the estimated c rrent and backdated appeals. 

A provision has also been established to allow for costs that co ld arise from 
potential planning appeals. 

The provision is split between long-term and short-term liabilities on the Balance 
Sheet. 

Accounting Policy Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Co ncil a 
legal or constr ctive obligation that probably req ires settlement by a transfer of 
economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amo nt of the obligation. 

Provisions are meas red at best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the 
expendit re req ired to settle the obligation, taking into acco nt relevant risks 
and  ncertainties. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

When payments are event ally made, they are charged to the provision carried 
in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each 
year – where it becomes less probable that a transfer of economic benefits will 
now be req ired (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision 
is reversed and credited back to the relevant area. 

Where some or all of the payment req ired to settle a provision is expected to 
be recovered from another party, this is only recognised as income for the 
relevant service if it is virt ally certain that reimb rsement will be received if the 
Co ncil settles the obligation. 

26 - TRUST FU DS 

The Co ncil is req ired to set o t details of the nat re and amo nt of tr st f nds 
where it acts as sole tr stee, the only one of which is the Cobtree Manor Estate. 
The object of this tr st is to hold Cobtree Manor and Cobtree Manor Estate for 
the benefit of the inhabitants of Maidstone and other members of the general 
p blic. 

The assets and liabilities of the Tr st as at 31st March 2020 are s mmarised in 
the following table. The fig res for 2018/19 are the a dited fig res, which differ 
from those in the 2018/19 Statement of Acco nts, as the a dit took place after 
that was p blished. 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Fixed Assets: 
Tangible Assets 
Investment Property 
Investments 

C rrent Assets 

C rrent Liabilities 

Creditors: Amo nts falling d e after 
more than one year 

2,830 
1,630 
863 

5,322 

149 

74 

232 

2,824 
1,010 
670 

4,505 

247 

73 

232 

Total assets less current liabilities 5,165 4,448 

Total Charitable Funds 5,165 4,448 

Gross expendit re in 2019/20 totalled £365,876 (£691,614 in 2018/19). Gross 
income in 2019/20 totalled £463,350 (£752,564 in 2018/19). 

The acco nts of the Tr st are s bject to a separate external a dit. 
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27 - PRIVATE FI A CE I ITIATIVES & SIMILAR CO TRACTS 

The Co ncil has no Private Finance Initiative Schemes, b t the following scheme 
is a similar contract as it is defined as a service concession arrangement. 

The Co ncil entered into an agreement d ring 2009/10 with Serco, the 
managing contractor of Maidstone Leis re Centre, to  ndertake a major 
ref rbishment of the centre. Under the terms of the agreement Serco have 
initially f nded the cost of the works thro gh a loan, and the Co ncil are then 
repaying this loan over a 15 year term, by eq al monthly instalments. The 
principal element of this loan is reflected on the Balance Sheet and will be 
written down ann ally by the amo nt of principal repaid. Interest paid on the 
loan is charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement. 

The ann al principal repayments are credited to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expendit re Statement, and then reversed o t of the Movement in Reserves 
Statement to the Capital Adj stment Acco nt to reflect the fact that this is a 
repayment of debt, as this arrangement is classed as borrowing  nder the terms 
of the CIPFA Pr dential Code for Capital. 

Payments 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Balance o tstanding at start of year 

Repayment of principal 

3,578 

(521) 

3,057 

(520) 

Balance outstanding at end of year 3,057 2,537 

These fig res are shown on the face of the Balance Sheet as Deferred Liabilities, 
and are split between the Short Term and Long Term elements. 

Accounting Policy Deferred Liability 

Deferred Liabilities are recognised  nder the terms of IFRIC 12 (IFRS 
Interpretations Committee) and the arrangement is recognised as a service 
concession and acco nted for accordingly. This generally involves the grantor 
(the Co ncil) conveying to the operator (Serco) for the period of the concession 
the right to provide services that give the p blic access to major economic and 
social facilities, in this instance Maidstone Leis re Centre. 

Accounting Policy Minimum Revenue Provision 

The Minim m Reven e Provision (MRP) is a stat tory charge relating to the 
repayment of debt. It represents the Co ncil’s  nderlying need to borrow for 
capital expendit re. There is a general d ty  pon the Co ncil to make an 
amo nt of MRP which it considers ‘pr dent’. 

The Co ncil has no borrowing b t has identified that it has contract al 
arrangements that are classified as finance leases  nder the req irements of 
IFRIC 4. The repayments  nder these leases therefore need to be treated as a 
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borrowing arrangement. The MRP amo nt that is set aside is eq ivalent to the 
val e of the ann al principal repayments on the contracts. 

28 – CAPITAL RECEIPTS RESERVE 

This reserve contains the proceeds from the sale of non-c rrent assets, which 
are  sed to f nd capital expendit re, and forms part of the Usable Reserves 
section of the Movement in Reserves Statement. This section also incl des 
Capital Grants Unapplied, Earmarked Reserves and the General F nd Balance. 

31st March 
2019 
£000 

31st March 
2020 
£000 

Balance at 1st April 

Capital Receipts Received 

Capital Receipts Applied 

523 

815 

(741) 

597 

1,963 

(2,012) 

Balance at 31st March 597 549 

29 - U USABLE RESERVES 

31st 
March 
2019 

(Restated) 
£000 

31st 
March 
2020 
£000 

Reval ation Reserve 
Capital Adj stment Acco nt 
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 
Pensions Reserve 
Collection F nd Adj stment Acco nt 
Acc m lated Absences Acco nt 

38,818 
68,058 

5 
(71,481) 

(935) 
(179) 

44,240 
74,197 

8 
(73,677) 

(26) 
(174) 

Total Unusable Reserves 34,285 44,565 

a) Revaluation Reserve 

The Reval ation Reserve contains the gains made by the Co ncil arising from 
increases in the val e of its Property, Plant & Eq ipment. The balance is red ced 
when assets with acc m lated gains are: 

• Reval ed downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 
•  sed in the provision of services and the gains are cons med thro gh 

depreciation, or 
• disposed of and the gains are realised. 

The Reserve contains only the reval ation gains acc m lated since 1st April 
2007, the date that the Reserve was created. Acc m lated gains arising before 
that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adj stment Acco nt. 
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31st March 
2019 

(Restated) 
£000 

31st March 
2020 
£000 

Balance at 1st April 

Upward reval ation of assets 
Difference between fair val e depreciation and 
historical cost depreciation 

31,170 

7,832 
(184) 

38,818 

5,568 
(144) 

Balance at 31st March 38,818 44,240 

The balance at 31st March 2019 has been restated to reflect the addition of the 
Lockmeadow Car Park as a separate asset on the Balance Sheet, as part of 
Property, Plant & Eq ipment. The val e of the adj stment is £2.050m. 

b) Capital Adjustment Account 

The Capital Adj stment Acco nt absorbs the timing differences arising from the 
different arrangements for acco nting for the cons mption of non-c rrent assets 
and for financing the acq isition, constr ction or enhancement of those assets 
 nder stat tory provisions. The Acco nt is debited with the cost of acq isition, 
constr ction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and 
amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re 
Statement (with reconciling postings from the Reval ation Reserve to convert 
fair val e fig res to a historical cost basis). The Acco nt is credited with the 
amo nts set aside by the Co ncil as finance for the costs of acq isition, 
constr ction and enhancement. 

The Acco nt contains acc m lated gains and losses on Investment Properties 
that have yet to be cons med by the Co ncil. 

The Acco nt also contains reval ation gains acc m lated on Property, Plant & 
Eq ipment before 1st April 2007, the date that the Reval ation Reserve was 
created to hold s ch gains. 
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31st March 
2019 
£000 

31st March 
2020 
£000 

Balance at 1st April 

Reversal of items relating to capital expendit re 
debited or credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expendit re Statement: 

Charges for depreciation of non-c rrent assets 
Amortisation of intangible assets 
Reval ation Gains/Losses on Property, Plant & 
Eq ipment 
Reven e expendit re f nded from capital  nder 
stat te 
Write-off of non-enhancing capital expendit re 

Adj sting amo nts written o t of the 
Reval ation Reserve 
 et written out amount of the cost of non-
current assets consumed in the year 

Capital financing applied in the year: 

S ms set aside for Debt Repayment 
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance 
new capital expendit re 
Capital grants & contrib tions credited to the 
Comprehensive Income & Expendit re 
Statement that have been applied to capital 
financing 
Capital expendit re charged against the General 
F nd balance 

Movements in the market val e of Investment 
Properties debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income & Expendit re 
Statement 

66,726 

(5,138) 
(124) 

(115) 

(3,247) 
(75) 

(8,699) 

1,651 

(7,048) 

521 

741 

1,367 

5,153 
7,728 

599 

68,058 

(4,160) 
(135) 

(578) 

(1,799) 
(58) 

(6,729) 

(117) 

(6,846) 

520 

2,012 

4,411 

4,946 
11,888 

1,096 

Balance at 31st March 68,058 74,197 
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c) Pensions Reserve 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for acco nting for post-employment benefits and for f nding 
benefits in accordance with stat tory provisions. The Co ncil acco nts for post-
employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement as 
benefits are earned by employees accr ing years of service,  pdating the 
liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing ass mptions and investment 
ret rns on any reso rces set aside to meet the costs. However, stat tory 
arrangements req ire benefits earned to be financed as the Co ncil makes 
employer’s contrib tions to pension f nds or event ally pays any pensions for 
which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve 
therefore shows a s bstantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and c rrent 
employees and the reso rces that the Co ncil has set aside to meet them. The 
stat tory arrangements will ens re that f nding will have been set aside by the 
time the benefits come to be paid. 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Opening balance at 1 April 
Remeas rements of the net defined liability 
Reversal of items relating to retirement 
benefits debited or credited to the S rpl s or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expendit re 
Statement 
Employer's pensions contrib tions 

77,618 
(9,438) 

6,865 

(3,564) 

71,481 
(2,068) 

9,036 

(4,772) 

Closing balance at 31 March 71,481 73,677 

d) Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

The Collection F nd Adj stment Acco nt manages the differences arising from 
the recognition of co ncil tax and non-domestic rates income in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expendit re Statement as it falls d e from co ncil 
tax payers and b siness rates payers compared with the stat tory arrangements 
for paying across amo nts to the General F nd from the Collection F nd. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

31st March 
2019 
£000 

31st March 
2020 
£000 

Balance at 1st April 
Amo nt by which co ncil tax and non-
domestic rates income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income & Expendit re 
Statement is different from co ncil tax and 
non-domestic rates income calc lated for 
the year in accordance with stat tory 
req irements 
- Co ncil Tax 
- Non-domestic Rates 

2,037 

205 
(1,307) 

935 

346 
(1,256) 

Balance at 31st March 935 26 

30 - CAPITAL EXPE DITURE & CAPITAL FU DI G 

The total amo nt of capital expendit re inc rred in the year is shown in the table 
below, together with the reso rces that have been  sed to finance it. 

2018/19 2019/20 
£000 £000 

Opening Capital Finance Requirement 

Capital Investment 

Property, Plant & Eq ipment 
Non-enhancing capital expendit re 
Investment Properties 
Intangible Assets 
Reven e Expendit re F nded from Capital 
Under Stat te 

Sources of Finance 

Capital receipts 
Government grants & other contrib tions 
New Homes Bon s 
Other Reven e Contrib tions 

Increase in Capital Financing Req irement 

3,227 12,114 

10,165 37,695 
76 56 

2,443 10 
217 222 

3,247 1,799 
16,148 39,782 

(741) (2,012) 
(1,367) (4,721) 
(4,623) (3,881) 
(530) (755) 

(7,262) (11,368) 

8,887 28,414 

Closing Capital Finance Requirement 12,114 40,527 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Where capital expendit re is to be financed in f t re years by charges to 
reven e as assets are  sed by the Co ncil, the expendit re res lts in in an 
increase in the Capital Financing Req irement (CFR), a meas re of the capital 
expendit re inc rred historically by the Co ncil that has yet to be financed. In 
this instance the f nding will come from internal borrowing  sing existing cash 
balances, in accordance with the agreed Treas ry Management Strategy for 
2019/20. 

Accounting Policy Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under 
Statute 

Expendit re inc rred d ring the year that may be capitalised  nder stat tory 
provisions b t does not res lt in the creation of non-c rrent assets has been 
charged as expendit re to the relevant service reven e acco nt in the year. 
Where the Co ncil has determined to meet the cost of this expendit re from 
existing capital reso rces or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital Adj stment 
Acco nt then reverses o t the amo nts charged in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement so there is no impact on the level of co ncil tax. 

31 - DEFI ED BE EFIT PE SIO  SCHEMES 

Participation in Pension Schemes 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Co ncil 
makes contrib tions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Altho gh 
these benefits will not act ally be payable  ntil employees retire, the Co ncil has 
a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time the 
employees earn their f t re entitlement. 

The Co ncil participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), 
administered locally by Kent Co nty Co ncil – this is a f nded defined benefit 
Career Average Reval ed Earnings (CARE) pension scheme, meaning that the 
Co ncil and employees pay contrib tions into a f nd, calc lated at a level 
intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets. 

D e to the adoption of the 2011 amendments to the International Acco nting 
Standard (IAS) 19 Employee Benefits, there are now classes of components of 
defined benefit cost to be incl ded in the financial statements, i.e. net interest 
on the net defined benefit liability and re-meas rements of the net defined 
benefit liability. 

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services 
when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are 
event ally paid as pensions. However, the charge we are req ired to make 
against co ncil tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of 
post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed o t of the General F nd via the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in 
the Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement and the General F nd 
Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement d ring the year: 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement (CI&ES) 
Cost of Services: 
Service cost comprising: 
- C rrent service cost 
- Past service costs incl ding c rtailments 

Financing and Investment Income & 
Expendit re: 
- Net interest expense 

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services 

Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the CI&ES 
Remeas rement of the net defined benefit 
liability comprising: 
- Ret rn on plan assets (excl ding the amo nt 
incl ded in net interest expense) 
- Act arial gains and losses arising on changes 
in financial ass mptions 
- Act arial gains and losses arising on changes 
in demographic ass mptions 
-Experience gains and losses on defined 
benefit obligation 
- Other act arial gains and losses 

4,913 
17 

1,935 

6,865 

5,508 

(6,661) 

10,591 

0 
0 

6,233 
1,130 

1,673 

9,036 

(11,199) 

16,436 

2,631 

(4,952) 
(848) 

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the CI&ES 16,303 11,104 

Movement in Reserves Statement: 
- Reversal of net charges made to the 
S rpl s or Deficit for the Provision of Services 
for post employment benefits in accordance 
with the Code 

Act al amo nt charged against the General 
F nd Balance for pensions in the year: 
- Employers' contrib tions payable to the 
scheme 

6,865 

(3,564) 

9,036 

(4,772) 

3,301 4,264 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Curtailments 

No employees were permitted to take  nred ced early retirement that they 
wo ld not otherwise have been entitled to over the past year. (2018/19, two 
former employees became entitled as a cost of £17,000). 

Settlements 

There were no liabilities settled at a cost materially different to the acco nting 
reserve as a res lt of members transferring to / from another employer over the 
year (2018/19 £nil). 

McCloud Case 

An allowance has been made for the recent Co rt of Appeal j dgement in 
relation to the McClo d case which related to age discrimination within pension 
schemes. On 27 J ne 2019 the S preme Co rt denied the Government’s 
req est for an appeal, and on 15 J ly 2019 the Government released a 
statement to confirm that it expects to have to amend all p blic service 
schemes, incl ding the LGPS. The estimated impact on the total liabilities at 31 
March 2020 has been allowed for as a past service cost and has res lted in an 
increase in the service cost and defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2020. 

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 

The amo nt incl ded in the Balance Sheet arising from the Co ncil’s obligation in 
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows: 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Present val e of f nded obligation 

Fair val e of plan assets 
Contributions by scheme participants 

Present val e of  nf nded obligation 

183,242 

(113,698) 
69,544 

1,937 

175,391 

(103,305) 
72,086 

1,591 

 et liability arising from defined 
benefit obligation 71,481 73,677 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) 
Assets 

2018/19 2019/20 
£000 £000 

Opening fair val e of Scheme assets 
Interest on assets 
Ret rn on assets less interest 
Administration expenses 
Contrib tions by employer incl ding  nf nded 
Contrib tions paid by scheme participants 
Estimated benefits paid pl s  nf nded net of 
transfers in 
Other act arial gains/(losses) 

106,524 113,698 
2,703 2,716 
5,561 (11,133) 
(53) (66) 

3,547 3,642 
885 939 

(5,469) (5,643) 
0 (848) 

Closing fair value of Scheme assets 113,698 103,305 

Reconciliation of Present Value of Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit 
Obligation) 

2018/19 2019/20 
£000 £000 

Opening balance at 1 April 
C rrent Service cost 
Interest cost 
Change in financial ass mptions 
Changes in demographic ass mptions 
Experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit 
obligation 
Past service costs, incl ding c rtailments 
Estimated benefits paid net of transfers in 
Contrib tions by Scheme participants 
Unf nded pension payments 

184,142 185,179 
4,896 5,103 
4,638 4,389 
6,661 (16,436) 

(10,591) (2,631) 

0 4,952 
17 1,130 

(5,314) (5,491) 
885 939 

(155) (152) 

Closing balance at 31 March 185,179 176,982 

The estimated impact of the recent McClo d j dgement has been incl ded as a 
past service cost. The estimated impact of the total liabilities as at 31st March 
2020 is £1.130m (or 0.7% as a percentage of total liabilities). 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

Local Government Pension Scheme Assets 

31st March 2019 
£000 % 

31st March 2020 
£000 % 

Eq ities 
Gilts 
Other Bonds 
Property 
Cash 
Absol te ret rn f nd 

77,963 68% 
748 1% 

10,353 9% 
13,656 12% 
1,984 2% 
8,994 8% 

63,552 61% 
803 1% 

13,465 13% 
14,056 14% 
2,704 3% 
8,725 8% 

Total 113,698 100% 103,305 100% 

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 

Liabilities have been assessed on an act arial basis  sing the projected  nit 
credit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in f t re years 
dependent  pon ass mptions abo t mortality rates, salary levels, etc. 

The scheme has been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of 
act aries. Estimates for the Kent Co nty Co ncil Pension F nd are based on the 
f ll val ation of the scheme as at 31st March 2019. 

The principal ass mptions  sed by the act ary have been: 

2018/19 2019/20 
Long-term expected rate of return of 
assets in the scheme 
Mortality Assumptions 
Longevity at 65 for c rrent pensioners 
- Men 
- Women 
Longevity at 65 for f t re pensioners 
- Men 
- Women 

Financial Assumptions 
RPI increases 
CPI increases 
Salary increases 
Pension increases 
Disco nt Rate 

22.0 21.8 
24.0 23.7 

23.7 23.2 
25.8 25.2 

3.40% 2.75% 
2.40% 1.95% 
3.90% 3.85% 
2.40% 2.35% 
2.40% 2.55% 

The long term ass mption made by the act ary is that salaries will increase at 
1% p.a. above CPI. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the act arial 
ass mptions set o t in the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the ass mptions 
occ rring at the end of the reporting period and ass mes for each change that 
the ass mption analysed changes while all the other ass mptions remain 
constant. The ass mptions in longevity, for example, ass me that life 
expectancy increases or decreases similarly for men and women. In practice, 
this is  nlikely to occ r. Changes in some of the ass mptions may also be 
interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the 
acco nting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an act arial basis  sing the projected 
 nit credit method. The methods and types of ass mption  sed in preparing the 
sensitivity analysis below did not change from those  sed in the previo s period. 

Sensitivity Analysis £000 £000 £000 
Adj stment to disco nt rate 
- Present Val e of Total Obligation 
- Projected Service Cost 

Adj stment to long-term salary increase 
- Present Val e of Total Obligation 
- Projected Service Cost 

Adj stment to pension increases and 
deferred reval ation 
- Present Val e of Total Obligation 
- Projected Service Cost 

Adj stment to life expectancy ass mptions 
- Present Val e of Total Obligation 
- Projected Service Cost 

+0.1% 
173,540 

4,686 

+0.1% 
177,356 

4,820 

+0.1% 
180,133 

4,952 

+1 Year 
184,567 

4,965 

0.0% 
176,892 

4,818 

0.0% 
176,982 

4,818 

0.0% 
176,982 

4,818 

None 
176,982 

4,818 

-0.1% 
180,496 

4,954 

-0.1% 
176,612 

4,816 

-0.1% 
173,893 

4,687 

-1 Year 
169,736 

4,675 

Scheme History 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
£000 £000 £000 

2018/19 2019/20 
£000 £000 

Present val e of defined 
benefit obligation in the Local 
Government Pension Scheme 

Fair val e of assets in the 
Local Government Pension 
Scheme 

Present val e of  nf nded 
obligation 

(149,896) (183,756) (182,032) 

87,447 104,482 106,524 

(2,192) (2,260) (2,110) 

(183,242) (175,391) 

113,698 103,305 

(1,937) (1,591) 

Surplus/(Deficit) in the 
scheme (64,641) (81,534) (77,618) (71,481) (73,677) 

The liabilities show the  nderlying commitments that the Co ncil has in the long 
r n to pay post-employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of 
£73.677m has a s bstantial impact on the net worth of the Co ncil as recorded 
in the Balance Sheet. However, stat tory arrangements for f nding the deficit 
mean that the financial position of the Co ncil remains healthy. The deficit on 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

the local government scheme will be made good by increased contrib tions over 
the remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments fall d e), as 
assessed by the scheme act ary. The total contrib tions expected to be made to 
the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Co ncil in the year to 31st March 
2021 are £3.555m 

Accounting Policy Employee Benefits 

Benefits Payable During Employment 

Short-term employee benefits are those d e to be settled within 12 months of 
the year-end. They incl de benefits s ch as wages and salaries, paid ann al 
leave and paid sick leave, bon ses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for 
c rrent employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in 
which employees render service to the Co ncil. An accr al is made for the cost 
of holiday entitlements (or any type of leave e.g. time off in lie ) earned by 
employees b t not taken before the year-end which employees can carry 
forward into the next financial year. The accr al is made at the wage and salary 
rates applicable in the following acco nting year, being the period in which the 
employee takes the benefit. The accr al is charged to the S rpl s or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services, b t then reversed o t thro gh the Movement in 
Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to reven e in the 
financial year in which the holiday absence occ rs. 

Post-Employment Benefits 

Employees of the Co ncil are members of the Local Government Pensions 
Scheme, administered by Kent Co nty Co ncil (KCC). The Scheme is acco nted 
for as a defined benefits scheme: 

• The liabilities of the KCC pension scheme attrib table to the Co ncil are 
incl ded in the Balance Sheet on an act arial basis  sing the projected 
 nit method – i.e. an assessment of the f t re payments that will be 
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, 
based on ass mptions abo t mortality rates, employee t rnover rates, 
etc. and projected earnings for c rrent employees. 

• Liabilities are disco nted to their val e at c rrent prices,  sing a disco nt 
rate specified by the act aries (based on the indicative rate of ret rn on 
high q ality corporate bonds.) 

• The assets of the KCC pension f nd attrib table to the Co ncil are 
incl ded in the Balance Sheet at their fair val e: 

o Q oted sec rities – c rrent bid price 
o Unq oted sec rities – professional estimate 
o Unitised sec rities – c rrent bid price 
o Property – market val e 

• The change in net pensions liability is analysed into the following 
components: 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

o Service cost which comprises: 
- C rrent service cost – the increase in liabilities as a res lt of years 
of service earned in the c rrent year – allocated in the 
Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement to the services for 
which the employees worked. 
- Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a res lt of a 
scheme amendment or c rtailment whose effect relates to years of 
service earned in earlier years – debited to the S rpl s or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income & 
Expendit re Statement. 
- Net interest on the net defined benefit liability, i.e. net interest 
expense for the Co ncil – the change d ring the period in the net 
defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time charged 
to the Financing & Investment Income & Expendit re line of the 
Comprehensive Income & Expendit re Statement. 

o Re-meas rements comprising: 
- act arial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability 
that arise beca se events have not coincided with ass mptions 
made at the last act arial val ation or beca se the act aries have 
 pdated their ass mptions. This charged to the Pensions Reserve as 
Other Comprehensive Income & Expendit re. 
- the ret rn on plan assets – excl ding amo nts incl ded in net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability. This charged to the 
Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income & Expendit re. 

o Contrib tions paid to the Kent Co nty Co ncil pension f nd – cash 
paid as employer’s contrib tions to the pension f nd in settlement 
of liabilities; not acco nted for as an expense. 

In relation to retirement benefits, stat tory provisions req ire the General F nd 
balance to be charged with the amo nt payable by the Co ncil to the pension 
f nd in the year, not the amo nt calc lated according to the relevant acco nting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are 
transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and 
credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to 
the pension f nd and any amo nts payable to the f nd b t  npaid at the year-
end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby 
meas res the beneficial impact to the General F nd of being req ired to acco nt 
for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are 
earned by employees. 

Contrib tions to the pension scheme are determined by the F nd’s act ary on a 
triennial basis. The most recent act arial val ation to determine contrib tions 
was on 31 March 2019. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Co ncil also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of 
retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

arise as a res lt of an award and acco nted for  sing the same policies as are 
applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

32 – LEASES 

Finance Leases – Council as Lessee 

The Co ncil c rrently has a n mber of arrangements which it classifies as 
finance leases, incl ding vehicles and the operation of the leis re centre. 

The f t re minim m payments d e  nder these arrangements in f t re years 
are: 

31st March 
2019 
£000 

31st March 
2020 
£000 

Not more than 1 year 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 
Later than 5 years 

642 
2,527 

0 

559 
2,030 

0 
3,169 2,589 

Accounting Policy Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 
s bstantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, 
plant or eq ipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified 
as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and b ildings, the land and b ildings elements 
are considered separately for classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal stat s of a lease b t convey a right to 
 se an asset in ret rn for payment are acco nted for  nder this policy where 
f lfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the  se of specific assets. 

34 – EVE TS AFTER THE REPORTI G PERIOD 

The Statement of Acco nts was a thorised for iss e by the Director of Finance & 
B siness Improvement on 18th J ne 2020. Events taking place after this date are 
not reflected in the financial statement or notes. Where events taking place 
before this date provided information abo t conditions existing at 31st March 
2020 the fig res in the financial statements and notes have been adj sted in all 
material respects to reflect the impact of this information. 

Covid-19 Pandemic 

The impact of the pandemic on the period covered by the Statement of Acco nts 
was limited, with lockdown meas res only taking effect on 24 March 2020, right 
at the end of the period. However, there will be a very significant financial 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

impact in the new financial year, both from additional costs inc rred by the 
Co ncil in 

responding to the pandemic, and from a red ction in income across almost all 
the Co ncil’s reven e streams, incl ding Co ncil Tax, B siness Rates, and fees 
and charges for the services that we provide. 

Accounting Policy Events after the Balance Sheet Date 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favo rable and 
 nfavo rable, that occ r between the end of the reporting period and the date 
when the Statement of Acco nts is a thorised for iss e. Two types of events can 
be identified: 

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period – the Statement of Acco nts is adj sted to reflect s ch 
events. 

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting 
period – the Statement of Acco nts is not adj sted to reflect s ch events, 
b t where a category of events wo ld have a material effect, disclos re is 
made in the notes of the nat re of the events and their estimated financial 
effect. 

Events taking place after the date of a thorisation for iss e are not reflected in 
the Statement of Acco nts. 

35 – CASH FLOW STATEME T - ADJUSTME TS MADE TO  ET SURPLUS 
OR DEFICIT O  THE PROVISIO  OF SERVICES FOR  O -CASH 
MOVEME TS 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Depreciation 
Reval ation Gains & Losses 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 
Movement in Creditors 
Movement in Debtors 
Movement in Inventories 
Movement in Pension Liabilities 
Other Non-Cash items 

(5,138) 
1,351 
(124) 

(6,837) 
4,579 
(13) 

(3,301) 
872 

(4,160) 
(839) 
(135) 

(2,908) 
869 
69 

(4,264) 
1,038 

(8,610) (10,329) 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

36 – CASH FLOW STATEME T - ADJUSTME TS FOR ITEMS I CLUDED I  
THE  ET SURPLUS OR DEFICIT O  THE PROVISIO  OF SERVICES THAT 
ARE I VESTI G & FI A CI G ACTIVITIES 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Capital Grants credited to s rpl s or deficit on 
the provision of services 
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & 
Eq ipment 

1,367 

812 

4,411 

1,961 

2,180 6,372 

37 - CASH FLOW STATEME T – I VESTI G ACTIVITIES 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

P rchase of property, plant & 
eq ipment, investment 
property and intangible assets 
P rchase of short-term and 
long-term investments 
Proceeds from the sale of 
property, plant & eq ipment, 
investment property and 
intangible assets 
Proceeds from short-term and 
long-term investments 
Other payments for investing 
activities 
Other receipts for investing 
activities (Grants) 

11,677 

3,000 

(816) 

(6,000) 

48 

(2,478) 

38,246 

0 

(1,963) 

(4,000) 

0 

(5,482) 

 et cash flows from 
investing activities 5,430 26,800 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

38 - CASH FLOW STATEME T – FI A CI G ACTIVITIES 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Cash receipts of short- and 
long-term borrowing 
Repayments of short & long-
term borrowing 
Other payments for 
financing activities 

0 

521 

1,095 

(11,000) 

520 

(7,688) 

 et cash flows from 
financing activities 1,616 (18,168) 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

COLLECTIO  FU D STATEME T &  OTES 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

109,505 

61,636 

171,141 

76,387 
10,436 
17,447 
4,661 

33,407 
22,649 

566 

1,508 

33 

195 
1,639 

427 
708 

(519) 
(531) 

206 

169,219 

1,922 

(3,040) 

2,340 
(3,458) 

I COME 

Income From Co ncil Tax 

Income From B siness Rates (Note 2) 

Total Income 

EXPE DITURE 

Precepts and Demands - Co ncil Tax 
Kent Co nty Co ncil 
Kent Police & Crime Commissioner 
Maidstone Boro gh Co ncil 
Kent Fire & Resc e A thority 

Shares of B siness Rates 
Central Government 
Kent Co nty Co ncil 
Maidstone Boro gh Co ncil 
Kent Fire & Resc e A thority 

Transitional Protection Payments - B siness Rates 

Disregarded Amo nts - B siness Rates 

Impairment of Debts - Co ncil Tax 
Write offs of  ncollectable amo nts 
Additional / (Red ced) Impairment of Aged Debt 

Impairment of Debts/Appeals - B siness Rates 
Write offs of  ncollectable amo nts 
Additional / (Red ced) Impairment of Aged Debt 
Losses on appeal 
Additional / (Red ced) Provision For Appeals 

Cost of Collection Allowance - B siness Rates 

Total Expenditure 

S rpl s/(Deficit) For Year 

S rpl s/(Deficit) Bro ght Forward From Previo s Years 

Surplus/(Deficit) on Council Tax 
Surplus/(Deficit) on Business Rates 

117,579 

60,304 

177,883 

82,402 
12,227 
18,503 
4,933 

25,411 
6,808 

21,843 
546 

985 

173 

260 
1,401 

823 
119 

(746) 
1,354 

205 

177,249 

634 

(1,118) 

193 
(678) 

(1,118) Surplus/(Deficit) as at 31st March 2020 (484) 

The Collection F nd is an agent’s statement that reflects the stat tory obligation 
for billing a thorities to maintain a separate Collection F nd. The statement 
shows the transactions of this co ncil in relation to the collection from taxpayers 
and distrib tion to local a thorities and the Government of co ncil tax and non-
domestic rates. Respective shares of Balance Sheet items are consolidated into 
the acco nts of billing and precepting a thorities. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

 otes to the Collection Fund 

 ote 1 – Council Tax 

Co ncil Tax income derives from charges raised according to the val e of 
residential properties, which have been classified into 8 val ation bands 
estimating, for this specific p rpose, 1st April 1991 val es. Individ al charges 
are calc lated by estimating the amo nt of income req ired to be taken from the 
Collection F nd by Kent Co nty Co ncil, the Kent Police & Crime Commissioner, 
Kent Fire & Resc e A thority and this Co ncil for the forthcoming year and 
dividing this by the Co ncil Tax base which is the total n mber of properties in 
each band adj sted by a proportion to convert the n mber to a Band D 
eq ivalent and adj sted for disco nts: 62,033.4 for 2019/20 (60,921.6 for 
2018/19) (see table below.) This basic amo nt of Co ncil Tax for a Band D 
property, £1,830.79 for 2019/20 (£1,735.24 for 2018/19), is m ltiplied by the 
proportion specified for the partic lar band to give an individ al amo nt d e. 
Parish Precepts are added to this basic amo nt. 

The bands, n mber of dwellings in each, the m ltiplier for each and the res ltant 
tax base are detailed in the table below. 

Band 
 umber of 
Dwellings Multiplier 

Council Tax 
Base 

Band A (incl disabled relief) 
Band A 
Band B 
Band C 
Band D 
Band E 
Band F 
Band G 
Band H 
Other 

0 
2,540 
6,283 

15,400 
16,186 
8,824 
5,202 
3,845 
337 

0 

5/9 
6/9 
7/9 
8/9 
9/9 

11/9 
13/9 
15/9 
18/9 

0.0 
1,693.5 
4,887.0 

13,689.1 
16,186.3 
10,785.1 
7,513.5 
6,408.1 
674.8 
196.1 

62,033.4 

 ote 2 - Business ( on-domestic) Rates 

The Co ncil collects B siness Rates for its area based on rateable val es (as 
determined by the Val ation Office Agency) and m ltipliers set by Central 
Government. There are two m ltipliers: 

• Standard M ltiplier 50.4p / £ Rateable Val e (49.3p in 2018/19) 

• Small B siness M ltiplier 49.1p / £ Rateable Val e (48.0p in 2018/19) 

The rateable val e at 31st March 2020 was £147.123 (£145.864m at 31st March 
2019). 

For 2019/20, it was calc lated that the Co ncil wo ld receive £21.843m in 
b siness rates (£22.649m in 2018/19). 

A system of Tariff and Top-Up payments operates on the localised shares 
distrib ted to local government bodies. A significant proportion of Maidstone’s 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

retained share (£19.028m in 2019/20, £18.602m in 2018/19) is s bseq ently 
‘top-sliced’ and ret rned to the Government for redistrib tion across local 
government. 

A f rther Safety Net or Levy system acts to ens re that any local a thority is 
protected from a net localised b siness rate yield of less than 92.5% of its 
Baseline F nding level set by the government. In these circ mstances a local 
a thority will receive a Safety Net grant. This grant is paid for by imposing a 
50% levy on localised b siness rate receipts in excess of their Baseline F nding 
level. 

Since April 2013, the Co ncil has participated in a pooled arrangement with Kent 
Co nty Co ncil, Kent Fire and Resc e A thority and nine other district co ncils in 
Kent in order to minimise the levy payment d e to Central Government and 
thereby maximise the retention of locally generated B siness Rates. 

B siness Rates s rpl ses/deficits declared by the Billing A thority in relation to 
the Collection F nd are apportioned to the relevant precepting bodies and 
Government in the s bseq ent financial year in their respective proportions. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

ACCOU TI G POLICIES 

The specific policies and proced res  sed by the Co ncil to prepare the 
Statement of Acco nts. These incl de any methods, meas rement systems and 
proced res for presenting disclos res. 

ACCOU TS 

Statement aggregating items of income and expendit re and assets and 
liabilities. The acco nts may show detailed transactions for every activity 
(generally  sed for management and control p rposes d ring a financial year) or 
be s mmarised to show the overall position at the end of the period. The latter 
are known as final acco nts and show both the net s rpl s (profit) or deficit 
(loss) and a balance sheet of the assets, liabilities and other balances at the end 
of the acco nting period. Co ncils are req ired to p blish a Statement of 
Acco nts as specified in the Acco nts and A dit Reg lations 2011. 

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

Assets that the Co ncil are actively marketing for sale, and for which there is a 
reasonable expectation that the sale will take place within one year of the 
Balance Sheet date. 

BALA CE SHEET 

A statement of the assets, liabilities and other balances of the Co ncil at the end 
of an acco nting period. 

BALA CES 

Capital or reven e reserves of the Co ncil made  p of the acc m lated s rpl s 
of income over expendit re on the general f nd or any other acco nt. Reven e 
balances may be  tilised to provide for  nforeseen circ mstances, to ens re that 
payments can be made pending the receipt of income, and if j stified they may 
be  sed to red ce the collection f nd levy. 

CAPITAL EXPE DITURE 

Generally, expendit re which is of val e to the Co ncil in the provision of 
services beyond the end of the financial year in which it was inc rred, e.g. 
p rchase of land and b ildings, constr ction or improvement of b ildings. 

CAPITAL FI A CI G 

The raising of money to pay for capital expendit re. Us ally the cost of capital 
assets is met by borrowing, b t capital expendit re may also be financed by 
other means s ch as leasing, contrib tions from the reven e acco nts, the 
proceeds of the sale of capital assets, capital grants, reserves and other 
contrib tions. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

CAPITAL RECEIPTS 

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets. Capital receipts can be  sed to repay 
the debt on assets financed from loan or to finance new capital expendit re, 
s bject to compliance with stat tory req irements. 

COLLECTIO  FU D 

Co ncils that collect precepts and non-domestic rates on behalf of other 
a thorities are req ired to maintain a Collection F nd to s mmarise the 
collection and payments of precepts, and any associated adj stments. 

CREDITORS 

Amo nts owed by the Co ncil for work done, goods received, or services 
rendered b t for which payment had not been made at the date of the balance 
sheet. 

DEBTORS 

S ms of money d e to the Co ncil b t  npaid at the balance sheet date. 

DEPRECIATIO  

The meas re of the wearing o t, cons mption, or other red ction in the  sef l 
economic life of a non-c rrent asset, whether arising from  se, passage of time 
or obsolescence thro gh technological or other changes. 

GE ERAL FU D 

The main reven e acco nt of a charging a thority that s mmarises the cost of 
all services provided by the Co ncil. 

HERITAGE ASSETS 

Heritage Assets are defined as assets with historical, artistic, scientific, 
technological, geophysical or environmental q alities that are held and 
maintained principally for their contrib tion to knowledge or c lt re. 

I TA GIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets are assets that do not have a physical s bstance b t are 
identifiable and controlled by the Co ncil, s ch as comp ter software. 

I TER ATIO AL FI A CIAL REPORTI G STA DARDS (IFRS) 

These are the acco nting standards (as adapted for the p blic sector) that the 
Co ncil are req ired to follow when preparing the ann al Statement of Acco nts. 

I VESTME T PROPERTIES 

Investment properties are those that are  sed solely to earn rentals and/or for 
capital appreciation. 
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Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

PROPERTY, PLA T & EQUIPME T 

Assets that have physical s bstance and are held for  se in the provision of 
services or for administrative p rposes on a contin ing basis. 

REVE UE EXPE DITURE FU DED FROM CAPITAL BY STATUTE 

Expendit re inc rred d ring the year that may be capitalised  nder stat tory 
provisions b t does not res lt in the creation of property, plant or eq ipment, 
and is charged as expendit re to the relevant service reven e acco nt in the 
year. 

REVE UE SUPPORT GRA T 

A general grant paid by central government to local a thorities to help finance 
the cost of services. It is paid to charging a thorities for credit to the Collection 
F nd. 

REVE UE ACCOU T 

An acco nt which records the day to day expendit re and income of the Co ncil 
on s ch items as salaries and wages, r nning costs of services, the p rchase of 
cons mable materials and eq ipment, and the financing costs of capital assets. 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

An allocation of the net cost of the administrative and professional departments 
which provide s pport for all the Co ncil’s services (e.g. Exec tive Services, 
Finance, Personnel), together with the costs of pooled administrative b ildings. 

USABLE CAPITAL RECEIPTS 

F nds received by an a thority from the sale of capital assets that have yet to 
be  sed to finance capital expendit re or repay debt. 

U USABLE RESERVES 

These are non-cash reserves that are kept to manage the acco nting processes 
for non-c rrent assets, retirement benefits and employee benefits and do not 
represent  sable reso rces for the Co ncil. 

USABLE RESERVES 

These are f nds available to the Co ncil and represent specific amo nts set-
aside for f t re policy p rposes or earmarked p rposes, incl ding the General 
F nd and the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

Page 79 



     
 

 

  
 

   
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

I DEPE DE T AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To follow 
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Introduction 

The Ann al Governance Statement is a review of the Co ncil’s governance 
arrangements in 2019-20. The statement eval ates how we meet the 

governance framework and provides an opinion on whether the c rrent 
governance arrangements are fit for p rpose. 

Conclusion on Significant  overnance Issues 

Overall, we can confirm that the Co ncil has the appropriate systems and 
processes in place. Whilst we are satisfied the governance arrangements in 
general work well o r review has identified additional actions to ens re good 

standards of governance are maintained. The most significant governance iss es 
relate to COVID-19, and also incl ded are the most significant risks from the 

Corporate Risk Register. In developing a recovery plan from COVID19, the 
Co ncil will take steps to ens re that its financial obligations are adhered to, 
partic larly the legal d ty to set and maintain a balanced b dget. The risk will 

be addressed thro gh constant monitoring of the b dget d ring the year and 
appropriate remedial action taken. The S151 Officer has a personal d ty  nder 

Section 114(3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 to report to the 
Co ncil if it appears that the set b dget will be exceeded. Key considerations for 
the Co ncil incl de the need for an adeq ate contingency provision, the S151 

officer’s g idance on the financial pr dence of options before members and 
ens ring that there are reasonable gro nds for making decisions. 

Updates on the areas for improvement will be provided to the A dit Governance 
and Standards Committee on a six-monthly basis and kept  nder review by the 

internal Corporate Governance Gro p. 

Areas for Improvement 2020-21 

Key improvement area Lead Officer To be 
delivered by 

Ens re financial risk arising from the Director of 1 March 2021 

impact of COVID-19 are managed Finance and 
B siness 

Improvement 

Poor management of contracts or financial 
resilience of contractors leads to 

significant contract failure disr pting 
services and creating extra liabilities. 
Potential impact on the capital programme 

beca se of the resilience of o r 
contractors. 

Director of 
Finance and 

B siness 
Improvement 

1 March 2021 

Exit of EU on  nfavo rable terms res lts 

in adverse short-term Brexit impacts 
disr pting the Co ncil's ability to offer 
services and increasing liabilities. 

Director of 

Finance and 
B siness 
Improvement 

1 March 2021 
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Key improvement area Lead Officer To be 

delivered by 

Data Protection Areas identified for Data Protection 1 November 

Improvement in 2020-21: 
• Record of Processing Activity 

 pdated 

Officer 2020 

CCTV 
• Information sharing g idance 

iss ed and training rolled o t 
• Asset Register and Retention 

Sched le review completed and 

changes implemented 

1 March 2021 

Capacity to deliver the investment and 
regeneration programme – (link to 

Corporate Risk Register). 

Director of 
Regeneration 

and Place 

1 March 2022 

Property Maintenance, Health and Safety 
Compliance. 

Director of 
Finance and 
B siness 

Improvement 

1 March 2021 

Ens ring we are resilient and contin e to 

b ild relationships with partners. 

Chief Exec tive 1 March 2021 

Declaration of Interests. Monitoring 
Officer 

1 November 
2020 

Promoting decision making on Garden 
Comm nities ens ring information is 

p blicly available and accessible and the 
role of the co ncil as developer vers s the 
role as the planning a thority is clear. 

Chief Exec tive 1 March 2021 

Scope of Responsibility 

Maidstone Boro gh Co ncil is responsible for ens ring that its b siness is 

cond cted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that p blic 
money is safeg arded and properly acco nted for. Maidstone Boro gh Co ncil 

also has a d ty  nder the Local Government Act 1999 to sec re contin o s 
improvement in the way in which its f nctions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. This Ann al Governance 

Statement for 2019-20 also meets the req irements of the Acco nts and A dit 
Reg lations 2015, reg lation 6(1) which req ire an a thority to cond ct a review 

of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and the d ty to prepare an 
ann al governance statement. 

Key  overnance Roles and Responsibilities 

The Co ncil operates a committee system of governance and the Leader is the 
foc s for political direction and the chief spokesperson for the Co ncil. The 

Leader is also Chair of the Policy and Reso rces Committee. The Co ncil has fo r 
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service committees taking decisions within their terms of reference as agreed by 
Co ncil; individ al Co ncillors do not have delegated a thority from Co ncil to 

make decisions. In addition, there are committees that deal with licensing, 
planning, a dit, governance and standards, democracy and employment and 

other reg latory matters. The n mbers shown in the diagram below reflect 
membership. 

The Co ncil’s Section 151 Officer, Mark Green, and the Monitoring Officer, 

Patricia Narebor, are key members of the Corporate Leadership Team, reviewing 
all decisions taken thro gh Leadership Team, Committees and F ll Co ncil. The 
Section 151 Officer has a n mber of stat tory d ties, incl ding the d ty to 

report any  nlawf l financial activity involving the a thority (past, present or 
proposed) or fail re to set or keep to a balanced b dget. The Section 151 Officer 

also has a n mber of stat tory powers to allow this role to be carried o t, s ch 
as the right to insist that the local a thority makes s fficient financial provision 
for the cost of internal a dit. 

The Monitoring Officer serves as the g ardian of the Co ncil's Constit tion and 

the decision-making process. D ring 2019-20, amendments to the Constit tion 
have been referred to the Democracy and General P rposes Committee and 
revisions implemented in line with the decision of the Committee and  nder the 

Monitoring Officer’s delegation. The Monitoring Officer is also responsible for 
advising the Co ncil on the legality of its decisions and providing g idance to 
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co ncillors and officers on the Co ncil's Constit tion and its powers. This 
incl des dealing with complaints  nder the Co ncillors’ Code of Cond ct. 

The Corporate Leadership Team is led by the Chief Exec tive who is Head of Paid 

Service with overall corporate management and operational responsibility. 

The Head of Policy, Comm nications and Governance, has responsibility for 

corporate governance, leading the Co ncil’s corporate governance gro p and 
coordinating the ann al governance statement as well as ens ring the Local 

Code of Corporate Governance is  pdated. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, Maidstone Boro gh Co ncil is 

responsible for p tting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its 
affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its f nctions which incl des 

arrangements for the management of risk. 

The Co ncil has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance in 

2017, which is consistent with the principles of the Chartered Instit te of P blic 
Finance & Acco ntancy (CIPFA) and Society of Local A thority Chief Exec tive’s 

(SOLACE) Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
G idance Notes for English A thorities 2016. 

Our  overnance Framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and c lt re 
and val es, by which the Co ncil is directed and controlled, and the activities 

thro gh which it is acco ntable to, engages with and leads the comm nity. It 
enables the Co ncil to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to 

consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-
effective services. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is 
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of 

fail re to achieve the Co ncil’s objectives, and therefore can only provide 
reasonable and not absol te ass rance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise risks to 

the achievement of the Co ncil’s objectives, to eval ate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact sho ld they be realised, and to manage them 

efficiently, effectively and economically. 

This governance framework has been in place at Maidstone Boro gh Co ncil for 

the year ended 31 March 2020 and  p to the date of approval of the Statement 
of Acco nts. 

The International Framework: Good Governance in the P blic Sector states that: 

“Governance comprises the arrangements p t in place to ens re that the 

intended o tcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved.” 

O r Local Code sets o t the framework within which we cond ct o r b siness 
and affairs and the governance str ct re we have in place. Whilst this code sets 
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o t principles, processes and policies, it is the application of the framework that 

will demonstrate good governance. 

This statement sets o t how we have demonstrated and met those principles in 

2019-20. 

The 7 principles within the Local Code of Corporate  overnance 

  



 

 

    

             

  

        

  
 

 

  

    
   

   

  
    

 
 

     

       
       

  

 
        

       
        

  

 
        

       
       

        

       
       

        
 

 

      
         

        
      

        

        
      

         
        

 

       
       

         
        

       

        
         

         
         

          
         

        

 
 

Looking back at 2019-20 

A n mber of improvement actions were identified as part of the 2018-19 Ann al 

Governance Statement. 

The table below shows progress with these actions: 

Key Improvement 
Area 

Update 

Ens ring s fficient 

reso rce to deliver the 
ambition for embracing 
growth and enabling 

infrastr ct re priority 
(link to Corporate Risk 

Register) 

The Regeneration and Economic Development 

service has been refoc sed towards investment in 
and delivery of the Co ncil’s growth and 
infrastr ct re projects. 

The Co ncil works in collaboration with Kent Co nty 

Co ncil to sec re infrastr ct re monies above those 
s ms collected via Section 106 and the Comm nity 
Infrastr ct re Levy. 

Local Growth F nd monies were sec red to part 

f nd a programme of j nction improvements to 
mitigate development in the c rrent Local Plan. 
Whilst programmes s ch as this are complex to 

deliver, KCC have now completed their p blic 
cons ltation on the vario s proposals and are 

optimistic that works will commence on site this 
year. 

Another example is the highways improvements 
o tside of the Kent Medical Camp s that are being 

accelerated by a s ccessf l bid to the National 
Infrastr ct re Prod ctivity F nd, again with KCC. 
Monies sec red exceeded £9m, to incl de a £0.5m 

loan from the Co ncil, and this will f nd 
improvements to two nearby ro ndabo ts and 

provide the d elling of the road between them and 
works on site will commence in September 2020. 

F rthermore, the Co ncil has two mixed ten re 
ho sing developments on site at Br nswick Street 

and Union Street, and again the Co ncil sec red in 
excess of £0.6m from the MHCLG Land Release 
F nd to  nlock these complex brownfield sites. 

F rthermore, an additional bid has been made for 
two more schemes for projects at King Street and 

Medway Street in the town centre for which the 
o tcome is awaited. The Co ncil also has a f rther 

14 apartments for PRS on site at the Springfield Mill 
development on the edge of the town centre. These 
new apartments will be ready for occ pation in 

2021. 
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Key Improvement 

Area 

Update 

The Co ncil has also sec red Local Enterprise 

Partnership Local Growth F nd monies of £1m to 
f nd improvements to the Maidstone East Ticket 
Office, pl s £1m of National Station Improvement 

F nds. The project is now in site and will be 
complete by December 2020. 

Progress has been made in this area, however as 
this contin es to be a priority and a risk for the 

Co ncil it has been incl ded as an area to improve 
in 2020/21. 

Ens ring there is 

protection against 
bribery and corr ption. 

Online learning training mod les have been made 

available to staff following a Team Talk in December 
on gifts and hospitality. 

The Co ncil’s Co nter Fra d and Corr ption Policy 
was refreshed in Jan ary 2020, the refresh made 

minor text al amendments and additional 
information added to the ‘F rther Advice and 

S pport Section’. 

Anti-Money La ndering Policy and G idance was 

approved by the A dit, Governance and Standards 
Committee in March 2020. 

We will keep these policies and their performance 
 nder review, b t we have not identified this as an 

improvement area for 2020/21. 

Capacity to deliver the 
investment and 

regeneration 
programme – (link to 

Corporate Risk Register) 

The B siness Rates Retention Pilot monies were in 
part  sed to create planning g ideline doc ments 

for the five town centre opport nity sites. All five 
have now been adopted, and this has work has 

stim lated a developer to s bmit a detailed Planning 
application on the first of these, Len Ho se, which is 
d e to be determined in J ly 2020. C rrent 

s ccesses incl de the expansion of the Maidstone 
Property Holdings Ltd market rent portfolio, 

improvements at Mote Park. Additionally we were 
pleased to gain ERDF f nding for the Innovation 
Centre and we are now on site and d e to complete 

in s mmer 2021.Staffing reso rce has increased 
and there has been extensive staff training, as well 

as strong partnerships with a n mber of cons ltancy 
firms. 

The Co ncil, acting in the capacity of master-
developer and land promoter, is also promoting a 
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Key Improvement 

Area 

Update 

Co ncil-led garden comm nity thro gh the Local 

Plan Review process. This is an exciting and 
ambitio s project for which the Co ncil has already 
sec red Homes England as a partner. 

Commercial Investment 

As part of the commercial investment strategy, 
reso rces have been b dgeted for the ongoing 
maintenance and development of o r new 

acq isition at Lockmeadow. 

While noting the considerable progress, the Co ncil 
still has significant commitments to deliver. This 
remains an improvement area into 2020/21. 

Property Maintenance, 
Health and Safety 
Compliance 

Clear responsibility has been established for 
property maintenance and health and safety 
compliance. Residential property (private sector and 

temporary accommodation) is now managed by the 
Ho sing Team and commercial property 

maintenance by the Corporate Property 
team. Reg lar checks are carried o t to comply 
with the legal req irements for health and safety, 

incl ding properties where the prime responsibility 
lies with the tenant. The o tcomes are reported on 

a reg lar monthly basis to Corporate Leadership 
Team. An asset management plan has been drafted 
and will be taken to the Policy and Reso rces 

Committee in A t mn 2020. 

The Corporate Leadership Team will contin e to 
review req irements, especially considering COVID-
19, and we have retained this as an improvement 

area for 2020/21. 

Governance for 
Maidstone Property 

Holdings 

An external review was  ndertaken for the 
governance arrangements of Maidstone Property 

Holdings Ltd, this was reported to A dit Governance 
and Standards Committee in November 2019. The 

review was  ndertaken with the assistance of 
external solicitors, Anthony Collins Solicitors LLP, 
and has res lted in confirmation of the company’s 

f t re aims and objectives, an amended draft 
B siness Plan and vario s other company 

doc ments, clarity on the Service. 

Agreement req ired, clarity on the different roles of 

the company and the Co ncil. The res lts of the 
review were also reported to Policy and Reso rces 

9 



 

 

  

 

 

      

       
        

     

 
        

        
 

 

  

 

          

      
     

        

     
      

       
       

       

     
         

     

 

         

   

   

 
 

         

       
     

       

 
 

        
        

       

       
      

 
         

        

     
 

        
         

      
        
    

 

Key Improvement 

Area 

Update 

Committee. Reg lar q arterly reports on the 

company’s performance are presented to Policy & 
Reso rces Committee, in order that it may exercise 
its stewardship role as shareholder. 

On clarification of roles and responsibilities, we have 

excl ded this from the list of contin ing governance 
iss es. 

Contract Management A range of actions have been carried o t to improve 

the standard of contract management, incl ding 
p blication of contract management g idance, 
officer training, improved liaison with MK Legal, and 

central monitoring of contracts. Overall 
responsibility for maintaining the standard of 

contract management across the Co ncil has been 
allocated to the Proc rement and Contracts Team 
within the Head of Commissioning and B siness 

Improvement’s service area. Contract Management 
has now been reassessed as so nd and all the 

recommendations have been closed as 

implemented. 

Therefore, we have not incl ded this as a contin ing 

area for improvement. 

Partner Relationships There is a very strong working partnership in place 

with KCC,  nderpinned by the new Maidstone 
Strategic Infrastr ct re Working Gro p comprised 
by co ncillors and senior officers from both 

a thorities. 

In terms of Transport partnership working with KCC, 
this has been evidenced by the two a thorities co-
f nding a Maidstone Transport Planner, and the 

joint commissioning of a Maidstone Transport Model 
to s pport the Local Plan Review. 

We have also contin ed to work closely with o r 
partners in health and comm nity safety on a 

n mber of projects and initiatives. 

As detailed earlier, the Co ncil is also working 
closely with Homes England, to help to deliver a 

Co ncil-led garden comm nity proposal. They have 
 ndertaken to provide match f nding for the land 
promotion and planning costs. 
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Key Improvement 

Area 

Update 

While contin ing to b ild and maintain these 

relationships, we have retained this area for 
governance foc s in 2020/21. 

Review of Effectiveness 2019-20 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 
ethical values, and respecting rule of law 

Assured (in part) 

The Co ncil has strong val es known and  nderstood by officers one of which is 

integrity and promotes a c lt re of compliance. Co ncillors are trained on the 

Code of Cond ct and g idance is offered from the Monitoring Officer, Corporate 

Leadership Team and Democratic Services Team. 

The Co ncil’s Codes of Cond ct sets o t clear expectations and req irements for 

behaving with integrity, committing to ethical val es and respecting the r le of 

law for both Co ncillors and Officers 

The a dit review and follow  p report identifies actions to improve Declarations 

of Interest, these were not all completed in 2019-20. 

The Co ncil adopted the local code of corporate governance in 2017 which 
complies with CIPFA and SOLACE “Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government”. This code has been  pdated in J ne 2020 for approval by the 
A dit Governance and Standards Committee alongside the Ann al Governance 

Statement. 

The Co ncil also has in place a local Code of Cond ct for Co ncillors and a Code 

of Cond ct for staff. Code of Cond ct training is carried o t ann ally for 
Co ncillors and incl ded in the new co ncillor ind ction programme to which all 
members are invited. D ring the m nicipal year 2019-2020, there were 5 Code 

of Cond ct complaints dealt with  nder the Localism Act 2011 against parish 
co ncillors and no complaints were raised against Boro gh Co ncillors. At times 

information given to members to f lfil their committee and governance role has 
been shared with the media. The Chief Exec tive contin es to work with gro p 
leaders on this iss e. Only 45% of staff responding to the staff s rvey identified 

that the relationship between Members and Officers is generally good, 9% of 
staff disagreed with the statement. Officers have worked hard to ens re that 

decisions going to service committees are at the appropriate strategic level 

rather than operational or managerial matters. 
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On 8 J ne the Local Government Association began cons ltation on a new draft 
member Code of Cond ct, which we intend to participate in. As a res lt o r own 

local Code of Cond ct may be  pdated in 2020-21, this is likely to involve a 

cross Kent piece of work. 

Information on the employee Code of Cond ct is set o t in the staff handbook 

and is incl ded in the ind ction for all new employees. 

A Register of Interests is maintained and training is offered to Co ncillors on 

standards, interests and o r Code of Cond ct. A register of gifts and hospitality 
is maintained and staff are reminded to complete this ann ally. Under the Local 
Government Act 1972, section 117, the Co ncil req ires officers to disclose any 

direct or indirect pec niary interests they may have in any contract or potential 
contract involving the Co ncil. The res lts of the A dit review of Declarations of 

Interest  ndertaken in 2018/19 were reported in J ly 2019. The area was rated 
as weak with recommendations for improvement. An  pdate in March 2020 
identified two actions on managing the process for declarations of interest as 

deferred, and for this reason this has been added to the governance action plan. 

The A dit, Governance and Standards Committee’s p rpose is to promote and 

maintain high standards of Co ncillor and Officer cond ct within the Co ncil. The 
Committee has responsibility for adopting and reviewing the Ann al Governance 

Statement; independent ass rance of the adeq acy of the financial and risk 

management framework and the associated control environment. 

We have a clearly defined set of core val es that are embedded at the Co ncil, 
they form part of o r competency framework and are  sed as part of the 

appraisal process. A staff s rvey was carried o t at the beginning of 2020 which 
showed a clear  nderstanding of the Co ncil’s priorities and val es with 90% of 
those who responded saying they  nderstand the Co ncil’s val es. Ann ally, we 

hold a staff awards event for those who have demonstrated they have exceeded 

the standards by going above and beyond the expected in their behavio r. 

The stat tory roles of the Chief Financial Officer (s.151 officer) and the 
Monitoring Officer are set o t in the Constit tion and in the scheme of 

delegation. They provide oversight of propriety and lawf lness. They have a 
direct reporting line to the Chief Exec tive and are involved in all major decision-

making preparation thro gh membership of the Corporate Leadership Team, as 

well as being signatories to all key and other significant decisions. 

There is an Eq ality Policy in place for the organisation; the objectives and 

action plan were  pdated in 2019 and will be reviewed again in J ly 2020. 

The Constit tion is kept  nder review by the Democracy and General P rposes 

Committee and the Monitoring Officer, with changes agreed by f ll Co ncil. 

In 2019-20 the Co ncil has created a separation between the Local Plan Review 
and other Planning F nctions as the Director for Regeneration and Place is 

leading on the proposal for a Co ncil-led garden comm nity. This ens res a clear 

separation of roles. 
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B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Assured 

The co ncil is proactive in relation to transparency and stakeholder 

engagement. 

A variety of comm nication channels are  sed to engage and inform 

residents incl ding social media, traditional press and radio. 

Going forward we will work on o r transparency as an area of improvement 

in relation to o r role as master planner for the Co ncil-led Garden 

Comm nity 

The Policy and Information Team and Comm nications Team work together with 
teams across the Co ncil to ens re cons ltations are r n consistently and 

effectively and are well comm nicated to all stakeholders. This collaborative 
working enables the teams to manage the cons ltation process more effectively, 

and, in partic lar, better manage barriers s ch as ‘cons ltation fatig e’ - where 
we are cons lting the same people repeatedly and they lose interest in 
responding. The Co ncil is a member of the Cons ltation Instit te which 

provides a wealth of reso rces and insight. Officers have  ndertaken accredited 
training via the Instit te to f rther improve o r approach and processes. 

Over the co rse of 2019-20 we have carried o t ten resident and stakeholder 
cons ltations on o r services ranging from the Ann al B dget S rvey, c stomer 

satisfaction, planning decisions, climate change and homelessness and ro gh 
sleepers policy priorities s rveys. 

The Co ncil has a Comm nication and Engagement Action Plan in place which is 
reviewed ann ally and approved by the Policy and Reso rces Committee. We 

also have a Statement of Comm nity Involvement in place for Planning covering 
a whole variety of means of comm nicating with and involving residents in 

planning matters. 

We believe in transparency and have a large amo nt of information available on 

the data and information pages of o r website, incl ding details of payments to 
s ppliers, decision notices, performance information, a list of o r assets and 

senior staff salaries. We have dealt with a large vol me of Freedom of 
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Information req ests a total of 893 req ests of which 96% were processed on 
time an improved performance compared to the previo s year in which we dealt 

with 704 req ests and 94% processed on time. 

The Comm nications Team iss ed a significant n mber of press releases to 
s pport service area campaigns between April 2019 to March 2020 totalling 138. 

The Co ncil applies the p blic interest test appropriately when deciding whether 
reports or other information the Co ncil holds have to be confidential, and 

makes an effort to p t as m ch information in the p blic domain as possible, 
incl ding splitting confidential information into appendices to allow disc ssion of 
the broader topic in p blic. In 2019/20 the Co ncil has been s bject to increased 

scr tiny in relation to its Garden Comm nity Proposal, and this has been 
identified as an area for improvement for 2020/21 

The Co ncil takes  p opport nities to engage with partners and stakeholders 
thro gh aven es s ch as the Developers’ for m, Parish Liaison meetings, 

Maidstone Destination Management Plan, Black and Minority Ethnic for m, 
Children and Yo ng People for m, Vol ntary and Comm nity Services foc s 

gro p, disability network and older persons’ for m. We have acted as 
comm nity ambassadors in o r capacity as the democratically elected body 

representing residents with partners. 

In Jan ary 2020, the Comm nities, Ho sing and Environment Committee had an 

item on the Local Health Care provision in Maidstone and interviewed the Chief 
Exec tive and representatives from the NHS. 

We also participate in the Maidstone Strategic Infrastr ct re Working Gro p with 
Kent Co nty Co ncil. The aims of the gro p incl de achieving consens s in the 

identification, development and delivery of key infrastr ct re in the Boro gh. 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 

environmental benefits. 

Assured 

The Co ncil’s priorities and cross c tting objectives in the Strategic Plan 2019-45 

seek o tcomes with s stainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

A member project has been  nderway in 2019-20 to look at the Co ncil’s 

approach to climate change and biodiversity incl ding commissioning the Carbon 

Tr st to review o r own estate and identify actions to red ce o r emissions and 

impact on the environment. 
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The Co ncil 

developed a 
Strategic Plan in 

2018 thro gh a 
series of events, 
meetings and 

cons ltation with 
stakeholders. We 

have in place a clear 
vision and fo r key 
priorities to 2045. 

O tcomes are 
meas red thro gh 

strategy action plan 
 pdates, 
performance 

meas res and 
targets which are 

reported reg larly to 
Wider Leadership 

Team and the 
Service Committees. 

To ens re the 
delivery of the strategic plan priorities and actions each service is req ired to 

prod ce a service plan and individ als also identify how they meet the priorities 
in their objectives for the year. Reg lar  pdates are given on progress with the 
Strategic Plan at o r Staff and Manager For ms as well as at o r ann al One 

Co ncil event. Ibn response to a staff s rvey 85% of staff agreed that they had 
a clear  nderstanding of the Co ncil’s priorities, and 93% agreed that they were 

committed to the Co ncil achieving its objectives with no one disagreeing with 
that statement. 

O r corporate report template req ires report a thors to identify how decisions 
align with the Co ncil’s priorities and show the options that have been 

considered and the impact of the recommended co rse of action. The template 
agreed in 2018-19 incl des the fo r new priorities and the fo r cross c tting 
objectives. We also have a rob st risk management framework in place; risks 

are reported to the Leadership Team, Policy and Reso rces and A dit, 
Governance and Standards Committees. 

In Jan ary 2019 the Co ncil  ndertook a Property Asset Review. As a res lt it 
was identified that the Co ncil needs a new Asset Management Plan, and this is 

sched led to go to Policy and Reso rces Committee in A t mn 2020. 

In J ly 2019 Policy and Reso rces Committee set  p a Biodiversity and Climate 
Change member working gro p to look at achieving net zero carbon emissions 
for the Boro gh by 2030 and deliver an action plan to improve biodiversity and 

tackle climate change. This will report in October 2020. 
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We have s ccessf lly implemented a ‘go green go wild’ project to embrace and 
enco rage biodiversity and protect and enhance o r green spaces. D ring 2019-

20 a £20,000 comm nity f nd was introd ced, delivering 10 grants to local 
gro ps to s pport ‘go green go wild’ initiatives. We have also introd ced electric 

vehicles for street cleansing and replaced o r gro nds eq ipment to red ce their 
environmental impact. 

The Co ncil has a financial incl sion board to s pport the delivery of its social 

incl sion and eq alities responsibilities. Objectives incl de identifying strategy, 
policy, action, work programmes and training to deliver the cross-c tting 

objectives in the Co ncil’s Strategic Plan to red ce deprivation, incl ding 
improving financial incl sion and improving social mobility. The board monitors 
progress and eval ates the impact of the Co ncil’s interventions to address and 

red ce health ineq alities, red ce deprivation and improve social mobility. A 
project has been la nched with Policy in Practice prod cing a dashboard to show 

those that are high risk or in crisis from poverty. 

In early 2019, the Co ncil committed to be part of the compassionate cities 
programme working in partnership with the Heart of Kent Hospice. 
Compassionate Cities are comm nities that p blicly enco rage, facilitate, 

s pport and celebrate care for one another d ring life’s most testing 
moments and experiences, especially those pertaining to life-threatening 

and life-limiting illness, chronic disability, frail ageing and dementia, grief 
and bereavement, and the trials and b rdens of long-term care. Its 
comm nities care for one another at times of crisis and loss and recognise it 

is not simply a task solely for health and social services b t is everyone’s 
responsibility. 

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes 

Assured 

Oversight and healthy challenge are provided thro gh service committees, 

boards and working gro ps. 

The review of the Co ncil’s risk register has identified a significant risk to the 

Co ncil in relation to the impact and recovery from COVID19 and a second risk 

in relation to the res rgence of COVID19 

The Co ncil’s Constit tion clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of Officers 
and Co ncillors. In 2019/20 the constit tion was reviewed by the Monitoring 

Officer and Democratic and Electoral Services Manager and this has res lted in 
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reformatting, minor amendments and changes to the member and p blic 
q estion proced re r les. 

The Co ncil’s fo r service committees are responsible for making decisions on 

the services delivered by the Co ncil. The fo r service committees, Democracy 
and General P rposes Committee and A dit, Governance and Standards 
Committee have work programmes in place. These programmes detail the 

decisions and reports for the year and are reviewed monthly by each committee. 
Details of committees and their work can be fo nd on o r website. 

Performance is reported on a q arterly basis to each service committee as well 
as  pdates on plans and strategies thro gho t the year. Corporate Leadership 

Team received monthly performance monitoring reports for Ho sing and 
Planning d ring 2019-20. 

We believe that analytics can be  sed to provide greater insight and s pport  s 
to transform and shape o r services in a way that foc ses on prevention and 

early intervention. Predictive analytics is a key tool to help  s to identify those 
most at risk of presenting as homeless and to  nderstand the effective 

interventions. We are collaborating with EY & Xant ra to s pport  s in 
transforming o r service so that reso rces are foc sed on points of the pathway 

that are most effective. The platform creates a ‘single-view’ of a ho sehold and 
individ al from disparate data so rces to create a holistic ho sehold 
composition. It  ses advanced analytical modelling to enable identification of 

those at the highest risk of homelessness six to nine months before crisis and 
specific risk factors present, based on historic data. Earlier identification enables 

earlier s pport interventions from service professionals, improving o tcomes for 

the most v lnerable residents in the district. 

The Co ncil has a Transformation Team which carries o t reviews to improve the 
efficiency of Co ncil services. In 2019-20 reviews were carried o t of o r Street 
Cleaning, Leis re and B ilding Control services as well as a cash payments 

project. 

A range of actions were carried o t in 2019-20 to improve the standard of 
contract management, incl ding p blication of contract management g idance, 

officer training, improved liaison with MK Legal, and central monitoring of 
contracts. Overall responsibility for the maintaining the standard of contract 
management across the Co ncil has been allocated to the Proc rement and 

Contracts Team within the Head of Commissioning and B siness Improvement’s 
service area. Contract Management has now been reassessed as so nd and all 

the recommendations have been closed as implemented. In March 2020 we 
began exploring a partnership with T nbridge Wells for a shared proc rement 
service. 

A clear separation of responsibility has been established for property 

maintenance and health and safety compliance, with regard to o r residential 
property (private sector and temporary accommodation) being managed by the 
Ho sing Team and commercial property by the Corporate Property 

team. Reg lar checks are carried o t to comply with the legal req irements for 
health and safety, incl ding properties where the prime responsibility lies with 

the tenant. The o tcomes are reported on a reg lar monthly basis to Corporate 
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Leadership Team, and as this remains an ongoing iss e this will be incl ded on 
the action plan for 2020/21. 

The highest level risks on the Corporate Risk Register, were reported and 

monitored by Corporate Leadership Team thro gho t the year, and action was 
taken to manage risks to an acceptable level. F rther to this, risks  pdates were 
reported to Policy & Reso rces Committee and also to A dit, Governance and 

Standards Committee d ring the year for oversight and challenge. 

E. Developing the entity s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it 

Assure 

The Co ncil has a clear commitment to developing capacity with a well-developed 

Learning and Development Programme and an Established Members Charter in 

place. 

Staff and Co ncillors have the opport nity to attend training relevant to their roles 

and there are agreed b dgets for Member development and Staff. 

In early 2020 a staff s rvey was  ndertaken in which 69% of respondents 

answered that they were able to access the right learning and development 

opport nities when they need to. 59% of staff identified that the learning and 

development activities completed in the last twelve months had helped to 

improve their performance. 

The appraisal process for staff incl des a personal development section where 

staff are enco raged to think abo t development needs and identify training 
req ired. This information is then fed into the Learning and Development team 
and assists with the development of the programme for the year. The Co ncil 

has a management toolkit and training programme and introd ced the 
“Maidstone manager” in 2017-18 which sets o t the behavio r and standards 

that are expected of managers. 

The Co ncil has a learning and development programme in place for officers and 
a Member development Charter in place for Co ncillors. There is a wide variety 
of training offered to staff and Co ncillors. 

The Strategic Plan sets o t a n mber of priorities and o tcomes to be achieved 

by 2045, to achieve these we will need to look at the organisation’s capacity 
partic larly in relation to Economic Regeneration and Comm nity Development. 
The recent pandemic p ts even more press re and foc s on these objectives and 
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the Co ncil will need to look at its o tcomes for the next five years when it 
reviews the Strategic Plan in 2020-21. 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control 

and strong public financial management 

Assured 

Performance and risk are well managed and reg larly reported to 

management team and committees. 

Significant risks from the corporate risk register feat re in the Ann al 

Governance Statement Action Plan for 2020-21. 

Areas for improvement have been identified for data protection and these are 

in the action plan for 2020-21. 

The Co ncil manages risk thro gh a comprehensive risk management 
framework. This involves identification of risk at corporate and service levels, 
ownership of individ al risks by named officers, development of controls to 

mitigate risks, and reg lar reporting. Q arterly reports are presented to the 
Corporate Leadership Team and bi-ann al reports to Policy and Reso rces 

Committee. Members take an active interest in the risk management process 
and engage f lly in disc ssion abo t individ al risks. The Co ncil has in place a 

rob st risk management framework and g idance and risk management is 
considered by the A dit Governance and Standards Committee. 

Performance reports aligned to the Co ncil’s priorities are reported to the wider 
leadership team and service committees on a q arterly basis for scr tiny and 

challenge. 

Service committees carry o t policy and strategy development. Financial 

performance is reported to all the service committees on a q arterly basis. 

Monthly b dget spending is reported to b dget holders and q arterly review 

meetings with the Director of Finance and B siness Improvement are in place. 
The corporate report template req ires information explaining the legal and 

financial impact of decisions and the S151 Officer and Monitoring Officer are 

req ired to comment on financial and legal implications of reports. 

The impact of the pandemic on the period covered by the Ann al Governance 
Statement was limited, with lockdown meas res only taking effect on 24 March 

2020, right at the end of the period. However, there will be a very significant 
financial impact in the new financial year, both from additional costs inc rred by 
the Co ncil in responding to the pandemic, and from a red ction in income 

across almost all the Co ncil’s reven e streams, incl ding Co ncil Tax, B siness 
Rates, and fees and charges for the services that we provide. 
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At the time of p blishing the draft Statement of Acco nts, the government had 
provided the Co ncil with £1.7million of non-ringfenced grants to offset 

additional costs and loss of income, b t this is expected only partly to address 
the likely financial shortfall. As set o t in the Statement of Acco nts, the Co ncil 

holds £17 million of  sable reserves, which provides the Co ncil with a 
reasonable level of financial resilience. However, drawing on these reserves 
wo ld leave the Co ncil with relatively greater expos re to the risk of f rther 

pandemic o tbreaks and/or other  nforeseen events. F rthermore, the need to 
reb ild reserves wo ld constrain the Co ncil’s capacity for service delivery and 

to s pport comm nity recovery. 

The Co ncil has an anti-fra d and corr ption policy in place and a whistle 

blowing policy, all of which are reg larly reviewed by the A dit, Governance and 

Standards Committee. 

The Co ncil has a Data Protection Officer and has in place an action plan to 
ens re compliance with Data Protection Legislation. The information 

management gro p chaired by the Senior Information Risk Owner meets 
q arterly to review information management practice and policies incl ding 

cyber sec rity. The Chairman of the A dit, Governance and Standards 
Committee also attends and contrib tes to the gro p. The gro p in 2019-20 
considered the Co ncil’s preparedness for Brexit in relation to information 

management; as a res lt the record of processing activity and privacy notices 
for the co ncil were reviewed. The Record of Processing Activity (ROPA) will be 

f lly  pdated in 2020-21. A review was carried o t of CCTV and an action plan to 
tackle the concerns identified will be delivered in 2020-21. Some actions were 
 ndertaken in Jan ary and Febr ary b t were p t on hold d ring the pandemic 

as officers were redeployed across the Co ncil. 

 . Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability 

Assure 

The Co ncil has a strong commitment to transparency. Reg lar cons ltation is 

carried o t to improve and inform services. 

A variety of information is available on the co ncil’s website 

Partnership arrangements are rob st 

The Co ncil’s website incl des information that is req ired  nder transparency. 
We p blish an ann al report as part of o r Statement of Acco nts which incl des 

o r performance, progress against priorities and financial performance. We 
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report the res lts of p blic cons ltation on o r website and o r committee 
meetings are webcast. 

The Whistleblowing Policy is available on the intranet and sets o t a confidential 

reporting process for those who wish to raise concerns. 

The ann al governance statement and action plan is p blished on-line as part of 

the statement of acco nts and reported to the A dit, Governance and Standards 
Committee. The Local Code of Corporate Governance was rewritten in 2017 and 

a refreshed code will be considered by A dit, Governance and Standards and 
Committee in J ly 2020. 

Internal a dit activity is reported reg larly to the A dit, Governance and 
Standards Committee to inform members of the internal a dit activity that takes 

place d ring the year. 

We are part of Mid Kent Services; to ens re the partnership is operating 

effectively, reg lar board meetings are held q arterly to manage performance. 

An external review was  ndertaken for the governance arrangements of 
Maidstone Property Holdings Ltd, this was reported to A dit Governance and 

Standards Committee in November 2019. The review was  ndertaken with the 
assistance of external solicitors, Anthony Collins Solicitors LLP, and has res lted 
in confirmation of the company’s f t re aims and objectives, an amended draft 

B siness Plan and vario s other company doc ments, clarity on the Service 
Agreement req ired, and clarity on the different roles of the company and the 

Co ncil. The res lts of the review were also reported to Policy and Reso rces 
Committee. Reg lar q arterly reports on the company’s performance are 
presented to Policy & Reso rces Committee, in order that it may exercise its 

stewardship role as shareholder. 

Internal A dit Opinion 

The Head of Internal A dit will present the ann al report and opinion to A dit, 
Governance and Standards Committee on 29 J ly 2020. The specific extract of 

that report that incl des the opinion reads: 

Intern l Control 

I am satisfied that d ring the year ended 31 March 2020 the Co ncil 
managed a system of internal control that offers so nd ass rance on 
control effectiveness. 

Govern nce 

I am satisfied that Co ncil’s corporate governance arrangements for the 

year ended 31 March 2020 comply in all material respects with g idance on 
proper practices. 

Risk M n gement 
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I am satisfied the risk management arrangements at the Co ncil for the 
year ended 31 March 2020 are effective and provide so nd ass rance. 

Signed: 

Chief Exec tive: Date: 30th November 2020 

Leader of the Co ncil: Date: 30th November 2020 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Maidstone Borough 
Council 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Maidstone Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year 
ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund 
Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
The notes to the financial statements include the EFA, Notes to the Core Statements, Policies and 
Judgements, and Notes to the Collection Fund Statement. The financial reporting framework that has 
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local 
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20. 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2020 and of its 
expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local 
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the 
Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit 

Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant uncertainties, 

including those arising as a consequence of the effects of macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-

19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the Director of 

Finance and Business Improvement and the related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going 

concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the 

future economic environment and the Authority’s future operational arrangements. 

Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK, and at 

the date of this report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with the full range 

of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in 

response to these uncertainties when assessing the Authority’s future operational arrangements. 

However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future 

implications for an authority associated with these particular events. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 
us to report to you where: 

 the Director of Finance and Business Improvement’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1 



     

                
             
                  

          

              

               

               

              

             

                

                  

             

                 

                

                 

     

                
 

                 
                 

                  
                

                 
                 

                
                

                 
                  

                
    

  

               
              
                

                 
       

                 
               

                 
             

                
                 

               

        

                

                 
                

             
               
                  
              

   

        

 the Director of Finance and Business Improvement has not disclosed in the financial statements any 
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to 
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

In our evaluation of the Director of Finance and Business Improvement’s conclusions, and in 

accordance with the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 

accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 that the Authority’s financial statements shall be prepared on 

a going concern basis, we considered the risks associated with the Authority’s operating activities, 

including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. We analysed 

how those risks might affect the Authority’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the 

period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. In 

accordance with the above, we have nothing to report in these respects. 

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in 

outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the 

absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the 

Authority will continue in operation. 

Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on the valuation of land and buildings and property 
investments 

We draw attention to Note 4 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of the Covid-19 
pandemic on the valuation of the Authority’s land and buildings and the Authority’s share of the pension 
fund’s property investments as at 31 March 2020. As, disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements, the 
outbreak of Covid-19 has impacted global financial markets and as at the valuation date, less weight 
can be attached to the previous market evidence to inform opinions of value. There is an unprecedented 
set of circumstances on which to base a judgement. Valuations are therefore reported on the basis of 
‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per the RICS Red Book Global. With regards the pension fund assets, 
Maidstone BC is aware that the pension fund intends to disclose a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ in 
relation to the directly held property and pooled property funds within the assets of the pension fund. 
This is due to the level of uncertainty since the outbreak of Covid-19. The council’s share of these 
assets is material and therefore the uncertainty has been disclosed. Our opinion is not modified in 
respect of this matter. 

Other information 

The Director of Finance and Business Improvement is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller 
and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual 
Governance Statement does not comply with the ‘delivering good governance in Local Government 
Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the 
information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual 
Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by 
internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2 



     

           

                   
                

              
                 
          

          

              

                   
             

                 
               

                     
                    

   

                   
           

                  
            

           

             
       

                 
                
                   

                
              

               
               

                    
             

            

              
               

                  
              

             
           

         

               
                  

                  
                

                
               

      

                 
         

     

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and 
our knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published 
together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if: 

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under 
Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the 
audit; or; 

 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the 
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters. 

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Finance and Business Improvement and Those 
Charged with Governance for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts set out on 
page 19 the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial 
affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. 
In this authority, that officer is the Director of Finance and Business Improvement. The Director of 
Finance and Business Improvement is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, 
which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Director of Finance and 
Business Improvement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Finance and Business Improvement is responsible 
for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by 
government that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be provided. 

The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged 
with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


     

           
       

      

  

                  
                 

               
    

     

              
                

        

            
        

                 
              

                  
              
   

                 
                 

               
             

                
                 

               
                  

                 
               

   

         

                
                

    

     

                     
                 

             
                 

                    
                  
                   

  
     

           

      

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the 
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources 

Conclusion 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, we are satisfied that the Authority put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 
ended 31 March 2020. 

Responsibilities of the Authority 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review 
regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied 
that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of 
the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
are operating effectively. 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, as to 
whether in all significant respects the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers 
and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us 
to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the 
year ended 31 March 2020. We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based 
on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the 
Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate 

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Maidstone Borough 
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the 
Code of Audit Practice. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters 
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the 
Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Paul Dossett 
Paul Dossett, Key Audit Partner 
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor 

London 30 November 2020 
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	WEEKLY PAY FOR A FULL-TIME WORKER 
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	2019 
	£579.20 
	2019/20 
	£17.2 million 

	2018 
	2018 
	£589.50 
	2018/19 
	£15.7 million 


	3 
	About Maidstone Staplehurst Marden Maidstone Headcorn 
	Maidstone is the largest borough council district in Kent, with an estimated 171,800 residents in mid-2019. Around 70% live in Maidstone, which is the County Town of Kent.  In the surrounding rural area there are local service centres such as Staplehurst, Marden, Headcorn, Lenham and Harrietsham and many smaller villages. 
	Maidstone has the largest economy of any Kent borough, generating an estimated £4 billion Gross Value Added per annum. The borough has around 8,000 businesses covering a diverse range of sectors including life sciences, healthcare, ICT, construction and civil engineering, professional and business services, agriculture and horticulture, and education. 
	The M20 from London to the Kent coast runs through the borough, providing good transport links and the opportunity for further business growth. 
	The town of Maidstone is surrounded by a rural area that stretches from the Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty in the North to the Weald in the South. The borough has a rich historical heritage, with 2,000 listed buildings and 28 scheduled ancient monuments. The River Medway flows through the borough and the town centre and, together with its tributaries, is one of the borough’s prime assets. All these natural and physical advantages help the borough attract around four million visitors each year
	4 
	About the Council 
	The Council is accountable to local residents through its 55 councillors, who are elected by thirds for terms of four years, such that elections are held in three years out of every four.   Borough elections were due to be held in May 2020 but have been postponed for a year owing to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
	Conservative 24 Liberal Democrat 20 Labour 4 Independent 4 Independent Maidstone 2 Vacancy 1 
	The Council operates a Committee system, with decisions being made by four main Committees: Policy and Resources; Communities, Housing and Environment; Economic Regeneration and Leisure; and Strategic Planning and Infrastructure. The Council elects a Leader each year, who is also Chairman of the Policy and Resources Committee. The current Leader of the Council is Martin Cox (Liberal Democrat). 
	The Council employed 540 people (503 full time equivalent) at 31 March 2020, based at the Council’s administrative offices in Maidstone House, King Street, and at service locations including the Council’s depot at Bircholt Road, Parkwood. 

	COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
	Figure

	The Council and the community it serves have been profoundly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. The Council has been at the forefront of the response to the pandemic, for example in supporting rough sleepers and the homeless, establishing a community hub to support vulnerable members of society, and distributing nearly £30 million of grants to small businesses. 
	The impact of the pandemic on the period covered by the Statement of Accounts was limited, with lockdown 
	measures only taking effect on 24 March 2020, right at the end of the period.  However, there will be a very 
	significant financial impact in the new financial year, both from additional costs incurred by the Council in 
	responding to the pandemic, and from a reduction in income across almost all the Council’s revenue streams, 
	including Council Tax, Business Rates, and fees and charges for the services that we provide. 
	At the time of publishing the draft Statement of Accounts, the government had provided the Council with £1.7 million of non-ringfenced grants to offset additional costs and loss of income, but this is expected only partly to address the likely financial shortfall.  As set out in the Statement of Accounts, the Council holds £17 million of usable reserves, which provides the Council with a reasonable level of financial resilience.  However, drawing on these reserves would leave the Council with relatively gre
	Maidstone’s Strategic Plan 
	Maidstone’s Strategic Plan 
	Figure

	The Council adopted a Strategic Plan in December 2018, setting out its aspirations through to 2045. The vision set out in the Plan is for Maidstone to be a vibrant, prosperous, urban and rural community at the heart of Kent, where everyone can realise their potential. Within the overall Strategic Plan, we have defined four strategic priorities: embracing growth and enabling infrastructure; making Maidstone safe, clean and green; providing homes and supporting communities; and making the borough a thriving p
	We are currently considering how the Strategic Plan may need to be refreshed in the light of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
	Key achievements EMBRACING GROWTH AND ENABLING INFRASTRUCTURE 
	• Bus Station Improvements The council is leading a project to invest around £1m in improvement works to Maidstone Bus Station. The facility is situated underneath the Mall Shopping Centre in the town centre and has been earmarked for investment within the councils’ infrastructure delivery plan. This investment decision has been made because of the council’s desire to support and promote sustainable transport. The council is working in partnership with the owner of the facility, Capital & Regional, the main
	• Kent Medical Campus Enabling Infrastructure The council has facilitated a package of highways improvements adjacent to the Kent Medical Campus that are being accelerated by a successful bid to the National Infrastructure Productivity Fund, with Kent County Council. Monies secured exceeded £9m, to include a £0.5m loan from the council. This will fund improvements to two nearby roundabouts and provide dualling of the road between them. Works on site will commence in 2020. The Kent Medical Campus is one of t
	• Junction Improvements The council has worked closely with Kent County Council to secure Local Growth Fund (LGF) monies to part fund a programme of junction improvements to mitigate housing development in the current local plan. Whilst programmes such as this are complex to deliver, public consultation by Kent County Council commenced in early 2020 for the detailed design proposals and works on site are expected to commence in the coming months. The allocation of LGF monies demonstrates support for the pro
	HOMES AND COMMUNITIES 
	• New housing developments Work is under way on two new housing developments in Maidstone town centre, at Union Street and Brunswick Street. When complete in late 2020, the developments will provide 94 new homes, comprising a mix of affordable housing, housing for market rent and housing for sale. 
	• Temporary accommodation Despite an increase in the number of households approaching the Council as homeless, the housing service was able to continue the decrease in the number of families having to go into temporary accommodation. In addition, the Council’s strategy to acquire its own temporary accommodation stock led to fewer people being placed into nightly paid accommodation, thereby providing better quality accommodation for the client and reducing the cost to the Council. 
	• Helping Rough Sleepers Like other towns, Maidstone has seen a significant increase in the rough sleeper population in recent years. The Council has expanded its outreach service, established a centre for emergency supported accommodation, and expanded hostel support. These interventions have had a major impact on the number of rough sleepers. 
	6 
	SAFE, CLEAN AND GREEN  
	• A20 improvements 
	A wide range of street scene and landscaping improvements have been carried out along the A20 approach into Maidstone from Willington Street. These have included the planting of 20,000 bulbs, shaping of the wild areas, a new Welcome to Maidstone sign, deep cleaning, white-lining and painting of lamp columns.  In addition, a number of focal points have been introduced. Two large tree stumps have been transformed into beautiful sculptures to illustrate Go Green Go Wild and the Borough’s farming heritage.  A d
	• Go Green Go Wild The Go Green Go Wild initiative has continued to develop since its launch last year, with more community groups getting involved to promote and support biodiversity. We launched a community grant scheme which has led to a number of new local initiatives being started including tree planting. The project was also recognised by DEFRA this year for the pollinator project where a number of new wildflower meadows were created.  Further wildflower meadows have been sown this year with the suppo
	• Mote Park dam works The Council has started works to the sluice gates, boat house, spillway, dam and area around Mote Park lake. The lake was formed in the 1830s when the River Len was dammed. As a result of a reservoir safety inspection, which the park is required to undertake every ten years, essential work is now required.  If the dam were to fail, the risk posed could see the water swell rapidly over 40 acres of land, which would see Turkey Mill, Mote Park and surrounding areas under water. With estim
	A THRIVING PLACE • Maidstone Innovation Centre 
	A THRIVING PLACE • Maidstone Innovation Centre 
	Figure

	AMaidstone Borough Council has awarded Rydon the contract for the construction of the £9.5m Innovation Centre, which is part funded by the European Regional Development Fund. Located on the Kent Medical Campus, part of the North Kent Enterprise Zone, the Innovation Centre will bring together businesses and organisations involved in finding solutions to complex healthcare issues and scientific research and development. The four storey, 37,000ft2 building – designed by Bond Bryan Architects 
	– will provide high quality flexible office, hot desking and meeting space, conference facilities and business support for small and medium-sized enterprises working in the life science, healthcare and med-tech sectors.Work on site started in March 2020. 
	• Maidstone East Station Improvement Project 
	Planning permission for the refurbished and extended ticket office and new forecourt has been granted to Network Rail. The project is a partnership between Maidstone Borough Council, Kent County Council, Network Rail and Southeastern Railways. The former Victoria Pub has been demolished and ground works have commenced setting out the new forecourt which will include soft landscaping, wayfinding signage and a new public art installation inspired by  the Council’s coat of arms – an Iguanodon. In addition a fu
	• Lockmeadow 
	Lockmeadow is a leisure centre with an Odeon multiplex cinema, 18-lane bowling alley, a trampoline park, restaurants and a two-level David Lloyd swimming pool and gym complex. The Council already owned the freehold of the site, and in November 2019 acquired the long leasehold interest (105 years unexpired) for £19 million. The acquisition is intended to support the objective of making Maidstone a thriving place, with the Council working as an active landlord to make improvements to the appearance of the bui
	KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
	Key Performance Indicators are set for each Council priority in consultation with the relevant Service Committee. Performance against targets is set out below. Please note that direction of travel indicates an improvement or decline in performance for KPIs with targets.  For Data Only PIs it indicates an increase or decrease in volume. 



	A Thriving Place 
	A Thriving Place 
	PRIORITY:         . 

	Performance Indicator 
	Performance Indicator 
	Performance Indicator 
	Service 
	2019/20 Out-turn 
	2019/20 Target 
	Status 
	Compared to 2018/19 

	Percentage of all available tickets sold at the Hazlitt 
	Percentage of all available tickets sold at the Hazlitt 
	Leisure & Tourism 
	66.27% 
	50% 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of visits per month to Visit-Maidstone.com 
	Number of visits per month to Visit-Maidstone.com 
	Economic Development 
	334,556 
	367,535 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Footfall in the Town Centre 
	Footfall in the Town Centre 
	Economic Development 
	10,994,050 
	11,836,415 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of students benefiting from the museum’s educational service 
	Number of students benefiting from the museum’s educational service 
	Economic Development 
	8,884 
	8,378 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Footfall at the museum and Visitor Information Centre 
	Footfall at the museum and Visitor Information Centre 
	Leisure & Tourism 
	98,314 
	65,000 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of attendees to informal events (at the museum) 
	Number of attendees to informal events (at the museum) 
	Leisure & Tourism 
	3,532 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of people attending paid for exhibitions 
	Number of people attending paid for exhibitions 
	Leisure & Tourism 
	972 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Contacts to the Visitor Information Centre 
	Contacts to the Visitor Information Centre 
	Leisure & Tourism 
	3,059 
	3,315 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of users at the leisure centre 
	Number of users at the leisure centre 
	Leisure & Tourism 
	758,290 
	805,257 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Percentage of vacant retail units in town centre 
	Percentage of vacant retail units in town centre 
	Economic Development 
	Data collection suspended owing to Covid-19 
	-

	11% 
	N/A 
	N/A 

	Business Rates income from the Town Centre 
	Business Rates income from the Town Centre 
	Revenues & Benefits 
	£21,720,949 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Total value of business ratable properties (New 2019/20) 
	Total value of business ratable properties (New 2019/20) 
	Revenues & Benefits 
	£147,123,115 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	N/A 


	PRIORITY:        
	Clean, Safe and Green 
	Clean, Safe and Green 
	Performance Indicator 
	Performance Indicator 
	Performance Indicator 
	Service 
	Value 
	Target 
	Status 
	Last Year 

	Percentage of unauthorised encampments on Council owned land removed within 5 working days 
	Percentage of unauthorised encampments on Council owned land removed within 5 working days 
	Environmental Crime Team 
	100% 
	90% 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Percentage of fly tips resulting in enforcement action 
	Percentage of fly tips resulting in enforcement action 
	Environmental Crime Team 
	87% 
	80% 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Percentage of fly-tips cleared or assessed within 2 working days 
	Percentage of fly-tips cleared or assessed within 2 working days 
	Environmental Crime Team 
	96.38% 
	94% 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Average weight of fly-tipped collected materials (kg) 
	Average weight of fly-tipped collected materials (kg) 
	Environmental Crime Team 
	92.80kg 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting 
	Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting 
	Waste & Recycling 
	49.12% 
	52% 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting 
	Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting 
	Depot Services 
	98.18% 
	98% 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	The percentage of land and highways with acceptable levels of detritus 
	The percentage of land and highways with acceptable levels of detritus 
	Depot Services 
	94.87% 
	95% 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Maintenance per hectare spent on Parks and Open Spaces 
	Maintenance per hectare spent on Parks and Open Spaces 
	Parks & Open Spaces 
	£6,016 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	N/A 

	Number of Green Flag parks 
	Number of Green Flag parks 
	Parks & Open Spaces 
	3 
	5 
	TD
	Figure



	8 
	Section 106 spending (against estimate) 
	Section 106 spending (against estimate) 
	Section 106 spending (against estimate) 
	Parks & Open Spaces 
	£495,335 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Percentage of people using amenity green space at least once a week 
	Percentage of people using amenity green space at least once a week 
	Parks & Open Spaces 
	Due 2020 Resident Survey 
	-

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	N/A


	PRIORITY:          

	Homes & Communities 
	Homes & Communities 
	Performance Indicator 
	Performance Indicator 
	Performance Indicator 
	Service 
	Value 
	Target 
	Status 
	Last Year 

	Satisfaction with the local area as a place to live (Resident Survey) 
	Satisfaction with the local area as a place to live (Resident Survey) 
	Policy & Information 
	53.10%
	TD
	Figure

	 N/A 
	(2017/18) 

	Percentage spend and allocation of Disabled Facilities Grant Budget (YTD) 
	Percentage spend and allocation of Disabled Facilities Grant Budget (YTD) 
	Housing & Health 
	130.40% 
	100% 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of households living in temporary accommodation last night of the month 
	Number of households living in temporary accommodation last night of the month 
	Housing & Health 
	94 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of households living in nightly paid temporary accommodation last night of the month 
	Number of households living in nightly paid temporary accommodation last night of the month 
	Housing & Health 
	36 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of households housed through housing register 
	Number of households housed through housing register 
	Housing & Health 
	576 
	600 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of households prevented or relieved from becoming homeless 
	Number of households prevented or relieved from becoming homeless 
	Housing & Health 
	571 
	330 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Percentage of successful Relief Duty outcomes 
	Percentage of successful Relief Duty outcomes 
	Housing & Health 
	56.64% 
	60% 
	TD
	Figure

	N/A 

	Percentage of successful Prevention Duty outcomes (New 2019/20) 
	Percentage of successful Prevention Duty outcomes (New 2019/20) 
	Housing & Health 
	62.44% 
	60% 
	TD
	Figure

	N/A 

	Number of completed housing assistances 
	Number of completed housing assistances 
	Housing & Health 
	471 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of houses of multiple occupation brought to compliance by private rented sector licensing 
	Number of houses of multiple occupation brought to compliance by private rented sector licensing 
	Housing & Health 
	31 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure



	PRIORITY:          

	Embracing Growth & Enabling Infrastructure 
	Embracing Growth & Enabling Infrastructure 
	Performance Indicator 
	Performance Indicator 
	Performance Indicator 
	Service 
	Value 
	Target 
	Status 
	Last Year 

	Percentage of priority 1 enforcement cases dealt with in time (New PI 2019/20) 
	Percentage of priority 1 enforcement cases dealt with in time (New PI 2019/20) 
	Development Management 
	100% 
	100% 
	TD
	Figure

	N/A 

	Percentage of priority 2 enforcement cases dealt with in time (New PI 2019/20) 
	Percentage of priority 2 enforcement cases dealt with in time (New PI 2019/20) 
	Development Management 
	95.10% 
	90% 
	TD
	Figure

	N/A 

	Total number of complaints received within period (New PI 2019/20) 
	Total number of complaints received within period (New PI 2019/20) 
	Development Management 
	566
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	 N/A 

	Number of priority 1 enforcement cases dealt with in time 
	Number of priority 1 enforcement cases dealt with in time 
	Development Management 
	15 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	N/A 

	Number of priority 2 enforcement cases dealt with in time 
	Number of priority 2 enforcement cases dealt with in time 
	Development Management 
	524 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	N/A 

	Number of appeals in period 
	Number of appeals in period 
	Development Management 
	93 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	MBC success rate at planning appeals (rolling 6 months) 
	MBC success rate at planning appeals (rolling 6 months) 
	Development Management 
	66.67% 
	75% 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) 
	Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) 
	Economic Development 
	325 
	180 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Percentage of new homes provided that are affordable 
	Percentage of new homes provided that are affordable 
	Economic Development 
	AWAITING DATA FOR THIS KPI 
	20% 
	N/A 
	N/A 

	Net additional homes provided 
	Net additional homes provided 
	Development Management 
	AWAITING DATA FOR THIS KPI 
	973 
	N/A 
	N/A 


	Figure
	Financial Performance 
	Maidstone Council’s financial turnover, including Council Tax and Business Rates collected on behalf of other local authorities and government, amounted to £251 million in 2019/20 (£246 million in 2018/19). The table below shows the flows of income and expenditure. 
	New Homes Bonus £3.9m Council Tax £18.2m This grant is used to fund investments in the Borough through the Council’s capital programme. This is reflected in notes 11 and 30. This category includes income transactions which the Council is required to make in order to comply with accounting standards, such as movements in investment property values. They are detailed within notes 9-11 to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This represents income generated by the Council through a range of acti
	10 

	Income 
	Income 
	Non-ringfenced Government Grants 
	Revenue Support Grant Grant from central government.  It depends on income 
	The Council no longer receives Revenue Support 
	Business Rates 
	generated locally in Maidstone, comprising Council Tax, our share of Business Rates, and Fees and Charges for 
	Council Tax Income 
	the services that we provide. 
	Other Income 0 £5m £10m £15m £20m £25m £30m £35m £40m £45m £50m 
	15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 
	15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 
	These sources of income are shown in note 11 to the Statement of Accounts, Taxation & Non-Specific Grant Income, and in the income totals for the relevant Committee in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
	11 


	Expenditure 
	Expenditure 
	The Council spends money to meet its statutory obligations - delivering services like refuse collection, and making transfer payments such as housing benefit – and to meet our strategic priorities. 
	Delivering expenditure in line with budget is an important performance indicator. This objective was achieved in 2019/20. The outturn for the year was an overspend compared with the budget of £237,000 (1.2%). 
	Actual 
	.  Budget 
	Communities & Housing Environment & Public Realm Heritage, Culture & Leisure Planning Services 
	Parking & Transportation Economic Development Property & Investment Corporate Services 
	Figure
	-4,000 -2,000 0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 12,000 
	Income Expenditure 
	Income Expenditure 
	The Council’s income and expenditure is shown in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement in the Statement of Accounts. 
	12 
	Figure


	Balance Sheet 
	Balance Sheet 
	The Balance Sheet shows the value of the Council’s assets less its liabilities at the end of the year. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. The Council’s net assets increased from £49.9 million to £61.8 million, mainly because of upward revaluations of the Council’s property assets. 
	2018/19 
	2018/19 
	2018/19 
	2019/20 

	£000 
	£000 
	£000 


	85,088 Property, Plant & Equipment 124,200 
	10,393 Heritage Assets 10,393 
	23,014 Investment Properties 23,270 
	2,647 Other Long Term Assets 716 
	32,935 Money owed to the Council 27,991 
	-29,150 Money owed by the Council -47,714 
	-74,983 Long Term Liabilities -77,098 
	49,944 
	49,944 
	49,944 
	Net Assets 
	61,758 


	15,659 Usable Reserves 17,193 
	34,285 Unusable Reserves 44,565 
	49,944 
	49,944 
	49,944 
	Total Reserves 
	61,758 


	Property, Plant and Equipment are assets held by the Council to deliver services or for administrative purposes. The increase reflects capital expenditure during the year. Further details of capital expenditure are shown overleaf. 
	Money owed to the Council includes amounts receivable from debtors and cash balances, being cash in hand, bank deposits and investments that are readily convertible to cash. The Cash Flow Statement provides an analysis of the movement in cash during the course of the year. 
	13 
	Figure

	Balance Sheet (continued) 
	Balance Sheet (continued) 
	Money owed by the Council includes amounts payable to creditors, provisions for business rates appeals and grants received in advance. The Council currently has no long term borrowing. 
	Usable reserves include money set aside for specific purposes and sufficient contingency to cover unforeseen events. In particular, the Council has decided that the New Homes Bonus that it receives will be set aside for capital investment to improve and enhance the borough. £3.9 million of New Homes Bonus has been used in this way during the year (18/19 - £4.6 million). 
	Unusable Reserves will only become available at some future date, for example if assets are sold. Unusable reserves rose, reflecting the revaluations and change in pension liabilities described above. 
	Changes in Reserves are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement in the Statement of Accounts. 

	Capital Expenditure 
	Capital Expenditure 
	During the year, £34 million was spent on delivering the projects identified within the Council’s capital programme. 
	These projects included: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Expenditure on new housing developments at Union Street and Brunswick Street 

	• 
	• 
	Purchase of properties for use as temporary accommodation for homeless people 

	• 
	• 
	Acquisition of long leasehold interest in Lockmeadow Leisure Complex 

	• 
	• 
	Public realm improvements in the Town Centre 


	The Council has an ambitious capital programme for the coming five years, totalling over £100 million. The largest element in the capital programme is the Council’s housing and regeneration strategy. The programme will be funded both through New Homes Bonus receipts and other internal resources, and through external borrowing, in line with the regulatory requirement that such borrowing be affordable, prudent and sustainable. 
	Table
	TR
	Actual 19/20 £000 
	20/21 21/22 £000 £000 
	Five ye22/23 £000 
	ar plan 23/24 £000 
	24/25 £000 
	Total £000 

	Housing Development and Regeneration 
	Housing Development and Regeneration 
	5,840 
	12,022 
	14,023 
	12,516 
	10,680 
	10,680 
	59,921 

	Temporary Accommodation 
	Temporary Accommodation 
	3,083 
	2,190 
	2,190 

	Disabled Facilities Grants 
	Disabled Facilities Grants 
	793 
	800 
	800 
	800 
	800 
	800 
	4,000 

	Flood Action Plan 
	Flood Action Plan 
	0 
	300 300 
	300 
	900 

	Mote Park Improvements 
	Mote Park Improvements 
	297 
	3,650 
	840 
	4,490 

	Town Centre Regeneration 
	Town Centre Regeneration 
	688 
	40 
	40 

	Property Investments 
	Property Investments 
	20,281 
	6,500 
	3,500 
	2,500 
	2,500 
	2,500 
	17,500 

	Kent Medical Campus Innovation Centre 
	Kent Medical Campus Innovation Centre 
	1,535 
	8,250 1,500 
	9,750 

	Infrastructure delivery 
	Infrastructure delivery 
	0 
	600 
	600 
	600 
	600 
	600 
	3,000 

	Corporate Property 
	Corporate Property 
	699 
	1,430 175 
	175 
	175 
	175 
	2,130 

	Biodiversity and Climate Change 
	Biodiversity and Climate Change 
	1,000 
	1,000 

	Mail Bus Station Redevelopment 
	Mail Bus Station Redevelopment 
	53 
	750 
	750 

	Section 106 Contributions 
	Section 106 Contributions 
	0 
	57 
	63 
	480 
	59 
	69 
	728 

	Other 
	Other 
	1,113 
	676 495 
	309 
	270 
	270 
	2,020 

	TR
	34,382 
	38,265 22,296 
	17,680 
	15,084 
	15,094 
	108,419 


	FUTURE PLANS 
	At the time of publishing the Statement of Accounts, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic remains very unclear. Whilst the Council is absolutely committed to fulfilling its responsibilities for service delivery and to supporting the community’s recovery from the pandemic, the way in which it will do this remains to be determined. The Council’s Strategic Plan objectives are currently being reviewed to consider how they might need to be refreshed in light of the pandemic. 
	The Strategic Plan depends on the Council’s five year Medium Term Financial Strategy, which sets out how our strategic priorities will be delivered, given the financial resources available to the Council. The Council’s resources are very largely generated locally, with most of its income coming from Council Tax and other local sources, including parking, planning fees and property income.  Given the high dependence on self-generated income, which risks being affected adversely by the Covid-19 pandemic, the 
	The Council’s capital programme is intended to support local public services and to help the Council achieve its strategic priorities for the borough. The Council plans to continue investing through the capital programme, to the extent that investments are sustainable in terms of our ability to fund interest payments and ultimately repayment of capital, and provided that resources are available whether through Public Works Loan Board borrowing or other sources of finance. 
	15 
	RISK MANAGEMENT 
	The Council manages risk through a comprehensive risk management framework. This involves identification of risk at corporate and service levels, ownership of individual risks by named officers, development of controls to mitigate risks, and regular reporting.  Quarterly reports are presented to the Corporate Leadership Team and bi-annual reports to Policy and Resources Committee.  Members take an active interest in the risk management process and engage fully in discussion about individual risks. 
	The following table sets out what we have assessed as being the key corporate risks. 
	Ranking 
	Ranking 
	Ranking 
	Risk description 
	Risk rating 

	Inherent risk 
	Inherent risk 
	After planned mitigations 

	1 
	1 
	Contraction in retail and leisure sectors 
	25 
	20 

	2= 
	2= 
	Resurgence of current Covid-19 pandemic 
	20 
	16 

	2= 
	2= 
	Environmental damage 
	16 
	16 

	4 
	4 
	Major emergency with national / international impact 
	15 
	15 

	5= 
	5= 
	Financial restrictions 
	20 
	12 

	5= 
	5= 
	Poor partner relationships 
	16 
	12 

	5= 
	5= 
	IT security failure 
	12 
	12 

	8= 
	8= 
	Housing pressures increasing 
	12 
	9 

	8= 
	8= 
	Not fulfilling residential property responsibilities 
	12 
	9 

	8= 
	8= 
	Short term impacts from end of Brexit transition period 
	12 
	9 

	8= 
	8= 
	Building of incomplete communities 
	9 
	9 

	12= 
	12= 
	Major project failure 
	12 
	8 

	12= 
	12= 
	Governance failures 
	8 
	8 

	14= 
	14= 
	Significant contract failure 
	12 
	6 

	14= 
	14= 
	Loss of community engagement 
	12 
	6 

	14= 
	14= 
	Not fulfilling commercial property responsibilities 
	8 
	6 

	17 
	17 
	Insufficient workforce capacity and skills 
	4 
	4 


	16 
	17 
	Figure
	STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2019/20 
	STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
	STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
	The Council’s Responsibilities 
	The Council is required to: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In the Council, that officer is the Director of Finance &Business Improvement. 

	• 
	• 
	Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 

	• 
	• 
	Approve the Statement of Accounts. 


	The Director of Finance & Business Improvement’s Responsibilities 
	The Director of Finance &Business Improvement is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 
	In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Director of Finance &Business Improvement has: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently. 

	• 
	• 
	Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent. 

	• 
	• 
	Complied with the Code. 


	The Director of Finance &Business Improvement has also: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Kept proper accounting records which were up to date. 

	• 
	• 
	Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 


	Icertify that this Statement of Accounts gives atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Council at the reporting date and of its expenditure and income for the year ended 31March 2020. 
	st 

	Signed: 
	Figure
	Mark Green, Director of Finance &Business Improvement 
	Date: 30November 2020 
	th 

	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	PRIMARY STATEMENTS 

	COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT For the years ending 31March 2019 & 2020 
	COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT For the years ending 31March 2019 & 2020 
	st 

	2018/19 (Restated) Gross Gross Net Expenditure Income Expenditure £000 £000 £000 58,391 (52,352) 6,039 20,064 (6,972) 13,092 9,646 (2,705) 6,941 6,874 (7,075) (201) 
	2018/19 (Restated) Gross Gross Net Expenditure Income Expenditure £000 £000 £000 58,391 (52,352) 6,039 20,064 (6,972) 13,092 9,646 (2,705) 6,941 6,874 (7,075) (201) 
	2018/19 (Restated) Gross Gross Net Expenditure Income Expenditure £000 £000 £000 58,391 (52,352) 6,039 20,064 (6,972) 13,092 9,646 (2,705) 6,941 6,874 (7,075) (201) 
	Committee (See note below) Policy & Resources Communities,Housing& Environment Economic,Regeneration& Leisure Strategic Planning& Infrastructure 
	Gross Expenditure £000 53,508 21,374 6,279 8,112 
	2019/20 Gross Income £000 (45,833) (11,808) (2,280) (6,816) 
	Net Expenditure £000 7,675 9,566 3,999 1,296 

	94,974 (69,104) 25,870 
	94,974 (69,104) 25,870 
	Cost Of Services 
	89,273 
	(66,738) 
	22,535 

	1,229 169 (28,821) 
	1,229 169 (28,821) 
	OtherOperatingExpenditure (Note 9) FinancingandInvestment Income and Expenditure (Note 10) TaxationandNon-Specific Grant IncomeandExpenditure (Note 11) 
	2,052 1,807 
	(355) (2,474) (27,747) 
	1,698 (666) (27,747) 

	(1,553) 
	(1,553) 
	(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 
	(4,179) 

	(7,832) (9,438) (17,271) 
	(7,832) (9,438) (17,271) 
	Items that willnot be reclassified to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (Surplus) ordeficit onrevaluationof property,plant & equipment assets Remeasurement ofthe Net Defined Benefit Liability Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
	(5,567) (2,068) (7,635) 

	(18,824) 
	(18,824) 
	TotalComprehensive Income and Expenditure 
	(11,814) 
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	Note – Change of Committee Structure 
	The Council committee structure changed in 2019/20 to reflect the priorities set out in the newly adopted Strategic Plan. As part of the restructure, the Heritage, Culture and Leisure Committee was decommissioned, and the Economic Regeneration and Leisure Committee was created. Anumber of budget heads were also reallocated to the Communities, Housing &Environment Committee. The comparative figures for 2018/19 have therefore been restated to reflect this. The figures that appeared in the 2018/19 Statement of
	Committee Policy & Resources Communities,Housing& Environment Heritage,Culture & Leisure Strategic Planning,Sustainability & Transportation 
	Committee Policy & Resources Communities,Housing& Environment Heritage,Culture & Leisure Strategic Planning,Sustainability & Transportation 
	Committee Policy & Resources Communities,Housing& Environment Heritage,Culture & Leisure Strategic Planning,Sustainability & Transportation 
	Gross Expenditure £000 62,187 15,817 10,096 6,874 
	2018/19 Gross Income £000 (52,890) (4,786) (4,353) (7,075) 
	Net Expenditure £000 9,297 11,031 5,743 (201) 

	Cost Of Services 
	Cost Of Services 
	94,974 
	(69,104) 
	25,870 

	OtherOperatingExpenditure (Note 9) FinancingandInvestment Income andExpenditure (Note 10) TaxationandNon-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure (Note 11) 
	OtherOperatingExpenditure (Note 9) FinancingandInvestment Income andExpenditure (Note 10) TaxationandNon-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure (Note 11) 
	1,927 2,040 
	(698) (1,871) 
	1,230 170 (28,821) 

	(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 
	(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 
	(1,553) 



	MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT For the years ending 31March 2019 & 2020 
	MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT For the years ending 31March 2019 & 2020 
	st 

	Current Year 
	Current Year 
	Current Year 
	General FundBalanceUnallocated
	Earmarked GFBalances
	CapitalReceiptsReserve
	Total UsableReservesUnusableReserves
	Total Reserves 

	TR
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 £000 
	£000 

	Balance at 1st April2019 (Restated) 
	Balance at 1st April2019 (Restated) 
	9,228 
	5,828 
	598 
	15,657 34,287 
	49,944 

	Movement in Reserves during 
	Movement in Reserves during 

	2019/20 
	2019/20 

	TotalComprehensive Income and 
	TotalComprehensive Income and 

	Expenditure 
	Expenditure 
	4,179 
	0 
	0 
	4,179 7,635 
	11,814 

	Adjustments betweenaccountingbasis 
	Adjustments betweenaccountingbasis 

	& fundingbasis underregulation(Note 
	& fundingbasis underregulation(Note 

	6) 
	6) 
	(2,286) 
	0 
	(49) 
	(2,335) 2,335 
	0 

	Movements betweenReserves 
	Movements betweenReserves 
	(2,302) 
	1,992 
	0 
	(310) 310 
	(0) 

	Increase or Decrease in 2019/20 
	Increase or Decrease in 2019/20 
	(409) 
	1,992 
	(49) 
	1,534 10,280 
	11,814 

	Balance at 31st March 2020 
	Balance at 31st March 2020 
	8,818 
	7,820 
	549 
	17,193 44,565 
	61,758 


	Comparative Year 
	Comparative Year 
	Comparative Year 
	GeneralFundBalance
	EarmarkedGF Balances
	CapitalReceiptsReserve
	Total UsableReservesUnusableReserves(Restated)
	TotalReserves 

	TR
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 £000 
	£000 

	Balance at 1st April2018 
	Balance at 1st April2018 
	9,627 
	2,899 
	523 
	13,049 18,068 
	31,117 

	Movement in Reserves during 
	Movement in Reserves during 

	2018/19 
	2018/19 

	TotalComprehensive Income and 
	TotalComprehensive Income and 

	Expenditure 
	Expenditure 
	1,558 
	0 
	1,558 17,269 
	18,827 

	Adjustments betweenaccountingbasis 
	Adjustments betweenaccountingbasis 

	& fundingbasis underregulation(Note 
	& fundingbasis underregulation(Note 

	6) 
	6) 
	2,381 
	(1,404) 
	75 
	1,052 (1,052) 
	0 

	Movements betweenReserves 
	Movements betweenReserves 
	(4,333) 
	4,333 
	0 

	Increase or Decrease in 2018/19 
	Increase or Decrease in 2018/19 
	(394) 
	2,929 
	75 
	2,610 16,217 
	18,827 

	Balance at 31st March 2019 (Restated) 
	Balance at 31st March 2019 (Restated) 
	9,228 
	5,828 
	598 
	15,657 34,287 
	49,944 


	The statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into usable reserves (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other unusable reserves. The statement shows how the movements in year of the authority’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable
	The statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into usable reserves (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other unusable reserves. The statement shows how the movements in year of the authority’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable
	year. The net increase/decrease line shows the statutory general fund) balance movements in the year following those adjustments. 

	The balance at 31March 2019 has been restated to reflect the addition of the Lockmeadow Car Park as aseparate asset on the Balance Sheet, as part of Property, Plant &Equipment. The value of the adjustment is £2.050m. 
	st 

	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	BALANCE SHEET As at 31March 2019 & 2020 
	BALANCE SHEET As at 31March 2019 & 2020 
	st 

	Figure
	30thMarch 31stMarch 2018 2019 
	31st March (Restated) (Restated) Notes 2020 £000 £000 
	£000 
	70,885 85,088 Property,Plant &Equipment 17 124,200 19,976 23,014 Investment Property 18 23,270 10,393 10,393 Heritage Assets 19 10,393 477 564 Intangible Assets 654 0 2,000 LongTerm Investments 20 0 40 83 LongTerm Debtors 62 101,771 121,142 Long Term Assets 158,579 
	7,000 2,000 Short Term Investments 20 0 
	110 97 Inventories 166 14,291 19,654 Short Term Debtors 22 17,138 10,244 11,184 Cash& CashEquivalents 23 10,687 31,645 32,935 Current Assets 27,991 
	14,233 0 Short Term Borrowing 11,000 959 22,347 Short Term Creditors 24 29,377 296 1,559 Provisions 25 1,164 521 521 DeferredLiability 27 517 
	4,080 4,723 CapitalGrants Receipts in 15 5,656 Advance 20,089 29,150 Current Liabilities 47,714 
	1,348 707 Provisions 25 1,226 184 259 OtherProvisions 174 3,057 2,536 DeferredLiability 27 2,020 77,618 71,481 OtherLongTerm Liabilities 31 73,677 82,207 74,983 Long Term Liabilities 77,098 
	31,120 49,944 Net Assets 61,758 
	13,052 15,659 Usable Reserves 17,193 
	18,068 34,285 Unusable Reserves 29 44,565 
	31,120 49,944 TotalReserves 61,758 
	Athird balance sheet has been added to reflect the addition of the Lockmeadow car park as aseparate asset. It had previously been included as part of the market valuation. As the asset was in existence prior to 1April 2018 and the value itself (£2.050m) was considered to be material the third balance sheet was required. 
	st 



	CASHFLOW STATEMENT 
	CASHFLOW STATEMENT 
	2018/19 £000 
	2018/19 £000 
	2018/19 £000 
	Notes 
	2019/20 £000 

	(1,553) (8,612) 2,179 (7,988) 5,431 1,616 (941) (10,244) 
	(1,553) (8,612) 2,179 (7,988) 5,431 1,616 (941) (10,244) 
	Net (surplus) ordeficit onthe provisionofservices Adjustments to net surplus or deficit onthe provisionof services fornon-cash movements Adjustments foritems included inthe net surplus ordeficit on the provisionofservices that are investing& financing activities Net cash flows from Operating activities InvestingActivities FinancingActivities Net increase or decrease in cash & cash equivalents Cash& cashequivalents at the beginningofthe reportingperiod 
	35 36 37 38 
	(4,179) (10,329) 6,372 (8,136) 26,800 (18,168) 496 (11,184) 

	(11,184) 
	(11,184) 
	Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 
	(10,687) 


	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

	NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
	NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
	1 – EXPENDITURE & FUNDING ANALYSIS For the years ending 31March 2019 & 2020 
	st 

	2018/19 (Restated) Net Expenditure in the Adjustments Comprehensive Net Expenditure between the Income & Chargeable to Funding and Expenditure the GeneralFund Accounting Basis Statement Committee (See note) £000 £000 £000 6,774 (735) 6,039 Policy & Resources 8,960 4,132 13,092 Communities,Housing& Environment 1,778 5,163 6,941 Economic,Regeneration& Leisure (444) 243 (201) Strategic Planning& Infrastructure 17,068 8,803 25,870 Net Cost Of Services (16,239) (11,184) (27,423) OtherIncome & Expenditure 
	2018/19 (Restated) Net Expenditure in the Adjustments Comprehensive Net Expenditure between the Income & Chargeable to Funding and Expenditure the GeneralFund Accounting Basis Statement Committee (See note) £000 £000 £000 6,774 (735) 6,039 Policy & Resources 8,960 4,132 13,092 Communities,Housing& Environment 1,778 5,163 6,941 Economic,Regeneration& Leisure (444) 243 (201) Strategic Planning& Infrastructure 17,068 8,803 25,870 Net Cost Of Services (16,239) (11,184) (27,423) OtherIncome & Expenditure 
	2018/19 (Restated) Net Expenditure in the Adjustments Comprehensive Net Expenditure between the Income & Chargeable to Funding and Expenditure the GeneralFund Accounting Basis Statement Committee (See note) £000 £000 £000 6,774 (735) 6,039 Policy & Resources 8,960 4,132 13,092 Communities,Housing& Environment 1,778 5,163 6,941 Economic,Regeneration& Leisure (444) 243 (201) Strategic Planning& Infrastructure 17,068 8,803 25,870 Net Cost Of Services (16,239) (11,184) (27,423) OtherIncome & Expenditure 
	Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund £000 11,603 8,943 1,889 (473) 21,962 (28,430) 
	2019/20 Adjustments between the Funding and Accounting Basis £000 (3,927) 623 2,109 1,769 575 1,713 
	Net Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement £000 7,675 9,566 3,999 1,296 22,535 (26,717) 

	829 (2,381) (1,553) (Surplus) or Deficit 
	829 (2,381) (1,553) (Surplus) or Deficit 
	(6,470) 
	2,288 
	(4,182) 

	12,526 OpeningGeneralFundBalance (977) Less/Plus Surplus or(Deficit) onGeneral FundBalance inYear 
	12,526 OpeningGeneralFundBalance (977) Less/Plus Surplus or(Deficit) onGeneral FundBalance inYear 
	15,056 2,597 

	15,056 Closing GeneralFund Balance at 31st March 
	15,056 Closing GeneralFund Balance at 31st March 
	16,641 
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	The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s service committees. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices i
	NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE & FUNDING ANALYSIS 
	Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis 2019/20 Adjustments from GeneralFund to Adjustments Net Change arrive at the Comprehensive for Capital for Pensions Other Income & Expenditure Statement Purposes Adjustments Differences Total amounts (Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii) Adjustments £000 £000 £000 £000 Policy & Resources 1,481 1,673 (7,081) (3,927) Communities,Housing& Environment (1,877) 2,501 623 Economic,Regeneration& Leisure 1,842 267 2,109 Strategic Planning& Infrastructure 105 1,664 1,769 
	Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis 2019/20 Adjustments from GeneralFund to Adjustments Net Change arrive at the Comprehensive for Capital for Pensions Other Income & Expenditure Statement Purposes Adjustments Differences Total amounts (Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii) Adjustments £000 £000 £000 £000 Policy & Resources 1,481 1,673 (7,081) (3,927) Communities,Housing& Environment (1,877) 2,501 623 Economic,Regeneration& Leisure 1,842 267 2,109 Strategic Planning& Infrastructure 105 1,664 1,769 
	Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis 2019/20 Adjustments from GeneralFund to Adjustments Net Change arrive at the Comprehensive for Capital for Pensions Other Income & Expenditure Statement Purposes Adjustments Differences Total amounts (Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii) Adjustments £000 £000 £000 £000 Policy & Resources 1,481 1,673 (7,081) (3,927) Communities,Housing& Environment (1,877) 2,501 623 Economic,Regeneration& Leisure 1,842 267 2,109 Strategic Planning& Infrastructure 105 1,664 1,769 

	Net Cost of Services 1,551 1,673 (2,649) 575 
	Net Cost of Services 1,551 1,673 (2,649) 575 

	Otherincome andexpenditure from the Expenditure & FundingAnalysis (1,551) (1,673) 4,937 1,713 Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (0) 0 2,288 2,288 
	Otherincome andexpenditure from the Expenditure & FundingAnalysis (1,551) (1,673) 4,937 1,713 Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (0) 0 2,288 2,288 


	Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis 2018/19 
	Adjustments from General Fund 
	Adjustments from General Fund 
	Adjustments from General Fund 
	to 
	Adjustments 
	Net Change 

	arrive 
	arrive 
	at 
	the Comprehensive 
	for Capital 
	for Pensions 
	Other 

	Income & Expenditure Statement 
	Income & Expenditure Statement 
	Purposes 
	Adjustments 
	Differences 
	Total 

	amounts 
	amounts 
	(Note i) 
	(Note ii) 
	(Note iii) Adjustments 


	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 

	Policy & Resources Communities,Housing& Environment Economic Regeneration& Leisure Strategic Planning& Infrastructure Net Cost of Services 
	Policy & Resources Communities,Housing& Environment Economic Regeneration& Leisure Strategic Planning& Infrastructure Net Cost of Services 
	908 1,835 4,670 (1,506) 5,908 
	1,366 1,366 
	(3,009) 2,296 493 1,749 1,529 
	(735) 4,132 5,163 243 8,802 

	Otherincome andexpenditurefrom the Expenditure & FundingAnalysis 
	Otherincome andexpenditurefrom the Expenditure & FundingAnalysis 
	(5,908) 
	(1,366) 
	(3,910) 
	(11,184) 

	Difference between GeneralFund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	Difference between GeneralFund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	(0) 
	0 
	(2,381) 
	(2,381) 


	Note – Change of Committee Structure 
	The Council committee structure changed in 2019/20 to reflect the priorities set out in the newly adopted Strategic Plan. As part of the restructure, the Heritage, Culture and Leisure Committee was decommissioned, and the Economic Regeneration and Leisure Committee was created. Anumber of budget heads were also reallocated to the Communities, Housing &Environment Committee. The comparative figures for 2018/19 have therefore been restated to reflect this. The figures that appeared in the 2018/19 Statement of
	Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
	Committee Policy & Resources Communities,Housing& Environment Heritage,Culture& Leisure Strategic Planning,Sustainability & Transportation 
	Committee Policy & Resources Communities,Housing& Environment Heritage,Culture& Leisure Strategic Planning,Sustainability & Transportation 
	Committee Policy & Resources Communities,Housing& Environment Heritage,Culture& Leisure Strategic Planning,Sustainability & Transportation 
	Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund £000 7,517 8,052 1,942 (444) 
	2018/19 Adjustments between the Funding and Accounting Basis £000 1,780 2,979 3,800 243 
	Net Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement £000 9,297 11,031 5,742 (201) 

	Net Cost Of Services 
	Net Cost Of Services 
	17,067 
	8,802 
	25,870 

	OtherIncome & Expenditure 
	OtherIncome & Expenditure 
	(16,239) 
	(11,184) 
	(27,423) 

	(Surplus) or Deficit 
	(Surplus) or Deficit 
	828 
	(2,382) 
	(1,553) 


	Note to the Expenditure & Funding Analysis 
	Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis 2018/19 
	Adjustments from GeneralFund 
	Adjustments from GeneralFund 
	Adjustments from GeneralFund 
	to 
	Adjustments 
	Net Change 

	arrive at the Comprehensive 
	arrive at the Comprehensive 
	for Capital 
	for Pensions 
	Other 

	Income & Expenditure Statement 
	Income & Expenditure Statement 
	Purposes 
	Adjustments 
	Differences 
	Total 

	amounts 
	amounts 
	(Note i) 
	(Note ii) 
	(Note iii) Adjustments 

	TR
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 


	Policy &Resources 3,175 1,366 (2,761) 1,780 Communities,Housing &Environment 1,856 1,123 2,979 Heritage,Culture &Leisure 2,382 1,418 3,800 Strategic Planning,Sustainability & Transportation (1,506) 1,749 243 Net Cost of Services 5,907 1,366 1,529 8,802 
	Otherincome andexpenditure from the Expenditure &Funding Analysis (5,908) (1,366) (3,910) (11,184) 
	Difference between GeneralFund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision ofServices 0 0 (2,381) (2,382) 
	Note i – Adjustments for Capital Purposes 
	• This column adjusts Policy &Resources Committee for the statutory adjustments put through in respect of depreciation, amortisation of intangible assets, revenue funding from capital under statute, and other capital charges. 
	Note ii – Net Charge for Pensions Adjustments 
	• This column adjusts Policy &Resources Committee for the statutory adjustments put through in respect of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related income and expenditure. 
	Note iii – Other Differences 
	• This column adjusts the service committees for various recharges such as accommodation, telephones, staff recharges and IT recharges as when they are reported they only include direct costs. 
	EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Expenditure Employee Benefit Expenses OtherServices Expenses Depreciation,Amortisation,Impairment Interest Payments Precepts & Levies Gain/(Loss) onthe DisposalofAssets TotalExpenditure Income Fees,Charges & OtherService Income Interest & Investment Income Income from CouncilTax & NDR Government Grants & Contributions TotalIncome 
	Expenditure Employee Benefit Expenses OtherServices Expenses Depreciation,Amortisation,Impairment Interest Payments Precepts & Levies Gain/(Loss) onthe DisposalofAssets TotalExpenditure Income Fees,Charges & OtherService Income Interest & Investment Income Income from CouncilTax & NDR Government Grants & Contributions TotalIncome 
	22,062 88,771 7,119 110 1,811 (1,446) 118,427 (24,170) (220) (45,552) (50,037) (119,980) 
	24,354 84,723 4,294 135 1,936 (2,980) 112,462 (27,239) (217) (43,821) (45,364) (116,641) 

	(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	(1,553) 
	(4,179) 


	The increase in employee benefit expenses arises in part from additional pension costs following the McCloud case and subsequent ruling relating to age discrimination within pension schemes. Further detail regarding this is provided within note 31. 
	Page 12 
	2 -ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
	General Principles 
	The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2019/20 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2020. The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts &Audit Regulations (England) 2015 which require the accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2019/20, supported by International Financial Reporting Stand
	The following accounting concepts have been given precedence in the preparation of the accounts: 
	•Going 
	•Going 
	•Going 
	concern 

	•Primacy 
	•Primacy 
	of legislative requirements 


	The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
	Revenue Recognition 
	In accordance with IFRS 15, revenue is accounted for at the point at which services are delivered to service recipients, not necessarily when cash payments are made or received. In particular: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract. 

	• 
	• 
	Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 

	• 
	• 
	Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

	• 
	• 
	Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, adebtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and acharge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

	• 
	• 
	Accruals are recognised where the value exceeds £10,000. 


	Income from Council Tax and Non-Domestic (Business) Rates: 
	Revenue relating to council tax and business rates is measured at the full amount receivable (net of any impairment losses) as they are non-contractual, non-exchange transactions. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits of the transaction will flow to the Council and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 
	The council tax and business rate income included in the CIES is the accrued income for the year, which consists of: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The Council’s council tax precept and business rate share from the Collection Fund i.e. the amount billed for the year; and 

	• 
	• 
	The Council’s share of the actual council tax and business rate surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund at the end of the current year, adjusted for the Council’s share of the surplus or deficit on the fund at the preceding year end that has not been distributed or recovered in the current year. 


	The latter is not required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund and so is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as areconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement on the General Fund balance. 
	The Council as billing authority recognises acreditor in its balance sheet for cash collected from taxpayers and businesses on behalf of major preceptors but not yet paid to them, or adebtor for cash paid to major preceptors. 
	Overheads & Support Services 
	The costs of support services and overheads are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service in accordance with the absorption costing principle. The full cost of overheads and support services is shared between users in proportion to the benefits received. 
	Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates & Errors 
	Prior period adjustments may arise as result of achange in accounting policies or to correct amaterial error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current or financial years affected by the change and do not give rise to aprior period adjustment. 
	Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where achange is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
	Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
	Value Added Tax 
	VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue &Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
	Further accounting policies can be found throughout these accounts with the notes to which they relate. 
	ROUNDING 
	It is not the Council’s policy to adjust for immaterial cross -casting differences between the main statements and disclosure notes. 
	3 -CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
	In applying the accounting policies, the Council has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	There is ahigh degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication of the assets of the Council might be impaired as aresult of aneed to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

	• 
	• 
	Acomprehensive review of all property leases was undertaken at the end of 2017/18 to determine whether they should be classified as an operating lease (which are off-Balance Sheet), or afinance lease (which is on-Balance Sheet). The result of this review was that the Council currently has no property leases which need to be classified as finance leases. 

	• 
	• 
	Areview of the contract for waste collection has determined that the contractual arrangements do not meet the requirements of IFRIC 4. 

	• 
	• 
	It has been determined that an arrangement between the Council and the managing contractor of the Leisure Centre is classified as aservice concession arrangement. Under the terms of the arrangement the Council makes regular payments over a15 year period to cover the costs of major refurbishment works which have been undertaken by the contractor. 

	• 
	• 
	Ajudgement has been made as to which of the council’s assets fall under the category of Heritage Assets, and the appropriate basis for valuation and disclosure. The outcome of this judgement is reflected in the Heritage Assets note. 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	Areview of operational assets not revalued this year has been undertaken to determine whether or not there could have been amaterial movement 

	in the asset values. Using guidance from the external valuer, it has been concluded that the assets are materially fairly stated. 

	• 
	• 
	As awholly owned subsidiary of the council, Maidstone Property Holdings Limited falls within the group boundary on the grounds of control and significant influence in line with the Code. However the Council’s interests in aggregate are not sufficiently material to warrant producing consolidated financial statements when reviewing both quantitative and qualitative information. For this reason, group accounts are not deemed necessary within these statements. 

	• 
	• 
	The Council has determined that it does not need to prepare group accounts to include Cobtree Manor Estate Trust, on the grounds that the Council neither controls, jointly controls, nor has significant influence over the Trust. Councillors who sit on the Cobtree Manor Estate Charity Committee act on behalf of the Trust in their decision making, rather than in the interests of Maidstone Borough Council. The objectives of the Trust derive from aseparate trust, the Cobtree Charity Trust, and cannot be influenc

	• 
	• 
	In the latter part of the year 2019/20 the Covid-19 pandemic had a profound impact across service areas, businesses and the wider community testing the Council’s business continuity planning arrangements. It will, in all likelihood, also have asignificant adverse impact on the Council’s finances and, in turn, reserve balances. This is discussed in more detail in the Narrative Report. 


	There will be numerous issues that will impact on local authorities as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Specific areas within the financial statements include: 
	-Valuation uncertainty in respect of property, plant and equipment, investment property and heritage assets. 
	-Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities –The scheme has been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries. Further information relating to the pension scheme can be found in Note 31. 
	-Collectability of debt –It is likely that Covid-19 containment measures will result in an adverse impact on the Council’s ability to collect debt. The impairment allowances for doubtful debts have been reviewed and increased in light of this risk. Further information can be found in Note 22. 
	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	4 -ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE & OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
	The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 
	The items in the Council’s financial statements at 31March 2020 for which there is asignificant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming year are as follows: 
	st 

	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Source of Uncertainty 
	Effect if actual results differ from assumptions 

	Property valuations 
	Property valuations 
	Property valuations are based on market prices and are periodically reviewed to ensure that the Council does not materially misstate its non-current assets and investment properties. The Council’s external valuers provided valuations for the Council’s entire investment portfolio and a proportion of its operational portfolio. The remaining balance of operational properties was also reviewed to ensure values were reflective of current appropriate values. The outbreak of Covid-19 has impacted global financial 
	A reduction in the estimated valuations would result in reductions to the Revaluation Reserve and / or a loss recorded as appropriate in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES). If the value of the Council’s property portfolio were to reduce by 10%, this would result in a change of approximately £6.5m. An increase in estimated valuations would result in increases to the Revaluation Reserve and / or reversals of previous negative revaluations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stat
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	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Source of Uncertainty 
	Effect if actual results differ from assumptions 

	TR
	judgement. Valuations are therefore reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per the RICS Red Book Global. Consequently, less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be attached to the valuation. At the current time, it is not possible to accurately predict the longevity and severity of the impact of Covid-19 on the economy. Therefore, values have been based on the situation prior to Covid-19, on the assumption that values will be restored when the real estate market becomes more

	Depreciation 
	Depreciation 
	Assets are depreciated over useful lives which are based on the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. If current spending on repairs and maintenance were to be reduced, this could affect a change to useful lives assigned to the assets. 
	Depreciation charges for operational buildings will change in direct relation to changes in estimated fair value. Furthermore, if the useful life of assets is reduced the annual depreciation charge increases and the carrying amount of the asset falls. It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for buildings would increase by £0.6m for every year that useful lives had to be reduced. 
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	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Source of Uncertainty 
	Effect if actual results differ from assumptions 

	Pensions 
	Pensions 
	Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions 
	A 0.1% increase in the discount rate will reduce 

	Liability 
	Liability 
	depends on several complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on Pension Fund investments. The Council has engaged Barnett Waddingham as its consulting actuary to provide expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. The ongoing impact of the Covid19 pandemic has created uncertainty surrounding illiquid asset values. As such, the Pension Fund property and infrastructure all
	the net pension liability by £3.4m; • A 0.1% increase in the assumed level of pension increases will increase the net pension liability by £3.2m; • An increase of one year in longevity will increase the net pension liability by £7.6m. 
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	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Source of Uncertainty 
	Effect if actual results differ from assumptions 

	Arrears 
	Arrears 
	At 31st March 2020 the Council had a balance of sundry debtors for £13.9m. A review of significant balances suggested that an impairment allowance for bad debts of £4.1m was appropriate. The allowance has been increased this year given the increased risk of non-payment arising from Covid 19 lockdown measures. Uncertainty remains as to whether or not such an allowance is sufficient. 
	If collection rates were to deteriorate, a 50% increase in the level of impairment required for doubtful debts would require an additional £2m to be set aside as an allowance. 

	Non-
	Non-
	The Collection Fund is liable for potential 
	If the yield losses from successful appeals were 

	Domestic 
	Domestic 
	losses arising from appeals against the 
	to increase by 10%, an additional provision of 

	Rates 
	Rates 
	rateable value of business premises. A 
	£0.532m would be required overall, and the 

	Appeals 
	Appeals 
	provision of £5.324m has therefore been created to recognise current and backdated appeals. The council’s share of the provision of £2.130m is reflected on the balance sheet. This is deemed to be appropriate as it is based on a detailed analysis of information provided by the VOA. There is uncertainty regarding the value of potential losses against the 2017 valuation list. A provision of 2.1p per pound of rateable value is reflected in the above total. 
	council’s share of the provision would increase by £0.213m. 
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	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Source of Uncertainty 
	Effect if actual results differ from assumptions 

	Brexit 
	Brexit 
	The UK stopped being a member of the European Union (EU) at 23:00 GMT on 31 January 2020. However, significant uncertainty remains concerning the UK’s future relationship with the EU. Current assumptions underlying asset valuations and pensions liability assume no significant impact from Brexit. 
	Depending on the circumstances of Britain’s departure from the EU, it is possible that asset values may fall and/or that assumptions underlying the assessment of pensions liabilities may alter. 
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	5 -ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT HAVE NOT YET BEEN ADOPTED 
	International Accounting Standard 8requires the Council to disclose the expected impact of new standards that have been issued, but not yet adopted. 
	Accounting Standards that have been issued, but not yet adopted include: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 

	• 
	• 
	Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle 

	• 
	• 
	Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement. 


	None of the above standards, when adopted, are expected to have a material impact on the Council’s financial statements. 
	IFRS 16 Leases – Agreed to defer the implementation for one year. This will mean the effective date for implementation is now 1 April 2021. It is not currently possible to estimate the impact of these changes. 
	6 -ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS & FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS 
	This note details the adjustments that are made to total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
	General Fund Balance 
	The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Council are required to be paid and out of which all liabilities of the Council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund balance therefore summarises the resources that the Council is statutori
	Capital Receipts Reserve 
	The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end. 
	Capital Grants Unapplied 
	The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which it can take place. 
	2019/20 
	2019/20 
	2019/20 
	Usable Reserves General Capital Fund Receipts balance Reserve £000 £000 

	Adjustments to the Revenue Resources Amounts by whichincome andexpenditure includedin the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement are different from the yearcalculatedinaccordance with statutory requirements: Pensions Costs (transferredto (orfrom) the Pensions Reserve) CouncilTax andNDR(transfers to orfrom the CollectionFundAdjustment Account) Holiday Pay (transferredto the AccumulatedAbsences Account) Reversalofentries includedinthe Surplus orDeficit on the ProvisionofServices inrelationto capital exp
	Adjustments to the Revenue Resources Amounts by whichincome andexpenditure includedin the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement are different from the yearcalculatedinaccordance with statutory requirements: Pensions Costs (transferredto (orfrom) the Pensions Reserve) CouncilTax andNDR(transfers to orfrom the CollectionFundAdjustment Account) Holiday Pay (transferredto the AccumulatedAbsences Account) Reversalofentries includedinthe Surplus orDeficit on the ProvisionofServices inrelationto capital exp
	4,264 (910) (5) 5,316 8,665 0 (1,384) 1,963 (520) (4,636) (6,540) 1,963 (2,012) (4,411) (4,411) (2,012) 

	TotalAdjustments 
	TotalAdjustments 
	(2,286) (49) 


	2018/19 Comparative Figures 
	2018/19 Comparative Figures 
	2018/19 Comparative Figures 
	Usable Reserves General Capital Fund Receipts balance Reserve £000 £000 

	Adjustments to the Revenue Resources Amounts by whichincome andexpenditure includedin the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement are different from the yearcalculatedinaccordance with statutory requirements: Pensions Costs (transferredto (orfrom) the Pensions Reserve) CouncilTax andNDR(transfers to orfrom the CollectionFundAdjustment Account) Holiday Pay (transferredto the AccumulatedAbsences Account) Reversalofentries includedinthe Surplus orDeficit on the ProvisionofServices inrelationto capital exp
	Adjustments to the Revenue Resources Amounts by whichincome andexpenditure includedin the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement are different from the yearcalculatedinaccordance with statutory requirements: Pensions Costs (transferredto (orfrom) the Pensions Reserve) CouncilTax andNDR(transfers to orfrom the CollectionFundAdjustment Account) Holiday Pay (transferredto the AccumulatedAbsences Account) Reversalofentries includedinthe Surplus orDeficit on the ProvisionofServices inrelationto capital exp
	3,301 (1,101) (5) 6,521 8,717 0 (698) 816 (521) (3,749) (4,968) 816 (741) (1,367) (1,367) (741) 

	TotalAdjustments 
	TotalAdjustments 
	2,380 75 


	Accounting Policy Charges to Revenue for Non Current Assets 
	Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

	• 
	• 
	Revaluation &impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off. 

	• 
	• 
	Amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service 


	The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisation. 
	7 – EARMARKED RESERVES 
	Within the General Fund balance of £16.838m at the end of the year the Council maintains anumber of Earmarked Reserves for specific purposes as follows: 
	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 £000 
	Contributions to/from Balances £000 
	31st March 2020 £000 

	LocalPlanReview NeighbourhoodPlanning PlanningAppeals TradingAccounts CivilParkingEnforcement Future CapitalExpenditure Future FundingPressures Homelessness Prevention& Temporary Accommodation Business Rates Growth OccupationalHealth& Safety Lockmeadow Complex 
	LocalPlanReview NeighbourhoodPlanning PlanningAppeals TradingAccounts CivilParkingEnforcement Future CapitalExpenditure Future FundingPressures Homelessness Prevention& Temporary Accommodation Business Rates Growth OccupationalHealth& Safety Lockmeadow Complex 
	200 64 300 31 419 431 0 700 3,682 0 0 
	109 11 (14) (254) 1,589 (19) 205 31 335 
	309 75 286 32 164 431 1,589 681 3,887 31 335 

	TotalEarmarked Reserves 
	TotalEarmarked Reserves 
	5,828 
	1,993 
	7,820 

	UnallocatedBalances 
	UnallocatedBalances 
	9,228 
	(409) 
	8,819 

	TotalGeneralFund Reserves 
	TotalGeneralFund Reserves 
	15,056 
	1,583 
	16,638 


	Description of Earmarked Reserves: 
	Local Plan Review –this is funding set aside to support the review of the Local Plan, due to be completed in 2022. 
	Neighbourhood Planning –this is funding from central government to support the production of local Neighbourhood Plans. 
	Trading Accounts –these are ring-fenced surpluses from trading areas within the Council that by statute can only be used within these areas. 
	Planning Appeals – This reserve was created as acontingency for potential costs of future planning appeals. This is in addition to the provision held for costs relating to known appeals. 
	Civil Parking Enforcement –These are ring-fenced surpluses from the on-street parking for re-investment within parking services 
	Housing Prevention & Temporary Accommodation –These are government grants will be used to fund homelessness prevention initiatives and asinking fund for temporary accommodation repairs and maintenance. 
	Future Capital Expenditure – These are funds set-aside from balances for use on future capital projects. 
	Future Funding Pressures – This reserve holds funds set aside as contingency for future local government funding reforms. 
	Business Rates Growth –these are locally retained rates from the Business Rates Pool and Pilot that the Council has participated in during 2018/19, which will be used to support local initiatives. 
	Occupational Health & Safety – This reserve was created to hold funding set aside in case the need should arise to make aprosecution under occupational health and safety legislation. It replaces the annual budget previously held for this purpose. 
	Lockmeadow Complex – This reserve contains amounts set aside for smoothing of rental income from the Lockmeadow complex, based on projected annual fluctuations over the medium term 
	Accounting Policy Reserves 
	The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from areserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General 
	The Council has created aseries of Earmarked Reserves to manage more effectively the resources set aside for specific activities. 
	Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting process for non-current assets, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council –these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
	8 -MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME & EXPENSE 
	There are no material items of income and expenditure that are not detailed in the notes below. 
	9 -OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE 
	These are corporate items of income and expenditure that cannot reasonably be allocated or apportioned to services. 
	2018/19 2019/20 £000 £000 ParishCouncilprecepts 1,811 1,936 Levies 116 116 (Gains)/losses onthe disposalofnon-current assets (698) (355) 1,228 1,698 
	10 -FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME & EXPENDITURE 
	These are corporate items of income and expenditure arising from the Council’s involvement in financial instruments and similar transactions involving interest and investment properties. 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Interest payable andsimilarcharges Net Interest onthe Net DefinedBenefit Liability Interest receivable andsimilarincome Income & Expenditure inrelationto investment properties andchanges intheir fairvalue 
	Interest payable andsimilarcharges Net Interest onthe Net DefinedBenefit Liability Interest receivable andsimilarincome Income & Expenditure inrelationto investment properties andchanges intheir fairvalue 
	105 1,935 (221) (1,649) 
	134 1,673 (217) (2,256) 

	TR
	169 
	(666) ` 


	11 -TAXATION & NON-SPECIFIC GRANT INCOMES 
	This note consolidates all the grants and contributions receivable, including those that cannot be identified to particular service expenditure. 
	Credited to Taxation & Non Specific Grant Income 
	Credited to Taxation & Non Specific Grant Income 
	Credited to Taxation & Non Specific Grant Income 
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Counciltax income Income from RetainedBusiness Rates TariffPayable Levy Payable Non-ringfencedGovernment Grants 
	Counciltax income Income from RetainedBusiness Rates TariffPayable Levy Payable Non-ringfencedGovernment Grants 
	17,354 26,971 (18,602) (120) 3,218 
	18,180 21,918 (19,028) (110) 6,788 

	Total 
	Total 
	28,821 
	27,747 

	Credited to Services HousingBenefit Subsidy Non-Domestic Rates -Cost ofCollection CouncilTax Administration OtherGrants 
	Credited to Services HousingBenefit Subsidy Non-Domestic Rates -Cost ofCollection CouncilTax Administration OtherGrants 
	45,834 206 150 591 
	38,958 205 148 1,695 

	Total 
	Total 
	46,782 
	41,005 


	In 2019/20 Income from Retained Business Rates has benefited from the Council’s participation in the Kent Business Rates Pool, as explained in note 2to the Collection Fund Statement. 
	Accounting Policy Government Grants & Contributions 
	Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants, third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is areasonable assurance that: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

	• 
	• 
	The grants and contributions will be received. 


	Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or condition are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
	Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried on the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation &Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement. 
	Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital
	12 -MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES 
	The amount of Members Allowances paid during 2019/20 totalled £359,506 (£355,578 in 2018/19). 
	The Council also produces astatement, in accordance with provision 1021 – 15(3) of the Local Authorities (Members Allowance)(England) Regulations 2003, giving details of allowances paid to Members for the year. This can be viewed on the Council’s website: 
	democracy/additional-areas/budgets-and-spending/tier-3/councillor-allowances#councillor_allowances 
	democracy/additional-areas/budgets-and-spending/tier-3/councillor-allowances#councillor_allowances 
	http://www.maidstone.gov.uk/home/primary-services/council-and
	-


	13 – OFFICERS REMUNERATION 
	The remuneration paid to the Council’s senior employees is as follows: 
	2019/20 
	2019/20 
	2019/20 
	£000 Salary (IncludingFees)
	£000 Other Payments,Allowances & Benefits in Kind 
	£000 TotalRemunerationexcluding PensionContributions
	£000 PensionContributions
	£000 TotalRemunerationincluding PensionContributions 

	ChiefExecutive 
	ChiefExecutive 
	148 
	3 
	150 
	21 
	171 

	DirectorofFinance & Business 
	DirectorofFinance & Business 

	Improvement 
	Improvement 
	105 
	1 
	106 
	15 
	121 

	DirectorofRegeneration& 
	DirectorofRegeneration& 

	Place 
	Place 
	105 
	1 
	106 
	15 
	121 

	DirectorofMid-Kent Services 
	DirectorofMid-Kent Services 
	94 
	1 
	96 
	13 
	109 


	Salary (Including Fees)
	Other Payments, Allowances& Benefits in Kind
	Total Remuneration excludingPension Contributions
	Pension Contributions
	Total Remuneration includingPension Contributions 
	2018/19 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
	ChiefExecutive 127 9 136 19 155 DirectorofFinance &Business Improvement 102 1 103 14 117 DirectorofRegeneration&Place 102 2 104 14 118 DirectorofMid-Kent Services 90 2 92 13 105 
	Senior Officers are defined as those who sit on the Corporate Leadership Team. There are no other officers who report directly to the Chief Executive and receive more than £50,000 remuneration for the year. 
	The Chief Executive receives additional remuneration to reflect her role as the Council’s Returning Officer during elections. 
	The Director of Mid-Kent Services is jointly funded with Swale and Tunbridge Wells Borough Councils, each making equal contributions. Therefore, Maidstone’s share of the salary is one-third of the value above (£36,000). 
	The Monitoring Officer (Head of Mid Kent Legal Services) also sits on the Corporate Leadership Team but is paid by Swale Borough Council. Details of her remuneration are therefore within their accounts. 
	The Council’s other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the following amounts: 
	Remuneration Banding 
	Remuneration Banding 
	Remuneration Banding 
	2018/19 No. of Employees 
	2019/20 No. of Employees 

	£50,000 -£54,999 £55,000 -£59,999 £60,000 -£64,999 £65,000 -£69,999 £70,000 -£74,999 £75,000 -£79,999 £80,000 -£84,999 £85,000 -£89,999 £90,000 -£94,999 
	£50,000 -£54,999 £55,000 -£59,999 £60,000 -£64,999 £65,000 -£69,999 £70,000 -£74,999 £75,000 -£79,999 £80,000 -£84,999 £85,000 -£89,999 £90,000 -£94,999 
	5 7 4 3 1 0 3 0 0 
	8 5 5 3 2 2 2 1 0 


	Exit Packages 
	The number of exit packages with total cost per band and the total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below: 
	ExitPackage Cost Number of Totalnumber of Totalcost of exit Band(including compulsory Number of other exitpackages by packages in each specialpayments) redundancies departures agreed costband band 
	2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 

	£0 -£20,000 
	£0 -£20,000 
	0 
	4 
	0 
	2 
	0 
	6 
	0 
	36 

	£20,001 
	£20,001 
	-£40,000 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	£40,001 
	£40,001 
	-£80,000 
	0 
	1 
	2 
	0 
	2 
	1 
	121 
	24 

	£80,001 
	£80,001 
	-£100,000 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	£100,001 -£150,000 
	£100,001 -£150,000 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	Total 
	Total 
	1 
	5 
	2 
	2 
	2 
	7 
	121 
	60 


	14 -EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS 
	The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and to non-audit services provided by the Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP. 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Fees payable withregardto external audit services carriedout by the appointedauditorforthe year Rebate from Public SectorAudit Appointments Ltd. Fees payable forthe certificationofgrant claims andreturns duringthe year 
	Fees payable withregardto external audit services carriedout by the appointedauditorforthe year Rebate from Public SectorAudit Appointments Ltd. Fees payable forthe certificationofgrant claims andreturns duringthe year 
	38 0 20 
	46 (5) 22 

	Total 
	Total 
	58 
	63 


	15 – CAPITAL GRANTS RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 
	The Council has received anumber of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or property to be returned to the giver. The balances at the year-end are as follows: 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Balance at start of year: Grants Received Fundingusedforcapitalexpenditure 
	Balance at start of year: Grants Received Fundingusedforcapitalexpenditure 
	4,080 2,010 (1,367) 
	4,723 5,439 (4,507) 

	Balance at end of year: 
	Balance at end of year: 
	4,723 
	5,656 


	The majority of the balance (£3.758m) relates to Section 106 monies held by the Council for future use. There is also afurther £1.46m held for disabled facilities grants which is an ongoing area of work for the Council. 
	16 -RELATED PARTIES 
	The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council. 
	Central Government 
	Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Council-it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from government departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 1–the Expenditure &Funding Analysis. 
	Members and Senior Officers 
	Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The total of Members’ Allowances paid in 2019/20 is shown in Note 12. 
	All Members and Senior Officers were required to complete adeclaration of interests that included details of any finance-related transactions with the Council. There were no declarations of significance. 
	The Director of Regeneration and Place and Head of Housing and Community Services are both Directors of Maidstone Property Holdings Ltd, which is awholly owned subsidiary of the Council. The Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, reflects £169,094 (2018/19, £75,313) which is payable from Maidstone Property Holdings to Maidstone Borough Council, relating to income and expenditure for the 2019/20 financial year. 
	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	17 -PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT Movements on Balances 
	Movements in 2019/20 Cost or Valuations At 1st April2019 Additions Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices Derecognitionofassets Othermovements incost orvaluation At 31st March2020 Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At 1st April2019 Depreciationcharge Depreciationwrittenout to the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofS
	Movements in 2019/20 Cost or Valuations At 1st April2019 Additions Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices Derecognitionofassets Othermovements incost orvaluation At 31st March2020 Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At 1st April2019 Depreciationcharge Depreciationwrittenout to the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofS
	Movements in 2019/20 Cost or Valuations At 1st April2019 Additions Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices Derecognitionofassets Othermovements incost orvaluation At 31st March2020 Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At 1st April2019 Depreciationcharge Depreciationwrittenout to the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofS
	£000 4,352 517 0 0 0 204 5,073 Infrastructure(3,375) Assets(263) 0 0 0 (3,638) 
	£000 67,137 23,681 3,241 (261) (351) 1,172 94,619 (4,007) (2,208) 2,343 Land &Buildings0 0 (3,872) 
	£000 13,898 1,128 0 0 (857) 2,787 16,956 (6,889) (985) 0 0 697 (7,177) Plant,Machinery &Equipment
	£000 1,544 869 0 0 (662) 0 1,751 (1,106) (296) 0 0 609 (793) Vehicles
	£000 4,825 92 0 0 (458) 0 4,459 (3,269) (407) 0 0 378 (3,298) IT & OfficeEquipment
	£000 3,436 265 0 0 0 0 3,701 0 0 0 0 0 0 CommunityAssets
	£000 8,545 11,198 0 0 (16) (3,308) 16,419 0 0 0 0 0 0 Assets UnderConstruction
	£000 103,739 37,750 3,241 (261) (2,344) 855 142,980 (18,646) (4,159) 2,343 0 1,684 (18,778) TotalProperty,Plant &Equipment 

	At 31st March 2020 
	At 31st March 2020 
	1,435 
	90,747 
	9,779 
	958 
	1,161 
	3,701 
	16,419 
	124,200 

	At 31st March2019 
	At 31st March2019 
	979 
	63,125 
	7,010 
	439 
	1,556 
	3,433 
	8,545 
	85,088 
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	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	Movements in 2018/19 (Restated) Cost or Valuations At 1st April2018 Additions Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices RerecognitionofAssets Othermovements incost orvaluation At 31st March2019 Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At 1st April2018 Depreciationcharge Depreciationwrittenout to the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe P
	Movements in 2018/19 (Restated) Cost or Valuations At 1st April2018 Additions Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices RerecognitionofAssets Othermovements incost orvaluation At 31st March2019 Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At 1st April2018 Depreciationcharge Depreciationwrittenout to the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe P
	Movements in 2018/19 (Restated) Cost or Valuations At 1st April2018 Additions Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices RerecognitionofAssets Othermovements incost orvaluation At 31st March2019 Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At 1st April2018 Depreciationcharge Depreciationwrittenout to the RevaluationReserve Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit onthe P
	£000 4,321 33 0 0 0 0 4,354 (3,147) (228) InfrastructureAssets0 0 0 (3,375) 
	£000 55,303 5,289 7,828 1,467 (40) (2,714) 67,133 (3,298) (3,423) 2,381 333 Land &0 Buildings(4,007) 
	£000 14,465 300 0 0 (902) 36 13,899 (6,907) (868) 0 0 886 (6,889) Plant,Machinery &Equipment
	£000 1,724 216 0 0 (359) (36) 1,545 (1,174) (209) 0 0 277 (1,106) Vehicles
	£000 4,802 69 0 0 (46) 0 4,825 (2,899) (410) 0 0 40 (3,269) IT & OfficeEquipment
	£000 3,241 222 0 0 (30) 0 3,433 0 0 0 0 0 0 CommunityAssets
	£000 4,454 4,091 0 0 0 0 8,545 0 0 0 0 0 0 Assets UnderConstruction
	£000 88,310 10,220 7,828 1,467 (1,377) (2,714) 103,734 (17,425) (5,138) 2,381 333 1,203 (18,646) TotalProperty,Plant &Equipment 

	At 31st March 2019 
	At 31st March 2019 
	979 
	63,125 
	7,010 
	439 
	1,556 
	3,433 
	8,545 
	85,088 

	At 31st March2018 
	At 31st March2018 
	1,174 
	52,004 
	7,558 
	550 
	1,903 
	3,241 
	4,454 
	70,885 
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	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	The balance at 31March 2019 has been restated to reflect the addition of the Lockmeadow Car Park as aseparate asset on the Balance Sheet, as part of Land &Buildings. The value of the adjustment is £2.050m. 
	st 

	Additions for 2019/20 include the acquisition of anumber of properties, the most significant of which are as follows: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The Lockmeadow Entertainment Complex in Maidstone. 

	• 
	• 
	Afurther 11 houses in Maidstone to provide temporary accommodation for homeless families. 


	As Land &Buildings form the most significant element of Property, Plant &Equipment amore detailed analysis of the assets is shown in the table below, sub-totalled by asset class. 
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	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	Car Parks
	Cemetery &Crematorium
	Depots, Workshops & Toolsheds
	EntertainmentComplex
	Halls & Pavilions
	Housing
	Land
	Leisure Centres & Pools
	Markets
	Museums & Galleries 
	Parks & Open Spaces 
	Public Conveniences
	Residential /Commercial
	Theatres
	Town Hall
	Total Land & Buildings 
	Analysis of Land & Buildings Movements 2019/20 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 Cost or Valuations At 1st April2019 15,789 2,182 1,855 0 3,435 9,174 197 8,561 1,059 12,303 748 1,680 4,808 4,285 1,057 67,133 Additions 101 8 20,288 34 3,051 36 93 17 26 26 23,681 Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognisedinthe RevaluationReserve 775 (81) 1,077 385 88 (541) 661 70 99 709 0 3,241 Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognisedinthe Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServ
	Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At 1st April2019 12 (269) (75) (427) (1,271) (39) (68) (63) (679) (18) (304) (878) 118 (49) (4,010) Depreciationcharge (20) (13) (150) (361) (966) (50) (13) (79) (75) (101) (345) (30) (6) (2,208) Depreciationwrittenout to the Revaluation Reserve 266 106 730 66 61 680 503 (117) 48 2,343 
	Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognisedinthe Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices 0 Othermovements incost orvaluation 0 At 31st March2020 12 (23) 17 (150) (788) (1,506) (39) (51) (15) (78) (93) (405) (720) (29) (7) (3,875) 
	Net Book Value 
	At31stMarch2020 16,286 2,143 1,978 22,350 2,681 10,726 246 8,005 1,705 12,387 655 1,275 4,240 4,931 1,143 90,751 
	At 31st March2019 15,801 1,913 1,779 0 3,009 7,903 158 8,492 996 11,623 730 1,376 3,930 4,403 1,008 63,126 
	Page 36 
	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	Car Parks
	Cemetery &Crematorium
	Depots, Workshops & Toolsheds
	EntertainmentComplex
	Halls & Pavilions
	Housing
	Land
	Leisure Centres & Pools
	Markets
	Museums & Galleries 
	Parks & Open Spaces 
	Public Conveniences
	Residential /Commercial
	Theatres
	Town Hall
	Total Land & Buildings 
	Analysis of Land & Buildings Movements 2018/19 
	£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 Cost or Valuations At 1st April2018 9,451 1,639 1,833 0 3,424 5,173 197 8,100 1,050 12,295 643 1,680 4,808 3,960 1,050 55,303 Additions 13 557 22 11 4,435 0 0 9 22 0 0 0212 7 5,288 Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognisedinthe RevaluationReserve 4,769 0 0 0 0 0 2,307 0 0 319 0 0 434 0 7,829 Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognisedinthe Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices 1,556 0 0 0 (89) 0 00 000 0 00 1,467 Derecogni
	At 31st March2019 15,789 2,182 1,855 0 3,435 9,174 197 8,561 1,059 12,303 748 1,680 4,808 4,285 1,057 67,133 
	AccumulatedDepreciation&Impairment At 1st April2018 12 (202) 15 0 (65) (652) (39) (1,515) (10) (97) (118) (203) (389) (28) (8) (3,298) Depreciationcharge 0 (67) (91) (361) (952) 0 (398) (53) (583) (113) (101) (489) (176) (41) (3,423) 
	Depreciationwrittenout to the Revaluation Reserve 000 0 001,845 0 0214 0 0322 0 2,381 Revaluationincreases/(decreases) recognisedinthe Surplus/Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices 0 0 0 0 0333 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 334 Other movements in cost or valuation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
	At 31st March2019 12 (269) (75) 0 (427) (1,271) (39) (68) (63) (679) (18) (304) (878) 118 (49) (4,007) 
	Net Book Value 
	At31stMarch2019 15,801 1,913 1,779 0 3,009 7,903 158 8,492 996 11,623 730 1,376 3,930 4,403 1,008 63,126 
	At 31st March2018 9,463 1,437 1,848 0 3,359 4,522 158 6,585 1,040 12,198 525 1,477 4,419 3,932 1,042 52,004 
	Page 37 
	Community Assets have all previously been revalued at £1 each, in accordance with the accounting policy set out below. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires Community Assets to be recorded on the Balance Sheet at Historic Cost. Due to the age and nature of many of the Community Assets it is not possible to ascertain an accurate historical cost, but expenditure incurred is now added to the value of the asset. Any expenditure on Community Assets was previously written off as Revenue Expe
	The Code of Practice also requires that material classes of assets within Property, Plant &Equipment are now valued together and disclosed separately within the Statement, and this analysis is shown in the table on the previous page. 
	Capital Commitments 
	As at 31March 2020 the Council had the following capital commitments: 
	st 

	Project 
	Project 
	Project 
	£000 

	UnionStreet housingdevelopment * Brunswick Street housingdevelopment * SpringfieldMillhousingdevelopment Kent MedicalCampus -InnovationCentre * Lockmeadow refurbishments 
	UnionStreet housingdevelopment * Brunswick Street housingdevelopment * SpringfieldMillhousingdevelopment Kent MedicalCampus -InnovationCentre * Lockmeadow refurbishments 
	1,913 2,917 1,011 5,401 3,500 


	The figures for schemes marked with an asterisk are net of committed external funding that the Council will receive. 
	Revaluations 
	The Council carries out arolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant &Equipment required to be measured at current value is revalued at least every 5years. All valuations were carried out externally by Harrisons Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of RICS. The latest revaluations were carried out as at 30November 2019 in accordance with the requirements of the Co
	th 

	The table also shows the historic cost values of the various asset classes, which were established at 1April 2007 when the current capital accounting requirements came into force. 
	st 
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	£000 Carried at historicalcost 5,073 Valued at current value as at: 31st March2016 31st March2017 Infrastructure31st March2018 Assets31st March2019 31st March2020 
	£000 Carried at historicalcost 5,073 Valued at current value as at: 31st March2016 31st March2017 Infrastructure31st March2018 Assets31st March2019 31st March2020 
	£000 Carried at historicalcost 5,073 Valued at current value as at: 31st March2016 31st March2017 Infrastructure31st March2018 Assets31st March2019 31st March2020 
	£000 £000 £000 3,701 419 16,956 0 1,674 9,208 17,338 65,986 CommunityAssetsLand &BuildingsPlant,Machinery &Equipment
	£000 1,751 Vehicles
	£000 £000 4,460 16,417 IT & OfficeEquipmentAssets UnderConstruction
	£000 48,777 0 1,674 9,208 17,338 65,986 Total 

	TotalCost orValuation 5,073 
	TotalCost orValuation 5,073 
	3,701 94,625 16,956 
	1,751 
	4,460 16,417 
	142,983 


	Accounting Policy Property, Plant & Equipment 
	Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for administrative purposes on acontinuing basis. 
	Recognition 
	Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant & Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis in the accounts, provided that the asset value is over £10,000 and yields benefits to the Council and the services it provides, for aperiod of more than one year. This excludes expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of non-current assets which is charged directly to service revenue accounts. 
	Measurement 
	Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The purchase price 

	• 
	• 
	Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in manner intended by management. 


	Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Infrastructure, Community Assets and Assets Under Construction Depreciated Historical Cost 
	-


	• 
	• 
	All other assets –current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value –EUV). 


	Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value. 
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	Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as aproxy for fair value. 
	Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as aminimum every 5years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. (Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of aloss previously charged to aservice.) 
	Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Where there is abalance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains) 

	• 
	• 
	Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement. 


	The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
	st 

	Impairment 
	Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
	Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Where there is abalance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains) 

	• 
	• 
	Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement. 


	Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss has not been recognised. ` 
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	Depreciation 
	Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant &Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without adeterminable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
	Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Buildings –straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by asuitably qualified officer. The useful lives range from 4to 50 years. 

	• 
	• 
	Vehicles, Plant, Furniture &Equipment –straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset as estimated by asuitably qualified officer. 

	• 
	• 
	Infrastructure -straight-line allocation over 20 years. 


	Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and depreciation that would have been charged based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
	18 -INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
	The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement: 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Rentalincome from investment property Direct operatingexpenses arisingfrom investment property 
	Rentalincome from investment property Direct operatingexpenses arisingfrom investment property 
	(1,551) 263 
	(2,315) 940 

	Net gain/(loss) 
	Net gain/(loss) 
	(1,287) 
	(1,375) 
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	The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year: 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Balance at start ofthe year Additions Transfers Net gains/losses from fairvalue adjustments 
	Balance at start ofthe year Additions Transfers Net gains/losses from fairvalue adjustments 
	19,976 2,439 0 599 
	23,014 14 (854) 1,096 

	Balance at end of year 
	Balance at end of year 
	23,014 
	23,270 


	In estimating the fair value of the authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. 
	The fair value for the council’s investment property portfolio has been based on the market approach using current market conditions and recent sales or lettings evidence and other relevant information for similar assets in Maidstone Borough, or other suitably comparable locations. Where appropriate, adjustments have been made to the comparable evidence to relate these directly to the subject properties. Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively sold or let and the level of observable 
	There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties. 
	Accounting Policy Investment Properties 
	Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. 
	Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the highest and best use value of the asset from the market participant’s perspective. Investment properties are not depreciated and an annual valuation programme ensures that they are held at highest and best use value at the Balance Sheet date. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same trea
	Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in again for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 
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	Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
	Accounting Policy Fair Value Measurement 
	The Council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
	a) 
	a) 
	a) 
	in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

	b) 
	b) 
	in the absence of aprincipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 


	The Council uses external valuers to provide avaluation of its assets and liabilities in line with the highest and best use definition within the accounting standard. The highest and best use of the asset or liability being valued is considered from the perspective of amarket participant. 
	Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the Council’s fair value measurement of its assets and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 
	Level 1–quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the authority can access at the measurement date. 
	Level 2–inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 
	Level 3–unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
	19 – HERITAGE ASSETS: RECONCILIATION OF THE CARRYING VALUE HELD BY THE COUNCIL 
	Table
	TR
	Museum 
	War 
	Statues & 
	Other 
	Total 

	TR
	Exhibits 
	Memorials 
	Sculptures 
	Items 
	Assets 

	Cost or Valuation 
	Cost or Valuation 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 

	1st April2019 
	1st April2019 
	9,090 
	480 
	515 
	308 
	10,393 

	Additions 
	Additions 
	0 

	Disposals 
	Disposals 
	0 

	31st March 2020 
	31st March 2020 
	9,090 
	480 
	515 
	308 
	10,393 

	1st April2018 
	1st April2018 
	9,090 
	480 
	515 
	308 
	10,393 

	Additions 
	Additions 
	0 

	Disposals 
	Disposals 
	0 

	31st March 2019 
	31st March 2019 
	9,090 
	480 
	515 
	308 
	10,393 
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	Museum Exhibits 
	The exhibits are held in two main locations, the Maidstone Museum &Bentlif Art Gallery, and the Carriage Museum. Further information on the museums and their collections can be seen on their dedicated website: 
	http://www.museum.maidstone.gov.uk/ 
	http://www.museum.maidstone.gov.uk/ 
	http://www.museum.maidstone.gov.uk/ 


	The total of £9.090m represents those items that have formally been valued as at 1April 2011 for insurance purposes by anumber of reputable auction houses. The value of the total collection is likely to be far higher, and is valued for insurance purposes at £17.0m (which includes items on loan to the Council, and those held in Trust at the Museum), but it is considered that it would not be cost-effective or of any significant benefit to formally value the entire collection. The value is reviewed on an annua
	st 

	War Memorials 
	The Council is responsible for two war memorials, one in the Broadway and the other in Brenchley Gardens. Alocal stone mason has provided areplacement value for the two memorials. Upkeep and maintenance of the memorials is the responsibility of the Council’s Property Services section. 
	Statues and Sculptures 
	There are anumber of statues and sculptures throughout the borough that the Council are responsible for. These are in anumber of locations, and have been valued at their purchase cost, where this is known, although none of them individually have asignificant value. 
	Other Items 
	This relates to two items, the civic regalia used by the Mayor, and the ‘Elemental’ art installation on the bridge across the River Medway. The civic regalia have been valued by alocal jeweller for insurance purposes, and the art installation has been valued at purchase cost. 
	Listed Buildings and Other Heritage Assets 
	The Old College complex, comprising the Gateway, the Master’s Tower and the Quarterdeck has been classified as aheritage asset. However due to the age and nature of the buildings it is not possible to ascertain an accurate valuation. 
	In addition the Council owns anumber of other assets. These have not been valued as it would not be cost-effective in terms of time and financial resources to do so. These include the balance of the museum exhibits referenced earlier in this note. 
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	Accounting Policy Heritage Assets 
	Tangible Heritage Assets (described in this summary of significant accounting policies as heritage assets) 
	The Council’s Heritage Assets are held principally for their contribution to knowledge and/or culture. Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and losses and impairments) in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to Heritage Assets, and the valuation methods applied are as follows: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Replacement Cost 

	• 
	• 
	Purchase Cost 

	• 
	• 
	Insurance Valuation 


	Where it is considered impractical (in terms of cost and/or benefit) to obtain a valuation there is no requirement to do so, but any assets that are treated in this way must be disclosed in the Heritage Assets note. 
	20 -FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
	Categories of Financial Instruments 
	The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet: 
	Long-term 
	Long-term 
	Long-term 
	Short-Term 

	31st March 
	31st March 
	31st March 
	31st March 
	31st March 

	2019 
	2019 
	2020 
	2019 
	2020 

	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 

	Treasury Investments 
	Treasury Investments 

	Financialassets at amortisedcost 
	Financialassets at amortisedcost 
	2,000 
	0 
	13,014 
	11,025 

	Debtors 
	Debtors 

	Financialassets at amortisedcost 
	Financialassets at amortisedcost 
	83 
	(0) 
	11,897 
	10,630 

	Loans 
	Loans 

	Financialliabilities at amortisedcost 
	Financialliabilities at amortisedcost 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	11,000 

	Creditors 
	Creditors 

	Financialliabilities at amortisedcost 
	Financialliabilities at amortisedcost 
	0 
	0 
	10,407 
	13,926 

	Other Long Term Liabilities 
	Other Long Term Liabilities 

	Finance LeaseLiabilities at 
	Finance LeaseLiabilities at 

	amortisedcost 
	amortisedcost 
	2,527 
	2,020 
	520 
	517 


	On the face of the Balance Sheet Financial Assets at Amortised Cost where the business model for the Council is to collect contractual cash flows. £2m of Treasury Investments are in local authorities with £9.025m invested in AAA rated Money Market Funds. The Council has no long-term treasury funds invested at the year end. Debtors includes two service loans to third parties, Kent Savers £25k and One Maidstone £36k (Business Improvement District 
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	Levy). The Council has long-term creditors, and the fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount. 
	The Council has taken out short term loans with other local authorities of £11m. £7m was required to fund the purchase of the Lockmeadow Leisure Complex which enables the Council to gain control of the area for possible future regeneration, the remaining £4m was for funding other areas of the Council’s capital programme. 
	Other Long-Term Liabilities relates to the services concession arrangement between the Council and Serco, the managing contractor of Maidstone Leisure Centre. Details of this arrangement are discussed within 27 –Private Finance Initiatives &Similar Contracts. 
	The current financial liabilities are all due to be settled within one year. 
	Income & Expense 
	Long-term 
	Long-term 
	Long-term 
	Short-Term 

	31st March 
	31st March 
	31st March 31st March 
	31st March 

	2019 
	2019 
	2020 
	2019 
	2020 

	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 

	Income: 
	Income: 

	Financialassets at amortisedcost 19 
	Financialassets at amortisedcost 19 
	0 
	201 
	208 

	OtherInterest 
	OtherInterest 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	9 

	Total 19 0 201 217 Expenditure: 
	Total 19 0 201 217 Expenditure: 


	Financialliabilities at amortisedcost 0 0 0 24 
	Total 0 0 024 
	Adoption of IFRS 9 
	The adoption of IFRS 9Financial Instruments by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting came into effect for financial year 2018/19. The effects of reclassification of financial assets following the adaptation of IFRS 9Financial Instruments by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting are shown in the table below: IFRS 9requires an authority to review its financial assets for impairment due to the risk of non settlement. As stated in the previous section, the Council has two service loans
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	Accounting Policy Financial Instruments 
	Financial Liabilities: 
	Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes aparty to the contractual provisions of afinancial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Interest is charged to the Financing and Investment Income &Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement. 
	Financial Assets: 
	The Council regularly holds the following financial instruments at amortised cost: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Deposits with financial institutions and local authorities 

	• 
	• 
	Money Market Funds; and 

	• 
	• 
	Service Loans. 


	The Council also maintains acontinuously ‘rolling’ portfolio of Debtors (also held at amortised cost). 
	Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest fo
	The Council considers the potential for credit losses on financial assets held at amortised cost either on a12-month or lifetime basis (Simplified model Debtors only). An exception is: 
	-

	• Deposits with local authorities –credit losses are not recognised for deposits held with central Government or other local authorities due to statutory provisions (the Local Government Act 2003), which prevent default. 
	Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place because the borrower could default (triggering a credit loss) on their obligations. 
	With regard to Debtors, an Impairment Allowance for Bad Debts (IABD) is applied annually based on aset of assumptions on the collectability of external debts based on past experience and future expectations. 
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	Fair Value 
	Inputs to the measurement techniques in respect of the Council’s fair value measurement of its assets and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Level 1–fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

	• 
	• 
	Level 2–fair value is calculated from inputs other than those quoted prices, that are observable for the asset or liability 

	• 
	• 
	Level 3–fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness 


	All valuations on Council’s investments uses level 2. 
	The accounts are required to show the fair value of the financial assets held by the Council. Fair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged assuming that the transaction was negotiated between parties knowledgeable about the market in which they are dealing and willing to buy/sell at an appropriate price, with no other motive in their negotiations other than to secure afair price. 
	The fair value of investments is shown in the table below with the level in the fair value hierarchy. 
	31st March 2019 
	31st March 2019 
	31st March 2019 
	Fair Value 
	31st March 2020 

	Book Value 
	Book Value 
	Fair Value 
	Level 
	Book Value 
	Fair Value 

	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 

	FinancialAssets 
	FinancialAssets 

	LongTerm Investments 
	LongTerm Investments 
	2,019 
	2,018 
	2 
	0 
	0 

	Short Term Investments 
	Short Term Investments 

	(less than1 yr) 
	(less than1 yr) 
	13,050 
	13,050 
	2 
	11,056 
	11,056 

	FinancialLiabilities 
	FinancialLiabilities 

	Short Term Loans with 
	Short Term Loans with 

	otherLAs 
	otherLAs 
	0 
	0 
	2 
	11,024 
	11,025 


	21 -NATURE & EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
	The Council could be exposed to risk in relation to exposure to interest rate movements in its investment and debt portfolios. This risk is managed through the Annual Treasury Management Strategy which draws together Council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this Strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure. Exposure is managed by use of Prude
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	these accounts are generally only used for the short term investment of funds for cash flow purposes, and funds can be withdrawn on adaily basis. 
	The Council also provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash. These are set out in the Council’s Treasury Management Practices, which are arequirement of CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code of Practice, which has been adopted by the Council. Treasury Management indicators have also been set to control key financial instruments risks in accordance with CIPFA’s Prudential Co
	Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 
	Asummary of the main points of the strategy is as follows: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	to utilise cash balances rather than loan debt to finance the capital programme in the short term, due to low investment returns and high counterparty risk in the current economic climate; 

	• 
	• 
	to further diversify its portfolio, as far as is operationally feasible, ensuring that acombination of secured and unsecured investments are considered. Greater use of Local Authority investments will be sought due to the high security of the borrower which enables investment over alonger period where funds are not required immediately. 


	Credit Risk 
	Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council’s customers. The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are only placed with organisations of high credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. These include commercial entities with a minimum long-term credit rating of A-, the UK government, other local authorities, and organisations without credit ratings upon which the Council has received independent inve
	There are no credit limits set on the Council’s customers, as the amounts involved are not considered sufficiently material to warrant the setting of such limits. 
	As at 31March 2020 investments were held with the following institutions: 
	st 
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	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 £000 
	31st March 2020 £000 

	AAAratedInstitutions AA+ratedInstitutions AAratedInstitutions AA-ratedInstitutions A+ratedInstitutions AratedInstitutions A-ratedInstitutions BBB+ratedInstitutions UnratedLocalAuthorities UKGovernment 
	AAAratedInstitutions AA+ratedInstitutions AAratedInstitutions AA-ratedInstitutions A+ratedInstitutions AratedInstitutions A-ratedInstitutions BBB+ratedInstitutions UnratedLocalAuthorities UKGovernment 
	0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 15,000 0 
	5,025 0 0 3,000 1,000 0 0 0 2,000 0 

	Total 
	Total 
	15,014 
	11,025 


	Liquidity Risk 
	Liquidity risk arises from the Council having insufficient resources to meet its ongoing commitments. The Council has acomprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Council has ready access to borrowings from the money market, other local authorities and the Public Works Loan Board. There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. Aborrowing provisio
	-

	Refinancing and Maturity Risk 
	The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above are considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer-term risk to the Council relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. This risk relates to both the maturing of longer-term financial liabilities and longer term financial assets. 
	The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed on investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address this risk. The Council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the central treasury team address the operational risks within the approved parameters. This includes: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either new borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and 

	• 
	• 
	monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the Council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of 
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	longer term investments to provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs. 
	Market Risk – Interest Rate Risk 
	As the Council did not find itself needing to borrow funds during 2018/19, except in the short term for cash flow reasons, its only risk is in relation to exposure to interest rate movements in its investments. This exposure is managed by use of Prudential Indicators, which set limits on the proportion of investments held at fixed and variable rates. These indicators are monitored on adaily basis. The main exposure to risk in this area is the use of investment Call Accounts and Money Market Funds which are 
	The risk exposure is summarised in the table below. 
	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 £000 
	31st March 2020 £000 

	Notice accounts/Money market funds Fixedterm deposits withotherlocalauthorities 
	Notice accounts/Money market funds Fixedterm deposits withotherlocalauthorities 
	14 15,000 
	9,025 2,000 

	Total 
	Total 
	15,014 
	11,025 


	The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury Management Strategy draws together the Council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this Strategy a treasury indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk. An upper limit is set on the one-year revenue impact of a1% rise or fall in interest rates. 
	The Council also makes use of interest rate forecasts and market data and advice provided by its Treasury Management advisors to ensure that investment income is maximised wherever possible. 
	Foreign Exchange Risk 
	The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 
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	Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
	22 – DEBTORS Short Term Debtors 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Centralgovernment bodies Otherlocalauthorities Otherentities andindividuals 
	Centralgovernment bodies Otherlocalauthorities Otherentities andindividuals 
	5,385 3,303 15,228 
	1,299 6,903 13,887 

	Total 
	Total 
	23,915 
	22,090 


	Allowance for Bad Debts 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Excess Charges Impairment Allowance Sundry BadDebts Impairment Allowance 
	Excess Charges Impairment Allowance Sundry BadDebts Impairment Allowance 
	630 3,628 
	817 4,134 

	Total 
	Total 
	4,258 
	4,952 


	The figure on the balance sheet represents Debtors less Provision for Bad Debts, which totals £17.138m. 
	Other entities and individuals within Short Term Debtors are broken down as follows: 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	CouncilTax payers Business Rate payers Capitaldebtors Generaldebtors Payments inAdvance Othermiscellaneous amounts 
	CouncilTax payers Business Rate payers Capitaldebtors Generaldebtors Payments inAdvance Othermiscellaneous amounts 
	1,050 1,603 23 10,933 678 941 
	1,204 1,470 560 8,937 575 1,141 

	Total 
	Total 
	15,229 
	13,887 
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	23 -CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 
	The balance of Cash &Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Cashheldby the Council Bank current accounts Short-term deposits 
	Cashheldby the Council Bank current accounts Short-term deposits 
	12 157 11,014 
	3 (341) 11,025 

	Total 
	Total 
	11,183 
	10,687 


	Accounting Policy Cash & Cash Equivalents 
	Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. Currently, due to the requirement of funding for its liabilities, all Council investments are classified as cash and cash equivalents. 
	In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 
	24 – CREDITORS 
	Short Term 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 2019/20 £000 £000 

	Centralgovernment bodies Otherlocalauthorities Otherentities andindividuals 
	Centralgovernment bodies Otherlocalauthorities Otherentities andindividuals 
	657 4,960 8,812 4,820 12,878 19,598 

	Total 
	Total 
	22,347 29,377 


	The movement in the balances for Central Government and other local authorities is areflection of movements in the debtor and creditor balances relating to the collection fund. 
	The movement in other entities and individuals reflects an increase in Section 106 monies received from developers that will be passed onto other organisations, primarily Kent County Council and the NHS. 
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	Other entities and individuals are broken down as follows: 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 2019/20 £000 £000 

	Generalcreditors Capitalcreditors Counciltax payers Business Rate payers Receipts inadvance Deposits Retentions 
	Generalcreditors Capitalcreditors Counciltax payers Business Rate payers Receipts inadvance Deposits Retentions 
	2,886 2,423 1,583 1,379 180 193 408 220 1,716 5,259 5,937 9,839 168 285 

	Total 
	Total 
	12,878 19,598 


	25 -PROVISIONS Provision for Appeals 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Business Rates Appeals -Current Business Rates Appeals -Backdated PlanningAppeals 
	Business Rates Appeals -Current Business Rates Appeals -Backdated PlanningAppeals 
	1,179 707 380 
	774 1,355 261 

	Total 
	Total 
	2,266 
	2,391 


	The Council is required to account for the effect of Business Rates appeals which were previously borne by the national pool. The balance represents the Council’s 40% share of the estimated current and backdated appeals. 
	Aprovision has also been established to allow for costs that could arise from potential planning appeals. 
	The provision is split between long-term and short-term liabilities on the Balance Sheet. 
	Accounting Policy Provisions 
	Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by atransfer of economic benefits or service potential, and areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
	Provisions are measured at best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
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	When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each year –where it becomes less probable that atransfer of economic benefits will now be required (or alower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant area. 
	Where some or all of the payment required to settle aprovision is expected to be recovered from another party, this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation. 
	26 -TRUST FUNDS 
	The Council is required to set out details of the nature and amount of trust funds where it acts as sole trustee, the only one of which is the Cobtree Manor Estate. The object of this trust is to hold Cobtree Manor and Cobtree Manor Estate for the benefit of the inhabitants of Maidstone and other members of the general public. 
	The assets and liabilities of the Trust as at 31March 2020 are summarised in the following table. The figures for 2018/19 are the audited figures, which differ from those in the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts, as the audit took place after that was published. 
	st 

	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Fixed Assets: Tangible Assets Investment Property Investments Current Assets Current Liabilities Creditors: Amounts fallingdue after more thanone year 
	Fixed Assets: Tangible Assets Investment Property Investments Current Assets Current Liabilities Creditors: Amounts fallingdue after more thanone year 
	2,830 1,630 863 5,322 149 74 232 
	2,824 1,010 670 4,505 247 73 232 

	Totalassets less current liabilities 
	Totalassets less current liabilities 
	5,165 
	4,448 

	TotalCharitable Funds 
	TotalCharitable Funds 
	5,165 
	4,448 


	Gross expenditure in 2019/20 totalled £365,876 (£691,614 in 2018/19). Gross income in 2019/20 totalled £463,350 (£752,564 in 2018/19). 
	The accounts of the Trust are subject to aseparate external audit. 
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	27 -PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVES & SIMILAR CONTRACTS 
	The Council has no Private Finance Initiative Schemes, but the following scheme is asimilar contract as it is defined as aservice concession arrangement. 
	The Council entered into an agreement during 2009/10 with Serco, the managing contractor of Maidstone Leisure Centre, to undertake amajor refurbishment of the centre. Under the terms of the agreement Serco have initially funded the cost of the works through aloan, and the Council are then repaying this loan over a15 year term, by equal monthly instalments. The principal element of this loan is reflected on the Balance Sheet and will be written down annually by the amount of principal repaid. Interest paid o
	The annual principal repayments are credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement, and then reversed out of the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Adjustment Account to reflect the fact that this is a repayment of debt, as this arrangement is classed as borrowing under the terms of the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital. 
	Payments 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Balance outstandingat start ofyear Repayment ofprincipal 
	Balance outstandingat start ofyear Repayment ofprincipal 
	3,578 (521) 
	3,057 (520) 

	Balance outstanding at end of year 
	Balance outstanding at end of year 
	3,057 
	2,537 


	These figures are shown on the face of the Balance Sheet as Deferred Liabilities, and are split between the Short Term and Long Term elements. 
	Accounting Policy Deferred Liability 
	Deferred Liabilities are recognised under the terms of IFRIC 12 (IFRS Interpretations Committee) and the arrangement is recognised as aservice concession and accounted for accordingly. This generally involves the grantor (the Council) conveying to the operator (Serco) for the period of the concession the right to provide services that give the public access to major economic and social facilities, in this instance Maidstone Leisure Centre. 
	Accounting Policy Minimum Revenue Provision 
	The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is astatutory charge relating to the repayment of debt. It represents the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure. There is ageneral duty upon the Council to make an amount of MRP which it considers ‘prudent’. 
	The Council has no borrowing but has identified that it has contractual arrangements that are classified as finance leases under the requirements of IFRIC 4. The repayments under these leases therefore need to be treated as a 
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	borrowing arrangement. The MRP amount that is set aside is equivalent to the value of the annual principal repayments on the contracts. 
	28 – CAPITAL RECEIPTS RESERVE 
	This reserve contains the proceeds from the sale of non-current assets, which are used to fund capital expenditure, and forms part of the Usable Reserves section of the Movement in Reserves Statement. This section also includes Capital Grants Unapplied, Earmarked Reserves and the General Fund Balance. 
	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 £000 
	31st March 2020 £000 

	Balance at 1st April CapitalReceipts Received CapitalReceipts Applied 
	Balance at 1st April CapitalReceipts Received CapitalReceipts Applied 
	523 815 (741) 
	597 1,963 (2,012) 

	Balance at 31st March 
	Balance at 31st March 
	597 
	549 


	29 -UNUSABLE RESERVES 
	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 (Restated) £000 
	31st March 2020 £000 

	RevaluationReserve CapitalAdjustment Account DeferredCapitalReceipts Reserve Pensions Reserve CollectionFundAdjustment Account AccumulatedAbsences Account 
	RevaluationReserve CapitalAdjustment Account DeferredCapitalReceipts Reserve Pensions Reserve CollectionFundAdjustment Account AccumulatedAbsences Account 
	38,818 68,058 5 (71,481) (935) (179) 
	44,240 74,197 8 (73,677) (26) (174) 

	Total Unusable Reserves 
	Total Unusable Reserves 
	34,285 
	44,565 


	a) Revaluation Reserve 
	The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant &Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

	• 
	• 
	used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or 

	• 
	• 
	disposed of and the gains are realised. 


	The Reserve contains only the revaluation gains accumulated since 1April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 
	st 
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	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 (Restated) £000 
	31st March 2020 £000 

	Balance at 1st April Upwardrevaluationofassets Difference betweenfairvalue depreciationand historicalcost depreciation 
	Balance at 1st April Upwardrevaluationofassets Difference betweenfairvalue depreciationand historicalcost depreciation 
	31,170 7,832 (184) 
	38,818 5,568 (144) 

	Balance at 31st March 
	Balance at 31st March 
	38,818 
	44,240 


	The balance at 31March 2019 has been restated to reflect the addition of the Lockmeadow Car Park as aseparate asset on the Balance Sheet, as part of Property, Plant &Equipment. The value of the adjustment is £2.050m. 
	st 

	b) Capital Adjustment Account 
	The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation R
	The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties that have yet to be consumed by the Council. 
	The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant & Equipment before 1April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. 
	st 

	Page 58 
	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 £000 
	31st March 2020 £000 

	Balance at 1st April Reversalofitems relatingto capitalexpenditure debitedorcreditedto the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement: Charges fordepreciationofnon-current assets Amortisationofintangible assets RevaluationGains/Losses onProperty,Plant & Equipment Revenue expenditure fundedfrom capitalunder statute Write-offofnon-enhancingcapitalexpenditure Adjustingamounts writtenout ofthe RevaluationReserve Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year Capitalfinancingappl
	Balance at 1st April Reversalofitems relatingto capitalexpenditure debitedorcreditedto the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement: Charges fordepreciationofnon-current assets Amortisationofintangible assets RevaluationGains/Losses onProperty,Plant & Equipment Revenue expenditure fundedfrom capitalunder statute Write-offofnon-enhancingcapitalexpenditure Adjustingamounts writtenout ofthe RevaluationReserve Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year Capitalfinancingappl
	66,726 (5,138) (124) (115) (3,247) (75) (8,699) 1,651 (7,048) 521 741 1,367 5,153 7,728 599 
	68,058 (4,160) (135) (578) (1,799) (58) (6,729) (117) (6,846) 520 2,012 4,411 4,946 11,888 1,096 

	Balance at 31st March 
	Balance at 31st March 
	68,058 
	74,197 
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	c) Pensions Reserve 
	The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement as benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Openingbalance at 1 April Remeasurements ofthe net definedliability Reversalofitems relatingto retirement benefits debitedorcreditedto the Surplus or Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices inthe Comprehensive Income andExpenditure Statement Employer's pensions contributions 
	Openingbalance at 1 April Remeasurements ofthe net definedliability Reversalofitems relatingto retirement benefits debitedorcreditedto the Surplus or Deficit onthe ProvisionofServices inthe Comprehensive Income andExpenditure Statement Employer's pensions contributions 
	77,618 (9,438) 6,865 (3,564) 
	71,481 (2,068) 9,036 (4,772) 

	Closing balance at 31 March 
	Closing balance at 31 March 
	71,481 
	73,677 


	d) Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
	The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax payers and business rates payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 
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	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 £000 
	31st March 2020 £000 

	Balance at 1st April Amount by whichcounciltax andnon-domestic rates income creditedto the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement is different from counciltax and non-domestic rates income calculatedfor the yearinaccordance withstatutory requirements -CouncilTax -Non-domestic Rates 
	Balance at 1st April Amount by whichcounciltax andnon-domestic rates income creditedto the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement is different from counciltax and non-domestic rates income calculatedfor the yearinaccordance withstatutory requirements -CouncilTax -Non-domestic Rates 
	2,037 205 (1,307) 
	935 346 (1,256) 

	Balance at 31st March 
	Balance at 31st March 
	935 
	26 


	30 -CAPITAL EXPENDITURE & CAPITAL FUNDING 
	The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources that have been used to finance it. 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 2019/20 £000 £000 

	Opening CapitalFinance Requirement CapitalInvestment Property,Plant & Equipment Non-enhancingcapitalexpenditure Investment Properties Intangible Assets RevenueExpenditure Fundedfrom Capital UnderStatute Sources of Finance Capitalreceipts Government grants & othercontributions New Homes Bonus OtherRevenue Contributions Increase inCapitalFinancingRequirement 
	Opening CapitalFinance Requirement CapitalInvestment Property,Plant & Equipment Non-enhancingcapitalexpenditure Investment Properties Intangible Assets RevenueExpenditure Fundedfrom Capital UnderStatute Sources of Finance Capitalreceipts Government grants & othercontributions New Homes Bonus OtherRevenue Contributions Increase inCapitalFinancingRequirement 
	3,227 12,114 10,165 37,695 76 56 2,443 10 217 222 3,247 1,799 16,148 39,782 (741) (2,012) (1,367) (4,721) (4,623) (3,881) (530) (755) (7,262) (11,368) 8,887 28,414 

	Closing CapitalFinance Requirement 
	Closing CapitalFinance Requirement 
	12,114 40,527 
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	Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), ameasure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. In this instance the funding will come from internal borrowing using existing cash balances, in accordance with the agreed Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20. 
	Accounting Policy Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 
	Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the creation of non-current assets has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, atransfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged in the Movement in Reserves Statement so there is no impact on the level of coun
	31 -DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES 
	Participation in Pension Schemes 
	As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has acommitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time the employees earn their future entitlement. 
	The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered locally by Kent County Council –this is afunded defined benefit Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) pension scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into afund, calculated at alevel intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets. 
	Due to the adoption of the 2011 amendments to the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 Employee Benefits, there are now classes of components of defined benefit cost to be included in the financial statements, i.e. net interest on the net defined benefit liability and re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability. 
	Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 
	We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement and t
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	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CI&ES) Cost ofServices: Service cost comprising: -Current service cost -Past service costs includingcurtailments FinancingandInvestment Income & Expenditure: -Net interest expense TotalPost Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services OtherPost Employment Benefit Chargedto the CI&ES Remeasurement ofthe net definedbenefit liability comprising: -Returnonplanassets (excludingthe amount includedinnet interest expense) -Actuarialg
	Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CI&ES) Cost ofServices: Service cost comprising: -Current service cost -Past service costs includingcurtailments FinancingandInvestment Income & Expenditure: -Net interest expense TotalPost Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services OtherPost Employment Benefit Chargedto the CI&ES Remeasurement ofthe net definedbenefit liability comprising: -Returnonplanassets (excludingthe amount includedinnet interest expense) -Actuarialg
	4,913 17 1,935 6,865 5,508 (6,661) 10,591 0 0 
	6,233 1,130 1,673 9,036 (11,199) 16,436 2,631 (4,952) (848) 

	TotalPost Employment Benefit Charged to the CI&ES 
	TotalPost Employment Benefit Charged to the CI&ES 
	16,303 
	11,104 

	Movement inReserves Statement: -Reversalofnet charges made to the Surplus orDeficit forthe ProvisionofServices forpost employment benefits inaccordance withthe Code Actualamount chargedagainst the General FundBalance forpensions inthe year: -Employers' contributions payable to the scheme 
	Movement inReserves Statement: -Reversalofnet charges made to the Surplus orDeficit forthe ProvisionofServices forpost employment benefits inaccordance withthe Code Actualamount chargedagainst the General FundBalance forpensions inthe year: -Employers' contributions payable to the scheme 
	6,865 (3,564) 
	9,036 (4,772) 

	TR
	3,301 
	4,264 
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	Curtailments 
	No employees were permitted to take unreduced early retirement that they would not otherwise have been entitled to over the past year. (2018/19, two former employees became entitled as acost of £17,000). 
	Settlements 
	There were no liabilities settled at acost materially different to the accounting reserve as aresult of members transferring to /from another employer over the year (2018/19 £nil). 
	McCloud Case 
	An allowance has been made for the recent Court of Appeal judgement in relation to the McCloud case which related to age discrimination within pension schemes. On 27 June 2019 the Supreme Court denied the Government’s request for an appeal, and on 15 July 2019 the Government released a statement to confirm that it expects to have to amend all public service schemes, including the LGPS. The estimated impact on the total liabilities at 31 March 2020 has been allowed for as apast service cost and has resulted 
	Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 
	The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows: 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Present value offundedobligation Fairvalue ofplanassets Contributions by scheme participants Present value ofunfundedobligation 
	Present value offundedobligation Fairvalue ofplanassets Contributions by scheme participants Present value ofunfundedobligation 
	183,242 (113,698) 69,544 1,937 
	175,391 (103,305) 72,086 1,591 

	Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 
	Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 
	71,481 
	73,677 
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	Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 2019/20 £000 £000 

	Openingfairvalue ofScheme assets Interest onassets Returnonassets less interest Administrationexpenses Contributions by employerincludingunfunded Contributions paidby scheme participants Estimatedbenefits paidplus unfundednet of transfers in Otheractuarialgains/(losses) 
	Openingfairvalue ofScheme assets Interest onassets Returnonassets less interest Administrationexpenses Contributions by employerincludingunfunded Contributions paidby scheme participants Estimatedbenefits paidplus unfundednet of transfers in Otheractuarialgains/(losses) 
	106,524 113,698 2,703 2,716 5,561 (11,133) (53) (66) 3,547 3,642 885 939 (5,469) (5,643) 0 (848) 

	Closing fair value of Scheme assets 
	Closing fair value of Scheme assets 
	113,698 103,305 


	Reconciliation of Present Value of Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation) 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 2019/20 £000 £000 

	Openingbalance at 1 April Current Service cost Interest cost Change infinancialassumptions Changes indemographic assumptions Experience loss/(gain) ondefinedbenefit obligation Past service costs,includingcurtailments Estimatedbenefits paidnet oftransfers in Contributions by Scheme participants Unfundedpensionpayments 
	Openingbalance at 1 April Current Service cost Interest cost Change infinancialassumptions Changes indemographic assumptions Experience loss/(gain) ondefinedbenefit obligation Past service costs,includingcurtailments Estimatedbenefits paidnet oftransfers in Contributions by Scheme participants Unfundedpensionpayments 
	184,142 185,179 4,896 5,103 4,638 4,389 6,661 (16,436) (10,591) (2,631) 0 4,952 17 1,130 (5,314) (5,491) 885 939 (155) (152) 

	Closing balance at 31 March 
	Closing balance at 31 March 
	185,179 176,982 


	The estimated impact of the recent McCloud judgement has been included as a past service cost. The estimated impact of the total liabilities as at 31March 2020 is £1.130m (or 0.7% as apercentage of total liabilities). 
	st 
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	Local Government Pension Scheme Assets 
	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 £000 % 
	31st March 2020 £000 % 

	Equities Gilts OtherBonds Property Cash Absolute returnfund 
	Equities Gilts OtherBonds Property Cash Absolute returnfund 
	77,963 68% 748 1% 10,353 9% 13,656 12% 1,984 2% 8,994 8% 
	63,552 61% 803 1% 13,465 13% 14,056 14% 2,704 3% 8,725 8% 

	Total 
	Total 
	113,698 100% 
	103,305 100% 


	Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
	Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent upon assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. 
	The scheme has been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries. Estimates for the Kent County Council Pension Fund are based on the full valuation of the scheme as at 31March 2019. 
	st 

	The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 2019/20 

	Long-term expected rate of return of assets in the scheme Mortality Assumptions Longevity at 65 forcurrent pensioners -Men -Women Longevity at 65 forfuture pensioners -Men -Women Financial Assumptions RPIincreases CPIincreases Salary increases Pensionincreases Discount Rate 
	Long-term expected rate of return of assets in the scheme Mortality Assumptions Longevity at 65 forcurrent pensioners -Men -Women Longevity at 65 forfuture pensioners -Men -Women Financial Assumptions RPIincreases CPIincreases Salary increases Pensionincreases Discount Rate 
	22.0 21.8 24.0 23.7 23.7 23.2 25.8 25.2 3.40% 2.75% 2.40% 1.95% 3.90% 3.85% 2.40% 2.35% 2.40% 2.55% 


	The long term assumption made by the actuary is that salaries will increase at 1% p.a. above CPI. 
	Sensitivity Analysis 
	The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have 
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	been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases similarly for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur. Changes in some of the assumptions may also be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed
	Sensitivity Analysis 
	Sensitivity Analysis 
	Sensitivity Analysis 
	£000 
	£000 
	£000 

	Adjustment to discount rate -Present Value ofTotalObligation -ProjectedService Cost Adjustment to long-term salary increase -Present Value ofTotalObligation -ProjectedService Cost Adjustment to pensionincreases and deferredrevaluation -Present Value ofTotalObligation -ProjectedService Cost Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions -Present Value ofTotalObligation -ProjectedService Cost 
	Adjustment to discount rate -Present Value ofTotalObligation -ProjectedService Cost Adjustment to long-term salary increase -Present Value ofTotalObligation -ProjectedService Cost Adjustment to pensionincreases and deferredrevaluation -Present Value ofTotalObligation -ProjectedService Cost Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions -Present Value ofTotalObligation -ProjectedService Cost 
	+0.1% 173,540 4,686 +0.1% 177,356 4,820 +0.1% 180,133 4,952 +1 Year 184,567 4,965 
	0.0% 176,892 4,818 0.0% 176,982 4,818 0.0% 176,982 4,818 None 176,982 4,818 
	-0.1% 180,496 4,954 -0.1% 176,612 4,816 -0.1% 173,893 4,687 -1 Year 169,736 4,675 


	Scheme History 
	Table
	TR
	2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 £000 £000 £000 
	2018/19 2019/20 £000 £000 

	Present value ofdefined benefit obligationinthe Local Government PensionScheme Fairvalue ofassets inthe LocalGovernment Pension Scheme Present value ofunfunded obligation 
	Present value ofdefined benefit obligationinthe Local Government PensionScheme Fairvalue ofassets inthe LocalGovernment Pension Scheme Present value ofunfunded obligation 
	(149,896) (183,756) (182,032) 87,447 104,482 106,524 (2,192) (2,260) (2,110) 
	(183,242) (175,391) 113,698 103,305 (1,937) (1,591) 

	Surplus/(Deficit) in the scheme 
	Surplus/(Deficit) in the scheme 
	(64,641) (81,534) (77,618) 
	(71,481) (73,677) 


	The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay post-employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £73.677m has asubstantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy. The deficit on 
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	the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary. The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Council in the year to 31st March 2021 are £3.555m 
	Accounting Policy Employee Benefits 
	Benefits Payable During Employment 
	Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include benefits such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any type of leave e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end w
	Post-Employment Benefits 
	Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Kent County Council (KCC). The Scheme is accounted for as adefined benefits scheme: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The liabilities of the KCC pension scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method –i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and projected earnings for current employees. 

	• 
	• 
	Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using adiscount rate specified by the actuaries (based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds.) 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	The assets of the KCC pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

	o 
	o 
	o 
	Quoted securities –current bid price 

	o 
	o 
	Unquoted securities –professional estimate 

	o 
	o 
	Unitised securities –current bid price 

	o 
	o 
	Property –market value 



	• 
	• 
	The change in net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
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	o 
	o 
	o 
	Service cost which comprises: -Current service cost –the increase in liabilities as aresult of years of service earned in the current year –allocated in the Comprehensive Income &Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked. -Past service cost –the increase in liabilities as aresult of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years –debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income & Expendit

	o 
	o 
	Re-measurements comprising: -actuarial gains and losses –changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions. This charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income &Expenditure. -the return on plan assets –excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability. This charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income &Exp

	o 
	o 
	Contributions paid to the Kent County Council pension fund –cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 


	In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payab
	Contributions to the pension scheme are determined by the Fund’s actuary on a triennial basis. The most recent actuarial valuation to determine contributions was on 31 March 2019. 
	Discretionary Benefits 
	The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to 
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	arise as aresult of an award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
	32 – LEASES Finance Leases – Council as Lessee 
	The Council currently has anumber of arrangements which it classifies as finance leases, including vehicles and the operation of the leisure centre. 
	The future minimum payments due under these arrangements in future years are: 
	Table
	TR
	31st March 2019 £000 
	31st March 2020 £000 

	Not more than1 year Laterthan1 yearandnot laterthan5 years Laterthan5 years 
	Not more than1 year Laterthan1 yearandnot laterthan5 years Laterthan5 years 
	642 2,527 0 
	559 2,030 0 

	TR
	3,169 
	2,589 


	Accounting Policy Leases 
	Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
	Where alease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for classification. 
	Arrangements that do not have the legal status of alease but convey aright to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 
	34 – EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
	The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Finance & Business Improvement on 18June 2020. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statement or notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31March 2020 the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information. 
	th 
	st 

	Covid-19 Pandemic 
	The impact of the pandemic on the period covered by the Statement of Accounts was limited, with lockdown measures only taking effect on 24 March 2020, right at the end of the period. However, there will be avery significant financial 
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	impact in the new financial year, both from additional costs incurred by the Council in 
	responding to the pandemic, and from areduction in income across almost all the Council’s revenue streams, including Council Tax, Business Rates, and fees and charges for the services that we provide. 
	Accounting Policy Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
	Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period –the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events. 

	• 
	• 
	Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period –the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where acategory of events would have amaterial effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect. 


	Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 
	35 – CASH FLOW STATEMENT -ADJUSTMENTS MADE TO NET SURPLUS OR DEFICIT ON THE PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR NON-CASH MOVEMENTS 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Depreciation RevaluationGains & Losses AmortisationofIntangible Assets Movement inCreditors Movement inDebtors Movement inInventories Movement inPensionLiabilities OtherNon-Cashitems 
	Depreciation RevaluationGains & Losses AmortisationofIntangible Assets Movement inCreditors Movement inDebtors Movement inInventories Movement inPensionLiabilities OtherNon-Cashitems 
	(5,138) 1,351 (124) (6,837) 4,579 (13) (3,301) 872 
	(4,160) (839) (135) (2,908) 869 69 (4,264) 1,038 

	TR
	(8,610) 
	(10,329) 
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	36 – CASH FLOW STATEMENT -ADJUSTMENTS FOR ITEMS INCLUDED IN THE NET SURPLUS OR DEFICIT ON THE PROVISION OF SERVICES THAT ARE INVESTING & FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	CapitalGrants creditedto surplus ordeficit on the provisionofservices Proceeds from sale ofProperty,Plant & Equipment 
	CapitalGrants creditedto surplus ordeficit on the provisionofservices Proceeds from sale ofProperty,Plant & Equipment 
	1,367 812 
	4,411 1,961 

	TR
	2,180 
	6,372 


	37 -CASH FLOW STATEMENT – INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Purchase ofproperty,plant & equipment,investment property andintangible assets Purchase ofshort-term and long-term investments Proceeds from the sale of property,plant & equipment, investment property and intangible assets Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments Otherpayments forinvesting activities Otherreceipts forinvesting activities (Grants) 
	Purchase ofproperty,plant & equipment,investment property andintangible assets Purchase ofshort-term and long-term investments Proceeds from the sale of property,plant & equipment, investment property and intangible assets Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments Otherpayments forinvesting activities Otherreceipts forinvesting activities (Grants) 
	11,677 3,000 (816) (6,000) 48 (2,478) 
	38,246 0 (1,963) (4,000) 0 (5,482) 

	Net cash flows from investing activities 
	Net cash flows from investing activities 
	5,430 
	26,800 
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	38 -CASH FLOW STATEMENT – FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
	Table
	TR
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	Cashreceipts ofshort-and long-term borrowing Repayments ofshort & longterm borrowing Otherpayments for financingactivities 
	Cashreceipts ofshort-and long-term borrowing Repayments ofshort & longterm borrowing Otherpayments for financingactivities 
	-

	0 521 1,095 
	(11,000) 520 (7,688) 

	Net cash flows from financing activities 
	Net cash flows from financing activities 
	1,616 
	(18,168) 
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	COLLECTION FUND STATEMENT & NOTES 
	COLLECTION FUND STATEMENT & NOTES 
	2018/19 £000 
	2018/19 £000 
	2018/19 £000 
	2019/20 £000 

	109,505 61,636 171,141 76,387 10,436 17,447 4,661 33,407 22,649 566 1,508 33 195 1,639 427 708 (519) (531) 206 169,219 1,922 (3,040) 2,340 (3,458) 
	109,505 61,636 171,141 76,387 10,436 17,447 4,661 33,407 22,649 566 1,508 33 195 1,639 427 708 (519) (531) 206 169,219 1,922 (3,040) 2,340 (3,458) 
	INCOME Income From CouncilTax Income From Business Rates (Note 2) TotalIncome EXPENDITURE Precepts andDemands -CouncilTax Kent County Council Kent Police & Crime Commissioner MaidstoneBoroughCouncil Kent Fire & Rescue Authority Shares ofBusiness Rates CentralGovernment Kent County Council MaidstoneBoroughCouncil Kent Fire & Rescue Authority TransitionalProtectionPayments -Business Rates DisregardedAmounts -Business Rates Impairment ofDebts -CouncilTax Write offs ofuncollectable amounts Additional/ (Reduced)
	117,579 60,304 177,883 82,402 12,227 18,503 4,933 25,411 6,808 21,843 546 985 173 260 1,401 823 119 (746) 1,354 205 177,249 634 (1,118) 193 (678) 

	(1,118) 
	(1,118) 
	Surplus/(Deficit) as at 31st March 2020 
	(484) 


	The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain aseparate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of this council in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of council tax and non-domestic rates. Respective shares of Balance Sheet items are consolidated into the accounts of billing and precepting authorities. 
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	Notes to the Collection Fund 
	Notes to the Collection Fund 
	Note 1 – Council Tax 
	Council Tax income derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties, which have been classified into 8 valuation bands estimating, for this specific purpose, 1st April 1991 values. Individual charges are calculated by estimating the amount of income required to be taken from the Collection Fund by Kent County Council, the Kent Police & Crime Commissioner, Kent Fire & Rescue Authority and this Council for the forthcoming year and dividing this by the Council Tax base which is the 
	1,830.79 for 
	2019/20 (£1,735.24 for 

	The bands, number of dwellings in each, the multiplier for each and the resultant tax base are detailed in the table below. 
	Band 
	Band 
	Band 
	Number of Dwellings 
	Multiplier 
	CouncilTax Base 

	BandA(incldisabledrelief) BandA BandB BandC BandD BandE BandF BandG BandH Other 
	BandA(incldisabledrelief) BandA BandB BandC BandD BandE BandF BandG BandH Other 
	0 2,540 6,283 15,400 16,186 8,824 5,202 3,845 337 0 
	5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9 
	0.0 1,693.5 4,887.0 13,689.1 16,186.3 10,785.1 7,513.5 6,408.1 674.8 196.1 

	TR
	62,033.4 


	Note 2 -Business (Non-domestic) Rates 
	The Council collects Business Rates for its area based on rateable values (as determined by the Valuation Office Agency) and multipliers set by Central Government. There are two multipliers: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Standard Multiplier 50.4p /£Rateable Value (49.3p in 2018/19) 

	• 
	• 
	Small Business Multiplier 49.1p /£Rateable Value (48.0p in 2018/19) 


	The rateable value at 31st March 2020 was £147.123 (£145.864m at 31st March 2019). 
	For 2019/20, it was calculated that the Council would receive £21.843m in business rates (£22.649m in 2018/19). 
	Asystem of Tariff and Top-Up payments operates on the localised shares distributed to local government bodies. A significant proportion of Maidstone’s 
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	retained share (£19.028m in 2019/20, £18.602m in 2018/19) is subsequently ‘top-sliced’ and returned to the Government for redistribution across local government. 
	Afurther Safety Net or Levy system acts to ensure that any local authority is protected from anet localised business rate yield of less than 92.5% of its Baseline Funding level set by the government. In these circumstances alocal authority will receive aSafety Net grant. This grant is paid for by imposing a 50% levy on localised business rate receipts in excess of their Baseline Funding level. 
	Since April 2013, the Council has participated in apooled arrangement with Kent County Council, Kent Fire and Rescue Authority and nine other district councils in Kent in order to minimise the levy payment due to Central Government and thereby maximise the retention of locally generated Business Rates. 
	Business Rates surpluses/deficits declared by the Billing Authority in relation to the Collection Fund are apportioned to the relevant precepting bodies and Government in the subsequent financial year in their respective proportions. 
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	GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
	GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
	ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
	The specific policies and procedures used by the Council to prepare the Statement of Accounts. These include any methods, measurement systems and procedures for presenting disclosures. 
	ACCOUNTS 
	Statement aggregating items of income and expenditure and assets and liabilities. The accounts may show detailed transactions for every activity (generally used for management and control purposes during afinancial year) or be summarised to show the overall position at the end of the period. The latter are known as final accounts and show both the net surplus (profit) or deficit (loss) and abalance sheet of the assets, liabilities and other balances at the end of the accounting period. Councils are required
	ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
	Assets that the Council are actively marketing for sale, and for which there is a reasonable expectation that the sale will take place within one year of the Balance Sheet date. 
	BALANCE SHEET 
	Astatement of the assets, liabilities and other balances of the Council at the end of an accounting period. 
	BALANCES 
	Capital or revenue reserves of the Council made up of the accumulated surplus of income over expenditure on the general fund or any other account. Revenue balances may be utilised to provide for unforeseen circumstances, to ensure that payments can be made pending the receipt of income, and if justified they may be used to reduce the collection fund levy. 
	CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
	Generally, expenditure which is of value to the Council in the provision of services beyond the end of the financial year in which it was incurred, e.g. purchase of land and buildings, construction or improvement of buildings. 
	CAPITAL FINANCING 
	The raising of money to pay for capital expenditure. Usually the cost of capital assets is met by borrowing, but capital expenditure may also be financed by other means such as leasing, contributions from the revenue accounts, the proceeds of the sale of capital assets, capital grants, reserves and other contributions. 
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	CAPITAL RECEIPTS 
	Proceeds from the sale of capital assets. Capital receipts can be used to repay the debt on assets financed from loan or to finance new capital expenditure, subject to compliance with statutory requirements. 
	COLLECTION FUND 
	Councils that collect precepts and non-domestic rates on behalf of other authorities are required to maintain aCollection Fund to summarise the collection and payments of precepts, and any associated adjustments. 
	CREDITORS 
	Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received, or services rendered but for which payment had not been made at the date of the balance sheet. 
	DEBTORS 
	Sums of money due to the Council but unpaid at the balance sheet date. 
	DEPRECIATION 
	The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life of anon-current asset, whether arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through technological or other changes. 
	GENERAL FUND 
	The main revenue account of acharging authority that summarises the cost of all services provided by the Council. 
	HERITAGE ASSETS 
	Heritage Assets are defined as assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge or culture. 
	INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
	Intangible assets are assets that do not have aphysical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the Council, such as computer software. 
	INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) 
	These are the accounting standards (as adapted for the public sector) that the Council are required to follow when preparing the annual Statement of Accounts. 
	INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
	Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. 
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	PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 
	Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for administrative purposes on acontinuing basis. 
	REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL BY STATUTE 
	Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the creation of property, plant or equipment, and is charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. 
	REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT 
	Ageneral grant paid by central government to local authorities to help finance the cost of services. It is paid to charging authorities for credit to the Collection Fund. 
	REVENUE ACCOUNT 
	An account which records the day to day expenditure and income of the Council on such items as salaries and wages, running costs of services, the purchase of consumable materials and equipment, and the financing costs of capital assets. 
	SUPPORT SERVICES 
	An allocation of the net cost of the administrative and professional departments which provide support for all the Council’s services (e.g. Executive Services, Finance, Personnel), together with the costs of pooled administrative buildings. 
	USABLE CAPITAL RECEIPTS 
	Funds received by an authority from the sale of capital assets that have yet to be used to finance capital expenditure or repay debt. 
	UNUSABLE RESERVES 
	These are non-cash reserves that are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, retirement benefits and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council. 
	USABLE RESERVES 
	These are funds available to the Council and represent specific amounts set-aside for future policy purposes or earmarked purposes, including the General Fund and the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
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	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
	To follow 
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	Figure
	AnnualGovernanceStatement 2019-20 
	Figure
	Introduction 
	The Annual Governance Statement is a review of the Council’s governance arrangements in 2019-20. The statement evaluates how we meet the governance framework and provides an opinion on whether the current governance arrangements are fit for purpose. 
	ConclusiononSignificantGovernanceIssues 
	Overall, we can confirm that the Council has the appropriate systems and processes in place. Whilst we are satisfied the governance arrangements in general work well our review has identified additional actions to ensure good standards of governance are maintained. The most significant governance issues relate to COVID-19, and also included are the most significant risks from the Corporate Risk Register. In developing a recovery plan from COVID19, the Council will take steps to ensure that its financial obl
	Updates on the areas for improvement will be provided to the Audit Governance and Standards Committee on a six-monthly basis and kept under review by the internal Corporate Governance Group. 
	AreasforImprovement2020-21 
	AreasforImprovement2020-21 
	ScopeofResponsibility 

	Keyimprovementarea 
	Keyimprovementarea 
	Keyimprovementarea 
	LeadOfficer 
	Tobe deliveredby 

	Ensure financial risk arising from the 
	Ensure financial risk arising from the 
	Director of 
	1 March 2021 

	impact of COVID-19 are managed 
	impact of COVID-19 are managed 
	Finance and Business Improvement 

	Poor management of contracts or financial resilience of contractors leads to significantcontractfailuredisrupting services and creating extra liabilities. Potential impact on the capital programme because of the resilience of our contractors. 
	Poor management of contracts or financial resilience of contractors leads to significantcontractfailuredisrupting services and creating extra liabilities. Potential impact on the capital programme because of the resilience of our contractors. 
	Director of Finance and Business Improvement 
	1 March 2021 

	Exit of EU on unfavourable terms results in adverse short-termBrexitimpacts disrupting the Council's ability to offer services and increasing liabilities. 
	Exit of EU on unfavourable terms results in adverse short-termBrexitimpacts disrupting the Council's ability to offer services and increasing liabilities. 
	Director of Finance and Business Improvement 
	1 March 2021 


	Keyimprovementarea 
	Keyimprovementarea 
	Keyimprovementarea 
	LeadOfficer 
	Tobe deliveredby 

	Data Protection Areas identified for 
	Data Protection Areas identified for 
	Data Protection 
	1 November 

	Improvement in 2020-21: • Record of Processing Activity updated 
	Improvement in 2020-21: • Record of Processing Activity updated 
	Officer 
	2020 

	CCTV • Information sharing guidance issued and training rolled out • Asset Register and Retention Schedule review completed and changes implemented 
	CCTV • Information sharing guidance issued and training rolled out • Asset Register and Retention Schedule review completed and changes implemented 
	1 March 2021 

	Capacity to deliver the investment and regeneration programme – (link to Corporate Risk Register). 
	Capacity to deliver the investment and regeneration programme – (link to Corporate Risk Register). 
	Director of Regeneration and Place 
	1 March 2022 

	Property Maintenance, Health and Safety Compliance. 
	Property Maintenance, Health and Safety Compliance. 
	Director of Finance and Business Improvement 
	1 March 2021 

	Ensuring we are resilient and continue to build relationships with partners. 
	Ensuring we are resilient and continue to build relationships with partners. 
	Chief Executive 
	1 March 2021 

	Declaration of Interests. 
	Declaration of Interests. 
	Monitoring Officer 
	1 November 2020 

	Promoting decision making on Garden Communities ensuring information is publicly available and accessible and the role of the council as developer versus the role as the planning authority is clear. 
	Promoting decision making on Garden Communities ensuring information is publicly available and accessible and the role of the council as developer versus the role as the planning authority is clear. 
	Chief Executive 
	1 March 2021 


	Maidstone Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. Maidstone Borough Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. This Annual Governance Statement for 2019-20 also meets the requirements of the 
	KeyGovernanceRolesandResponsibilities 
	The Council operates a committee system of governance and the Leader is the focus for political direction and the chief spokesperson for the Council. The Leader is also Chair of the Policy and Resources Committee. The Council has four 
	The Council operates a committee system of governance and the Leader is the focus for political direction and the chief spokesperson for the Council. The Leader is also Chair of the Policy and Resources Committee. The Council has four 
	service committees taking decisions within their terms of reference as agreed by Council; individual Councillors do not have delegated authority from Council to make decisions. In addition, there are committees that deal with licensing, planning, audit, governance and standards, democracy and employment and other regulatory matters. The numbers shown in the diagram below reflect membership. 

	Figure
	The Council’s Section 151 Officer, Mark Green, and the Monitoring Officer, Patricia Narebor, are key members of the Corporate Leadership Team, reviewing all decisions taken through Leadership Team, Committees and Full Council. The Section 151 Officer has a number of statutory duties, including the duty to report any unlawful financial activity involving the authority (past, present or proposed) or failure to set or keep to a balanced budget. The Section 151 Officer also has a number of statutory powers to a
	The Monitoring Officer serves as the guardian of the and the decision-making process. During 2019-20, amendments to the Constitution have been referred to the Democracy and General Purposes Committee and revisions implemented in line with the decision of the Committee and under the Monitoring Officer’s delegation. The Monitoring Officer is also responsible for advising the Council on the legality of its decisions and providing guidance to 
	The Monitoring Officer serves as the guardian of the and the decision-making process. During 2019-20, amendments to the Constitution have been referred to the Democracy and General Purposes Committee and revisions implemented in line with the decision of the Committee and under the Monitoring Officer’s delegation. The Monitoring Officer is also responsible for advising the Council on the legality of its decisions and providing guidance to 
	Council's Constitution 

	councillors and officers on the Council's Constitution and its powers. This includes dealing with complaints under the Councillors’ Code of Conduct. 

	The Corporate Leadership Team is led by the Chief Executive who is Head of Paid Service with overall corporate management and operational responsibility. 
	The Head of Policy, Communications and Governance, has responsibility for corporate governance, leading the Council’s corporate governance group and coordinating the annual governance statement as well as ensuring the Local Code of Corporate Governance is updated. 
	In discharging this overall responsibility, Maidstone Borough Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
	The Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance in 2017, which is consistent with the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and Society of Local Authority Chief Executive’s (SOLACE) Framework . 
	Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016

	OurGovernanceFramework 
	The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the Council is directed and controlled, and the activities through which it is accountable to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 
	The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the Council’s objectives, and therefore can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement of the Council’s objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
	This governance framework has been in place at Maidstone Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts. 
	The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector states that: 
	“Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved.” 
	Our Local Code sets out the framework within which we conduct our business and affairs and the governance structure we have in place. Whilst this code sets 
	Our Local Code sets out the framework within which we conduct our business and affairs and the governance structure we have in place. Whilst this code sets 
	out principles, processes and policies, it is the application of the framework that will demonstrate good governance. 

	This statement sets out how we have demonstrated and met those principles in 2019-20. 
	The7principleswithintheLocalCodeofCorporateGovernance 
	Figure
	Lookingbackat2019-20 
	A number of improvement actions were identified as part of the 2018-19 Annual Governance Statement. 
	The table below shows progress with these actions: 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	Update 

	Ensuring sufficient resource to deliver the ambition for embracing growth and enabling infrastructure priority (link to Corporate Risk Register) 
	Ensuring sufficient resource to deliver the ambition for embracing growth and enabling infrastructure priority (link to Corporate Risk Register) 
	The Regeneration and Economic Development service has been refocused towards investment in and delivery of the Council’s growth and infrastructure projects. The Council works in collaboration with Kent County Council to secure infrastructure monies above those sums collected via Section 106 and the Community Infrastructure Levy. Local Growth Fund monies were secured to part fund a programme of junction improvements to mitigate development in the current Local Plan. Whilst programmes such as this are complex


	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	Update 

	TR
	The Council has also secured Local Enterprise Partnership Local Growth Fund monies of £1m to fund improvements to the Maidstone East Ticket Office, plus £1m of National Station Improvement Funds. The project is now in site and will be complete by December 2020. Progress has been made in this area, however as this continues to be a priority and a risk for the Council it has been included as an area to improve in 2020/21. 

	Ensuring there is protection against bribery and corruption. 
	Ensuring there is protection against bribery and corruption. 
	Online learning training modules have been made available to staff following a Team Talk in December on gifts and hospitality. The Council’s Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy was refreshed in January 2020, the refresh made minor textual amendments and additional information added to the ‘Further Advice and Support Section’. Anti-Money Laundering Policy and Guidance was approved by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee in March 2020. We will keep these policies and their performance under review, b

	Capacity to deliver the investment and regeneration programme – (link to Corporate Risk Register) 
	Capacity to deliver the investment and regeneration programme – (link to Corporate Risk Register) 
	The Business Rates Retention Pilot monies were in part used to create planning guideline documents for the five town centre opportunity sites. All five have now been adopted, and this has work has stimulated a developer to submit a detailed Planning application on the first of these, Len House, which is due to be determined in July 2020. Current successes include the expansion of the Maidstone Property Holdings Ltd market rent portfolio, improvements at Mote Park. Additionally we were pleased to gain ERDF f


	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	Update 

	TR
	Council-led garden community through the Local Plan Review process. This is an exciting and ambitious project for which the Council has already secured Homes England as a partner. Commercial Investment As part of the commercial investment strategy, resources have been budgeted for the ongoing maintenance and development of our new acquisition at Lockmeadow. While noting the considerable progress, the Council still has significant commitments to deliver. This remains an improvement area into 2020/21. 

	Property Maintenance, Health and Safety Compliance 
	Property Maintenance, Health and Safety Compliance 
	Clear responsibility has been established for property maintenance and health and safety compliance. Residential property (private sector and temporary accommodation) is now managed by the Housing Team and commercial property maintenance by the Corporate Property team. Regular checks are carried out to comply with the legal requirements for health and safety, including properties where the prime responsibility lies with the tenant. The outcomes are reported on a regular monthly basis to Corporate Leadership
	-


	Governance for Maidstone Property Holdings 
	Governance for Maidstone Property Holdings 
	An external review was undertaken for the governance arrangements of Maidstone Property Holdings Ltd, this was reported to Audit Governance and Standards Committee in November 2019. The review was undertaken with the assistance of external solicitors, Anthony Collins Solicitors LLP, and has resulted in confirmation of the company’s future aims and objectives, an amended draft Business Plan and various other company documents, clarity on the Service. Agreement required, clarity on the different roles of the 


	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	Update 

	TR
	Committee. Regular quarterly reports on the company’s performance are presented to Policy & Resources Committee, in order that it may exercise its stewardship role as shareholder. On clarification of roles and responsibilities, we have excluded this from the list of continuing governance issues. 

	Contract Management 
	Contract Management 
	A range of actions have been carried out to improve the standard of contract management, including publication of contract management guidance, officer training, improved liaison with MK Legal, and central monitoring of contracts. Overall responsibility for maintaining the standard of contract management across the Council has been allocated to the Procurement and Contracts Team within the Head of Commissioning and Business Improvement’s service area.Contract Management has now been reassessed as sound and 

	Partner Relationships 
	Partner Relationships 
	There is a very strong working partnership in place with KCC, underpinned by the new Maidstone Strategic Infrastructure Working Group comprised by councillors and senior officers from both authorities. In terms of Transport partnership working with KCC, this has been evidenced by the two authorities co-funding a Maidstone Transport Planner, and the joint commissioning of a Maidstone Transport Model to support the Local Plan Review. We have also continued to work closely with our partners in health and commu


	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	KeyImprovement Area 
	Update 

	TR
	While continuing to build and maintain these relationships, we have retained this area for governance focus in 2020/21. 


	ReviewofEffectiveness2019-20 
	A. Behavingwithintegrity,demonstratingstrongcommitmentto ethicalvalues,andrespectingruleoflaw 
	Assured(inpart) 
	The Council has strong values known and understood by officers one of which is integrity and promotes a culture of compliance. Councillors are trained on the Code of Conduct and guidance is offered from the Monitoring Officer, Corporate Leadership Team and Democratic Services Team. 
	The Council’s Codes of Conduct sets out clear expectations and requirements for behaving with integrity, committing to ethical values and respecting the rule of law for both Councillors and Officers 
	The audit review and follow up report identifies actions to improve Declarations of Interest, these were not all completed in 2019-20. 
	The Council adopted the local code of corporate governance in 2017 which complies with CIPFA and SOLACE “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”. This code has been updated in June 2020 for approval by the Audit Governance and Standards Committee alongside the Annual Governance Statement. 
	The Council also has in place a local Code of Conduct for Councillors and a Code of Conduct for staff. Code of Conduct training is carried out annually for Councillors and included in the new councillor induction programme to which all members are invited. During the municipal year 2019-2020, there were 5 Code of Conduct complaints dealt with under the Localism Act 2011 against parish councillors and no complaints were raised against Borough Councillors. At times information given to members to fulfil their
	11 
	On 8 June the Local Government Association began consultation on a new draft member Code of Conduct, which we intend to participate in. As a result our own local Code of Conduct may be updated in 2020-21, this is likely to involve a cross Kent piece of work. 
	Information on the employee Code of Conduct is set out in the staff handbook and is included in the induction for all new employees. 
	A is maintained and training is offered to Councillors on standards, interests and our Code of Conduct. A register of gifts and hospitality is maintained and staff are reminded to complete this annually. Under the Local Government Act 1972, section 117, the Council requires officers to disclose any direct or indirect pecuniary interests they may have in any contract or potential contract involving the Council. The results of the Audit review of Declarations of Interest undertaken in 2018/19 were reported in
	Register of Interests 

	The purpose is to promote and maintain high standards of Councillor and Officer conduct within the Council. The Committee has responsibility for adopting and reviewing the Annual Governance Statement; independent assurance of the adequacy of the financial and risk management framework and the associated control environment. 
	Audit, Governance and Standards Committee’s 

	We have a clearly defined set of core values that are embedded at the Council, they form part of our competency framework and are used as part of the appraisal process. A staff survey was carried out at the beginning of 2020 which showed a clear understanding of the Council’s priorities and values with 90% of those who responded saying they understand the Council’s values. Annually, we hold a staff awards event for those who have demonstrated they have exceeded the standards by going above and beyond the ex
	The statutory roles of the Chief Financial Officer (s.151 officer) and the Monitoring Officer are set out in the Constitution and in the scheme of delegation. They provide oversight of propriety and lawfulness. They have a direct reporting line to the Chief Executive and are involved in all major decision-making preparation through membership of the Corporate Leadership Team, as well as being signatories to all key and other significant decisions. 
	There is an in place for the organisation; the objectives and action plan were updated in 2019 and will be reviewed again in July 2020. 
	Equality Policy 

	The is kept under review by the Democracy and General Purposes Committee and the Monitoring Officer, with changes agreed by full Council. 
	Constitution 

	In 2019-20 the Council has created a separation between the Local Plan Review and other Planning Functions as the Director for Regeneration and Place is leading on the proposal for a Council-led garden community. This ensures a clear separation of roles. 
	B. Ensuringopennessandcomprehensivestakeholderengagement 
	Assured 
	The council is proactive in relation to transparency and stakeholder engagement. 
	A variety of communication channels are used to engage and inform residents including social media, traditional press and radio. 
	Going forward we will work on our transparency as an area of improvement in relation to our role as master planner for the Council-led Garden Community 
	The Policy and Information Team and Communications Team work together with teams across the Council to ensure consultations are run consistently and effectively and are well communicated to all stakeholders. This collaborative working enables the teams to manage the consultation process more effectively, and, in particular, better manage barriers such as ‘consultation fatigue’ -where we are consulting the same people repeatedly and they lose interest in responding. The Council is a member of the Consultatio
	Over the course of 2019-20 we have carried out ten resident and stakeholder consultations on our services ranging from the Annual Budget Survey, customer satisfaction, planning decisions, climate change and homelessness and rough sleepers policy priorities surveys. 
	The Council has a Communication and Engagement Action Plan in place which is reviewed annually and approved by the Policy and Resources Committee. We also have a Statement of Community Involvement in place for Planning covering a whole variety of means of communicating with and involving residents in planning matters. 
	We believe in transparency and have a large amount of information available on the pages of our website, including details of payments to suppliers, decision notices, performance information, a list of our assets and senior staff salaries. We have dealt with a large volume of Freedom of 
	data and information 
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	Information requests a total of 893 requests of which 96% were processed on time an improved performance compared to the previous year in which we dealt with 704 requests and 94% processed on time. 
	The Communications Team issued a significant number of press releases to support service area campaigns between April 2019 to March 2020 totalling 138. 
	The Council applies the public interest test appropriately when deciding whether reports or other information the Council holds have to be confidential, and makes an effort to put as much information in the public domain as possible, including splitting confidential information into appendices to allow discussion of the broader topic in public. In 2019/20 the Council has been subject to increased scrutiny in relation to its Garden Community Proposal, and this has been identified as an area for improvement f
	The Council takes up opportunities to engage with partners and stakeholders through avenues such as the Developers’ forum, Parish Liaison meetings, Maidstone Destination Management Plan, Black and Minority Ethnic forum, Children and Young People forum, Voluntary and Community Services focus group, disability network and older persons’ forum. We have acted as community ambassadors in our capacity as the democratically elected body representing residents with partners. 
	In January 2020, the Communities, Housing and Environment Committee had an item on the Local Health Care provision in Maidstone and interviewed the Chief Executive and representatives from the NHS. 
	We also participate in the Maidstone Strategic Infrastructure Working Group with Kent County Council. The aims of the group include achieving consensus in the identification, development and delivery of key infrastructure in the Borough. 
	C. Definingoutcomesintermsofsustainableeconomic,social,and environmentalbenefits. 
	Assured 
	The Council’s priorities and cross cutting objectives in the Strategic Plan 2019-45 seek outcomes with sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 
	A member project has been underway in 2019-20 to look at the Council’s approach to climate change and biodiversity including commissioning the Carbon Trust to review our own estate and identify actions to reduce our emissions and impact on the environment. 
	14 
	The Council developed a in 2018 through a series of events, meetings and consultation with stakeholders. We have in place a clear vision and four key priorities to 2045. Outcomes are measured through strategy action plan updates, performance measures and targets which are reported regularly to Wider Leadership Team and the Service Committees. 
	Strategic Plan 

	To ensure the 
	Figure
	delivery of the strategic plan priorities and actions each service is required to produce a service plan and individuals also identify how they meet the priorities in their objectives for the year. Regular updates are given on progress with the Strategic Plan at our Staff and Manager Forums as well as at our annual One Council event. Ibn response to a staff survey 85% of staff agreed that they had a clear understanding of the Council’s priorities, and 93% agreed that they were committed to the Council achie
	Our corporate report template requires report authors to identify how decisions align with the Council’s priorities and show the options that have been considered and the impact of the recommended course of action. The template agreed in 2018-19 includes the four new priorities and the four cross cutting objectives. We also have a robust risk management framework in place; risks are reported to the Leadership Team, Policy and Resources and Audit, Governance and Standards Committees. 
	In January 2019 the Council undertook a As a result it was identified that the Council needs a new Asset Management Plan, and this is scheduled to go to Policy and Resources Committee in Autumn 2020. 
	Property Asset Review. 

	In July 2019 Policy and Resources Committee set up a member working group to look at achieving net zero carbon emissions for the Borough by 2030 and deliver an action plan to improve biodiversity and tackle climate change. This will report in October 2020. 
	Biodiversity and Climate Change 

	We have successfully implemented a ‘go green go wild’ project to embrace and encourage biodiversity and protect and enhance our green spaces. During 201920 a £20,000 community fund was introduced, delivering 10 grants to local groups to support ‘go green go wild’ initiatives. We have also introduced electric vehicles for street cleansing and replaced our grounds equipment to reduce their environmental impact. 
	-

	The Council has a financial inclusion board to support the delivery of its social inclusion and equalities responsibilities. Objectives include identifying strategy, policy, action, work programmes and training to deliver the cross-cutting objectives in the Council’s Strategic Plan to reduce deprivation, including improving financial inclusion and improving social mobility. The board monitors progress and evaluates the impact of the Council’s interventions to address and reduce health inequalities, reduce d
	In early 2019, the Council committed to be part of the programme working in partnership with the Heart of Kent Hospice. Compassionate Cities are communities that publicly encourage, facilitate, support and celebrate care for one another during life’s most testing moments and experiences, especially those pertaining to life-threatening and life-limiting illness, chronic disability, frail ageing and dementia, grief and bereavement, and the trials and burdens of long-term care. Its communities care for one ano
	compassionate cities 

	D. Determiningtheinterventionsnecessarytooptimisethe achievementoftheintendedoutcomes 
	Assured 
	Oversight and healthy challenge are provided through service committees, boards and working groups. 
	The review of the Council’s risk register has identified a significant risk to the Council in relation to the impact and recovery from COVID19 and a second risk in relation to the resurgence of COVID19 
	The clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of Officers and Councillors. In 2019/20 the constitution was reviewed by the Monitoring Officer and Democratic and Electoral Services Manager and this has resulted in 
	The clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of Officers and Councillors. In 2019/20 the constitution was reviewed by the Monitoring Officer and Democratic and Electoral Services Manager and this has resulted in 
	Council’s Constitution 

	reformatting, minor amendments and changes to the member and public question procedure rules. 

	The Council’s four service committees are responsible for making decisions on the services delivered by the Council. The four service committees, Democracy and General Purposes Committee and Audit, Governance and Standards Committee have work programmes in place. These programmes detail the decisions and reports for the year and are reviewed monthly by each committee. Details of committees and their work can be found on our . 
	website

	Performance is reported on a quarterly basis to each service committee as well as updates on plans and strategies throughout the year. Corporate Leadership Team received monthly performance monitoring reports for Housing and Planning during 2019-20. 
	We believe that analytics can be used to provide greater insight and support us to transform and shape our services in a way that focuses on prevention and early intervention. Predictive analytics is a key tool to help us to identify those most at risk of presenting as homeless and to understand the effective interventions. We are collaborating with EY & Xantura to support us in transforming our service so that resources are focused on points of the pathway that are most effective. The platform creates a ‘s
	The Council has a Transformation Team which carries out reviews to improve the efficiency of Council services. In 2019-20 reviews were carried out of our Street Cleaning, Leisure and Building Control services as well as a cash payments project. 
	A range of actions were carried out in 2019-20 to improve the standard of contract management, including publication of contract management guidance, officer training, improved liaison with MK Legal, and central monitoring of contracts. Overall responsibility for the maintaining the standard of contract management across the Council has been allocated to the Procurement and Contracts Team within the Head of Commissioning and Business Improvement’s service area.Contract Management has now been reassessed as 
	A clear separation of responsibility has been established for property maintenance and health and safety compliance, with regard to our residential property (private sector and temporary accommodation) being managed by the Housing Team and commercial property by the Corporate Property team. Regular checks are carried out to comply with the legal requirements for health and safety, including properties where the prime responsibility lies with the tenant. The outcomes are reported on a regular monthly basis t
	A clear separation of responsibility has been established for property maintenance and health and safety compliance, with regard to our residential property (private sector and temporary accommodation) being managed by the Housing Team and commercial property by the Corporate Property team. Regular checks are carried out to comply with the legal requirements for health and safety, including properties where the prime responsibility lies with the tenant. The outcomes are reported on a regular monthly basis t
	Leadership Team, and as this remains an ongoing issue this will be included on the action plan for 2020/21. 

	The highest level risks on the Corporate , were reported and monitored by Corporate Leadership Team throughout the year, and action was 
	Risk Register

	taken to manage risks to an acceptable level. Further to this, risks updates were reported to Policy & Resources Committee and also to Audit, Governance and Standards Committee during the year for oversight and challenge. 
	E. Developingtheentityscapacity,includingthecapabilityofits leadershipandtheindividualswithinit 
	Assure 
	Figure
	The Council has a clear commitment to developing capacity with a well-developed Learning and Development Programme and an Established Members Charter in place. 
	Staff and Councillors have the opportunity to attend training relevant to their roles and there are agreed budgets for Member development and Staff. 
	In early 2020 a staff survey was undertaken in which 69% of respondents answered that they were able to access the right learning and development opportunities when they need to. 59% of staff identified that the learning and development activities completed in the last twelve months had helped to improve their performance. 
	The appraisal process for staff includes a personal development section where staff are encouraged to think about development needs and identify training required. This information is then fed into the Learning and Development team and assists with the development of the programme for the year. The Council has a management toolkit and training programme and introduced the “Maidstone manager” in 2017-18 which sets out the behaviour and standards that are expected of managers. 
	The Council has a learning and development programme in place for officers and a Member development Charter in place for Councillors. There is a wide variety of training offered to staff and Councillors. 
	The Strategic Plan sets out a number of priorities and outcomes to be achieved by 2045, to achieve these we will need to look at the organisation’s capacity particularly in relation to Economic Regeneration and Community Development. The recent pandemic puts even more pressure and focus on these objectives and 
	The Strategic Plan sets out a number of priorities and outcomes to be achieved by 2045, to achieve these we will need to look at the organisation’s capacity particularly in relation to Economic Regeneration and Community Development. The recent pandemic puts even more pressure and focus on these objectives and 
	the Council will need to look at its outcomes for the next five years when it reviews the Strategic Plan in 2020-21. 

	F. Managingrisksandperformancethroughrobustinternalcontrol andstrongpublicfinancialmanagement 
	Assured 
	Performance and risk are well managed and regularly reported to management team and committees. 
	Significant risks from the corporate risk register feature in the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan for 2020-21. 
	Areas for improvement have been identified for data protection and these are in the action plan for 2020-21. 
	The Council manages risk through a comprehensive risk management framework. This involves identification of risk at corporate and service levels, ownership of individual risks by named officers, development of controls to mitigate risks, and regular reporting. Quarterly reports are presented to the Corporate Leadership Team and bi-annual reports to Policy and Resources Committee. Members take an active interest in the risk management process and engage fully in discussion about individual risks. The Council
	Performance reports aligned to the Council’s priorities are reported to the wider leadership team and service committees on a quarterly basis for scrutiny and challenge. 
	Service committees carry out policy and strategy development. Financial performance is reported to all the service committees on a quarterly basis. 
	Monthly budget spending is reported to budget holders and quarterly review meetings with the Director of Finance and Business Improvement are in place. The corporate report template requires information explaining the legal and financial impact of decisions and the S151 Officer and Monitoring Officer are required to comment on financial and legal implications of reports. 
	The impact of the pandemic on the period covered by the Annual Governance Statement was limited, with lockdown measures only taking effect on 24 March 2020, right at the end of the period. However, there will be a very significant financial impact in the new financial year, both from additional costs incurred by the Council in responding to the pandemic, and from a reduction in income across almost all the Council’s revenue streams, including Council Tax, Business Rates, and fees and charges for the service
	At the time of publishing the draft Statement of Accounts, the government had provided the Council with £1.7million of non-ringfenced grants to offset additional costs and loss of income, but this is expected only partly to address the likely financial shortfall. As set out in the Statement of Accounts, the Council holds £17 million of usable reserves, which provides the Council with a reasonable level of financial resilience. However, drawing on these reserves would leave the Council with relatively greate
	The Council has an anti-fraud and corruption policy in place and a whistle blowing policy, all of which are regularly reviewed by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. 
	The Council has a Data Protection Officer and has in place an action plan to ensure compliance with Data Protection Legislation. The information management group chaired by the Senior Information Risk Owner meets quarterly to review information management practice and policies including cyber security. The Chairman of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee also attends and contributes to the group. The group in 2019-20 considered the Council’s preparedness for Brexit in relation to information manage
	G. Implementinggoodpracticesintransparency,reporting,and audittodelivereffectiveaccountability 
	Assure 
	Figure
	The Council has a strong commitment to transparency. Regular consultation is carried out to improve and inform services. A variety of information is available on the council’s website Partnership arrangements are robust 
	The Council’s website includes information that is required under transparency. We publish an as part of our Statement of Accounts which includes our performance, progress against priorities and financial performance. We 
	annual report 
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	report the results of public consultation on our website and our committee meetings are webcast. 
	The Whistleblowing Policy is available on the intranet and sets out a confidential reporting process for those who wish to raise concerns. 
	The annual governance statement and action plan is published on-line as part of the statement of accounts and reported to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. The Local Code of Corporate Governance was rewritten in 2017 and a refreshed code will be considered by Audit, Governance and Standards and Committee in July 2020. 
	Internal audit activity is reported regularly to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee to inform members of the internal audit activity that takes place during the year. 
	We are part of Mid Kent Services; to ensure the partnership is operating effectively, regular board meetings are held quarterly to manage performance. 
	An external review was undertaken for the governance arrangements of Maidstone Property Holdings Ltd, this was to Audit Governance and Standards Committee in November 2019. The review was undertaken with the assistance of external solicitors, Anthony Collins Solicitors LLP, and has resulted in confirmation of the company’s future aims and objectives, an amended draft Business Plan and various other company documents, clarity on the Service Agreement required, and clarity on the different roles of the compan
	reported 

	Internal Audit Opinion 
	Internal Audit Opinion 

	The Head of Internal Audit will present the annual report and opinion to Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 29 July 2020. The specific extract of that report that includes the opinion reads: 
	Internal Control 
	I am satisfied that during the year ended 31 March 2020 the Council managed a system of internal control that offers sound assurance on control effectiveness. 
	Governance 
	I am satisfied that Council’s corporate governance arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2020 comply in all material respects with guidance on proper practices. 
	Risk Management 
	I am satisfied the risk management arrangements at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 are effective and provide sound assurance. 
	Signed: 
	Chief Executive: 
	Date: 30November 2020 
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	Leader of the Council: 
	Date: 30November 2020 
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	Independent auditor’s report to the members of Maidstone Borough Council 
	Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
	Opinion 
	We have audited the financial statements of Maidstone Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The notes to the financial statements include the EFA, Notes to the Core Statements, Policies and Judgements, and Notes
	In our opinion, the financial statements: 
	 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 
	 have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20; and 
	 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 
	Basis for opinion 
	We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical res
	The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit 
	Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant uncertainties, including those arising as a consequence of the effects of macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the Director of Finance and Business Improvement and the related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the fu
	-

	Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK, and at the date of this report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with the full range of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to these uncertainties when assessing the Authority’s future operational arrangements. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future implications 
	Conclusions relating to going concern 
	We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where: 
	 the Director of Finance and Business Improvement’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or 
	Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1 
	 the Director of Finance and Business Improvement has not disclosed in the financial statements any 
	identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to 
	continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from 
	the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
	In our evaluation of the Director of Finance and Business Improvement’s conclusions, and in 
	accordance with the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 
	accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 that the Authority’s financial statements shall be prepared on 
	a going concern basis, we considered the risks associated with the Authority’s operating activities, 
	including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. We analysed 
	how those risks might affect the Authority’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the 
	period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. In 
	accordance with the above, we have nothing to report in these respects. 
	However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in 
	outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the 
	absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the 
	Authority will continue in operation. 
	Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on the valuation of land and buildings and property investments 
	We draw attention to Note 4 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the Authority’s land and buildings and the Authority’s share of the pension fund’s property investments as at 31 March 2020. As, disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements, the outbreak of Covid-19 has impacted global financial markets and as at the valuation date, less weight can be attached to the previous market evidence to inform opinions of value. There is an unpreceden
	Other information 
	The Director of Finance and Business Improvement is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
	In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
	We have nothing to report in this regard. 
	Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 
	Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the ‘delivering good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement add
	We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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	Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice 
	In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
	Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
	Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if: 
	 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 
	 we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 
	 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under 
	Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the 
	audit; or; 
	 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 
	 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit. 
	We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters. 
	Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Finance and Business Improvement and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements 
	As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts set out on page 19 the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Director of Finance and Business Improvement. The Director of Finance and Business Improvement is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts
	In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Finance and Business Improvement is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be provided. 
	The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process. 
	Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
	Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
	A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: . This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
	www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
	www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


	Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 
	Report on other legal and regulatory requirements -Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
	Conclusion 
	On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, we are satisfied that the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
	Responsibilities of the Authority 
	The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 
	Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
	We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 
	We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, as to whether in all significant respects the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to co
	Report on other legal and regulatory requirements -Certificate 
	We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Maidstone Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 
	Use of our report 
	This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted b


	Paul Dossett 
	Paul Dossett 
	Paul Dossett, Key Audit Partner for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor 
	London 30 November 2020 
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